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ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, INC.
2014 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, “ARC Documem&ions,” “ARC,” “the Company,” “we,” “us,” and “or” refer to ARC Docume
Solutions, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and itssotidated subsidiaries, unless the context otlserdictates.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwdodking statements within the meaning of the Pev@ecurities Litigation Reform A
of 1995. When used in this Annual Report on ForrK1@he words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” $&mate,” “intend,” “plan,” “project,”
“target,” “likely,” “will,” “would,” “could,” and variations of such words and similar express@as they relate to our management or ti
Company are intended to identify forward-lookingtsments. These forwatdeking statements involve risks and uncertainties could caus
actual results to differ materially from those @mplated herein. We have described in Part |, k&riRisk Factors”a number of factors tr
could cause our actual results to differ from orojgctions or estimates. These factors and otls&rfectors described in this report are
necessarily all of the important factors that cocgdise actual results to differ materially fromsta@xpressed in any of our forwdomdking
statements. Other unknown or unpredictable facitas could harm our results. Consequently, thenebeano assurance that the actual re
or developments anticipated by us will be realisedeven if substantially realized, that they widlve the expected consequences to, or e
on, us. Given these uncertainties, you are caulioog to place undue reliance on such forward-loglstatements.

Except where otherwise indicated, the statementterimathis Annual Report on Form X0are made as of the date we filed this report
the Securities and Exchange Commission and shauldenrelied upon as of any subsequent date. Alréuwritten and verbal forwardoking
statements attributable to us or any person actingur behalf are expressly qualified in their ety by the cautionary statements containe
referred to in this section. We undertake no obilgng and specifically disclaim any obligation,fablicly update or revise any forwalaeking
statements, whether as a result of new informafistoye events or otherwise. You should, howevensalt further disclosures we make
future filings of our Annual Reports on Form 10-®uarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and Current Repmmt§orm 8K, and any amendmel
thereto, as well as our proxy statements.

TRADEMARKS AND TRADE NAMES

We own or have rights to a number of trademarksjicg® marks, and trade names that we use in cotijunwith the operation of o
business, including the name and design mark “AR€ubent Solutions,” “ARC American Reprographics @amy ® ,” “Planwell ® ,”
“PlanWell PDS®,” “Riot Creative Imaging®,” and various design marks associated therewith. &Ve h service mark application pending
“SKYSITE” with the United States Patent and Trademark Offit8PTO). In addition, we own or have rights to was trademarks, servi
marks, and trade names that we use regionallyrijunotion with our operations. This report alsolunies trademarks, service marks and 1
names of other companies.




PART |

Item 1. Business

Our Company

ARC Document Solutions, Inc. (“ARC Document Solagg' “ARC,” “we,” “us,” or “our”), a Delaware corporation, is a leading docur

solutions provider to businesses of all types, waithemphasis on the noesidential segment of the architecture, engingeaimd constructic
(“AEC") industry. We help our customers reduce their cants improve efficiency in the use of their docurseimnprove their access ¢
control over documents, and offer a wide varietyvays to print, produce, distribute, collaborate @md store documents.

Our offerings include:

Managed Print ServiceSMPS”) — An onsite service where we install a cdete document solution platform in our customerf§ices or
an outsourced basis. We use our proprietary soffwslsacus, to capture, control, manage, print, aetfor and store documents. We i
supply, maintain, and manage entire office printiegworks, including printing equipment. We bill fillis service on a parse basis ar
issue a single consolidated invoice.

Facilities Managemen{*FM”) — An onsite service where we install larf@mat print devices and other related equipmenbun
customers’ offices on an outsourced basis, primdoif constructiorrelated project printing. We provide customers wdtdmplete co
recovery programs enabled by our proprietary saftwAbacus, which allows our customers to captur@ @ass through their proj
expenses related to print. We bill for this servdcea per-use basis and issue a single consolidatette.

Offsite Services- We operate 178ffsite service centers in major metropolitan méska the U.S. and abroad which offer our MPS
FM customers flexibility and overflow capacity dugi peak workloads, as well as local support andhteaance staff. Our service cen
also provide local customers with high-volume, pobjelated printing of construction documents, andeasingly support and enha
our customers’ scanning needs in archive and irdtion management (“AIM”) services.

Archive and Information Management (“AIM3We enable our customers to store information atalléctual property in a cloudase!
and searchable digital archive. We do this by sicenexisting paper documents or importing digitacdments, organizing them, ¢
storing them in our proprietary content managenseftivare. We also offer the ability to add docursetntthe digital archive as they
printed.

Specialized Color Printing We operate a nationwide network of production acsnfecused on color printing, finishing, and assknuf
graphic materials for regional and national retajléranchises, marketing departments, theme parkscultural institutions.

Web-Based Document Management Applicatiend/e develop and offer proprietary tools to our costes that facilitate proje
collaboration, manage print networks, track equipirfeeets, create and maintain project documenhiges, and other document
content management tasks.

Digital Shipping / Managed File TransferWe enable our customers to “distribute-then-prildicuments rather than printing locally .
then shipping physical documents to their finaltid@gion. Using our cloudbased software, ishipdocs, we save our customers
money, and support their “greetusiness practices by digitally transmitting docaimfiles closest to their delivery point, and t
printing and delivering locally from an ARC servicenter or from one of our partner locations arotivedworld.

Equipment and Supplies Sale¥Ve sell equipment and supplies primarily to custanie the AEC industry and provide ancillary see¢
such as service and maintenance.

The combination of our services allows us to prevadcomprehensive document management ecosystera amedocument, anywhere

the enterprise, can be captured, stored, manageessed, and distributed anywhere in the world.

Our online services are administered via a powetfalid solution hosted by Amazon which providestlieslass speed, reliabilii

scalability and security. In January 2015, we ldaetcSKYSITE, an integrated clodmdsed construction document management solutidh
automated mobile and desktop syncing capabilities.

We believe we are the largest document solutionsiger to the AEC market in North America, and tiidy national provider offerir

onsite, offsite and cloutdased document management solutions for regioaihnmal and global customers. We offer comprehenservice
across geographical boundaries and frequently Woilller a single monthly invoice, consolidating pasihg, vendor relations, a
administration for companies seeking a unified doeeat management platform.

5




We serve our clients' onsite in their offices ipagximately 8,500 locations, and offsite or virlyghrough a combination of 17&ervice
centers globally, a variety of wedased applications and software, and a global nm&tebservice partners. We operate in major metlitan
markets across the U.S., with meaningful operatioi@hina, Canada, and the United Kingdom.

Our origins lie in the reprographics industry and still maintain robust reprographics operationse Wélieve that we are the larg
reprographics company in the United States as meaddly revenue, number of customers, and numbsgrefce centers.

Our base of more than 90,0@0stomers includes most of the largest AEC firmdNorth America, and many of the top design
construction companies in the world. Our legacyhaslargest reprographics company in the U.S. hawed us to leverage our relationsh
domain expertise, and national presence as weéateed into a technology-enabled document solst@ompany.

Our largest customers are served by a corporaés $aice called Global Solutions. This sales fdecéocused on large regional ¢
national customers. Our diverse customer basetsdauto individual customer accounting for morarti% of our overall revenue.

ARC was organized as a limited liability companylenthe name American Reprographics Holdings L.[(!@oldings”) in 1997. In 200t
we reorganized as a Delaware corporation in coioreetith our initial public offering. While our seice centers historically marketed tt
offerings under local brand names, we consolidat@doperations under a single brand, “AR@,"2011 in order to highlight the scope
scale of our business, and to generate synergmsriaoverall national marketing efforts to the aalidating AEC market. At the end of 2012
formally changed our corporate name to “ARC Docuim®alutions, Inc.,” leaving our New York Stock Exige ticker symbol “ARC”
unchanged. We conduct our operations through owllyowned subsidiary, ARC Document Solutions, LLC, ad limited liability
company, and its affiliates.

Principal Products and Services
We report revenues from our service and produetrioijs under the following categories:
Onsite Servicesonsists of MPS and FM service offerings.

Digital Servicesconsists of digital document management servicedl &nds, including AIM, “digital shipping” and anaged file
transfer, software licensing, and technology cdirsykervices.

Color Servicegonsists of specialized digital color printing dimdshing services for our non-AEC and traditiod&C customer base.
This includes services provided under our Riot @vedmaging brand.

Traditional Reprographicsonsists of the management, distribution and pmmtiemand of black and white construction drawings
(frequently referred to as “blueprints”) and spieeifion books, with the majority of revenue repdrieom the sale of large- and small-
format black and white printing. These servicespovided "off customer site" at our service cesiter

Equipment and Supplie®nsists of reselling printing, imaging, and redba¢gjuipment, as well as supplies to customers pilyria the
AEC industry.

Operations

Our products and services are available from anguofl78service centers around the world, and nearly ablwfservices can be mz
available in our customersffices. Our geographic presence is concentrateédarl).S., with additional service centers in Candchina, an
the United Kingdom. Our corporate headquarterdaana@ed in Walnut Creek, California.

Historically, our business grew through acquisiido expand our share of the reprographics marieieahance our geographic footp
to serve our larger customers. Since our inceptierhave acquired more than 140 companies. As we dasolidated, diversified our sen
offerings, and optimized our operations during plast several years, we have limited recent acepris#ctivity in order to focus on orga
sales growth. Our origin as a company was in Qalié and our early acquisition activity was cortcated there. We still derive approxima
30% of our total revenue from California.

We operate a technology center in Silicon Vallethvapproximately 20 employees who develop, maintivd support our software.
operate a similar facility in Kolkata, India, witipproximately 140 employees who, in addition topsuping our efforts of our Silicon Vall
team, also support our research and developmesrtsefAll of our production facilities are connegteia a high-performance, dedicated, wide
area network, to facilitate data transmissionsnieh faom our customers, our operating facilities and cloud hosted by Amazon. We emplc
combination of proprietary and industry-leadinghtealogies to provide redundancy, backup and secofiall data in our systems.




Historically, the majority of our revenue has beafarived from customers engaged in the seasonalyasidential construction mark
While our Traditional Reprographics business i stiluenced by the nomesidential seasonality and building cycles, otreobfferings at
less so. Onsite Services are driven by the gewperati office documents and our customers' desirienfrove business processes and re
print-related costs. Color Services are affected bylretarketing calendars, advertising campaigns, aé agethe marketing needs of «
architectural and real estate development clie@tsr Digital Services are influenced primarily byetldesire for document workflc
improvements and our ability to market our techgglbased solutions. Equipment and Supplies Sales rarendby purchasing cycles
individual customers, as well as by new featuresadvancements by manufacturers.

As of December 31, 2014 , the company employedcqpately 2,600 employees.

Our Customers and Markets

We serve both the enterprise and project contemtagement needs of companies primarily within theCARdustry. Our custome
include senior management teams, IT and procuredegartments, project architects, engineers, gecensractors, and others.

The mix of services demanded by the AEC industmtiooes to shift toward document management foide wariety of document typ
provided at customer locations (represented prignési our Onsite Services revenues), and away fitgnhistorical emphasis on printing
largeformat black and white construction drawings in service centers (represented primarily by our ili@thl Reprographics revenue lir
We believe the market forces of the recent recasaml its aftermath are causing our customersanctinstruction industry to emphas
efficiency in their production and distribution jpfinted documents, to reduce their dependenceiohgs it relates to construction projects,
to improve access and control over all the documeelated to their business. We also believe tbasalidation in the AEC industry
contributing to this trend as companies seek tacecdcosts, eliminate redundant business practéres,procure products and services 1
vendors who can centrally serve their business avitbomprehensive offering.

We believe that these trends are advantageous forusur reasons: first, we are welbsitioned to provide our customers with
applications and cloud-based offerings to meetr themand for technologgnabled content management services; second, wensificatior
into services such as MPS allow us to capture tengr contracted revenue streams that are less edpgosthe volatility and cyclicality
projectrelated printing; third, as our customers mergejsotidate, and grow larger, we believe ARC becomearore compelling choi
because of our extensive geographic reach andyatuliact as a single-source supplier of documehitisns; and fourth, our markétading
presence as a traditional reprographer in majorapelitan areas allows us to capture lafgenat printing and document management \
associated with local building projects.

In addition to the AEC industry, we also providecdment management and printing services to custiimethe retail, technoloc
entertainment, and healthcare industries, amongr&ttA significant portion of our noAEC revenues are derived from supplying C
Services to customers with shoun, high quality, frequently updated promotionadivertising and marketing materials. We marketd
services under a separate brand known as RiotiGrdataging. Likewise, our Digital Services apptatompanies outside of the construc
industry, but with similar document management se&ttluding manufacturers, airlines, and healthterspital companies.

In general, we address customers based on sizgemgtaphic reach. Local markets tend to be higtdgrhented with a wide variety
specialized, geographically differentiated busingssctices. We serve smaller customers in thes&eatsawith service offerings aligned w
local market expectations. Larger regional, nati@ral international customers often consolidateclpasing and the acquisition of serv
through a single corporate department, and sedkatized management of document solutions. We sthiese customers with a corporate ¢
force called Global Solutions.

Competition

The level of competition varies in each of the areawhich we provide services. Further, we beliaeare unique; that no other comp
provides the complete portfolio of services anddpids we provide. We compete with different firmsour different business lines who
provide a portion of our services. However, we @b know of any other firm that can provide a fullite of physical and digital conte
management services similar to our offering. Weéelel service levels, breadth of offering, terms aadditions, price, quality, responsiven
and convenience to the customer are competitiveeiés in each of the industry segments in whiclt@rapete.

In addressing larger local and regional custonthexe are several companies that provide onsitergmubgraphic print services, but
general these companies cannot provide or integadte/are or technology that enables the digitahagement of documents and central
cost control management that we provide. More $ipatly, in our local onsite services, we often quete against print equipment resell
These resellers are limited to enabling custonpaiat needs by selling or leasing print
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equipment to the customer and the customer theretys a fixed cost. In comparison, our customexg jper use and take advantage of
print recovery and document management softwar@céd and PlanWell. In our Traditional Reprograplsing Color Services busines:
local copy shops and sedérve franchises are often aggressive competitorgrinting business, but rarely offer the breadthdocumer
management and logistics services we do.

With regard to large national and internationaltoo®rs, there are no other document solutions coiepan the U.S. with the natiol
presence and global reach that we have establislutdye often compete against equipment manufastuned business suppliers who ¢
some of the same products and services we do.ddetarvices are offered by large printing/multifimeal device manufacturers suct
Xerox, Canon, Konica Minolta, Ricoh, and Sharp, mgst offerings from these companies are focusedeling equipment as opposec
ARC's offering of comprehensive document managementcssr for both project and enterprise documentsthiey, our deep knowledge
the AEC industry document workflows, which is ingorated into our software, provides us an advangagénst local printers and natio
equipment manufacturers.

We believe that we have a strong competitive pmsith the marketplace for the following reasons:

Strong domain expertiseNo other national vendor/service provider possesse document management and technology exptréiteve
have in the AEC market. Construction professioialge highly specialized needs in document capgivertierm storage, manageme
fulfillment, distribution, and archival services.aNbelieve our domain expertise is unmatched thémleur legacy in reprographics ¢
software development.

Customer relationships in AEC industrpur relationships with our local customers fregflyiespan generations, and we do business
nearly all of the top 100 AEC companies in the UrSaddition, our Global Solutions sales force leatablished longerm contrac
relationships with 22 of the largest 50 AEC firnvge believe this provides a competitive advantagdebgraging our success throi
referrals.

Service center footprintWe possess an extensive national network of eersgnters creating an extraordinary distributiod eustome
service solution that can cater to both large andllscustomers. We operate service centers in itia@e 140 cities in the U.S., and in
states. We also have a significant market presien€anada and China, and growing operations iraladid the U.K. We are not awar¢
any other provider of MPS that has as extensivetaark to supplement their onsite services andidewverflow and remote docum
management and printing capabilities.

Equipment agnosticWe are not required to sell or use any partichfands of equipment, nor do we manufacture equipnvee are fre
to place the products best suited for the requias in our own service centers or in our customeffices, regardless of manufactu
Additionally, with respect to our Onsite Services, our customers' document management needs ewadvetheir respective contri
terms, we have the ability to replace the equipnpeatiously deployed to ensure that the equipmbatdeal at our customers' sites are
suited for the required tasks. This, combined wfi#h competitive market for printing and imaging gwots, provides us with an advant
relative to onsite service providers owned by eouéipt manufacturers.

Capabilities in a wide variety of formatSeveral equipment manufacturers who also marlketaged print services do not produce the
range of large- and smdthrmat equipment demanded by the AEC, manufactuang building industries. In addition, we are astare o
any manufacturers that provide the breadth of sesvand technology related to large- and sifoatirat document production that
possess.

Unique combination of Onsite, Offsite, and Clouddzh offerings:We are the only national company that integratésddcumer
production at customer sites (Onsite), (2) docunmoduction at company service centers (Offsite)] &3) digital management
documents in the cloud. We have proprietary teasmobuilt by our own development team that intesagith our production machini
We believe we are the only company that both degeldocument management software and manages themeon that produc
documents.

Suppliers and Vendors

We purchase or lease equipment for use in our ptamufacilities and at our customersites. We also purchase paper, toner and
consumables for the operation of our and our custenproduction equipment. As a higblume purchaser, we believe we receive favo
prices as compared to other service providerspaicd increases have been historically passed ondtmmers.

Our primary vendors of equipment, maintenance sesyiand reprographics supplies include Canon iSogiAmerica (Océ), Azerty, a
Veritiv, formerly Xpedx. Purchases from these veasdduring 2014 comprised approximately 38%¥our total purchases of inventory
supplies. Although there are a limited number gigiers that could supply our inventory, we belieargy shortfalls from existing suppli
would be absorbed from other suppliers on compartgsms.

Research and Development




We conduct research and development to suppordebiggn and testing of new technology or enhancesremd maintenance to exist
technology. Such costs are expensed as incurrethply recorded to cost of sales. In total, reseacd development costs amounte®éo:
million , $5.5 million , and $5.4 million during éfiscal years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 2@h@ , respectively.

Proprietary Rights

We rely on a combination of copyright, trademarkd anade secret laws, license agreements, nondiseloand noreompetitiot
agreements, reseller agreements, customer contaactdechnical measures to establish and protgcights in our proprietary technology. '
also rely on a variety of technologies that areriged from third parties to perform key functions.

We have registered “ARC Document Solutions,” aslaslour historical name and logo, “ARC AmericarpRgraphics Company As
service marks in the U.S. with the United Stategetaand Trademark Office (USPTO). We have a serwitark application, pendi
registration, for “SKYSITE” with the USPTO, and wave registered “PlanWell,” “PlanWell PD&hd "Riot Creative Imaging" as tradems
with the USPTO and in other countries. We do noh @y other registered trademarks or service markany patents, that are material to
business.

For a discussion of the risks associated with saprpetary rights, see Iltem 1A — “Risk Factors G4r failure to adequately protect
proprietary aspects of our technology, includingrSKTE, PlanWell, and Abacus, may cause us to logeket share.”

Executive Officers of the Registrant
The following sets forth certain information regiaglall of our executive officers as of March 3,180

Name Age Position
Kumarakulasingam Suriyakumar 61 Chairman, President and Chief Executive OfficeieDior
Jorge Avalos 39 Chief Financial Officer
Rahul K. Roy 55 Chief Technology Officer
Dilantha Wijesuriya 53 Chief Operating Officer

Vice President, Senior Corporate Counsel and Catpor
D. Jeffery Grimes 51 Secretary

Kumarakulasingam (“Suri”) Suriyakumahnas served as our President and Chief ExecutiviegdBince June 1, 2007, and he served ¢
Companys President and Chief Operating Officer from 199itiluhis appointment as Chief Executive Officer. Quly 24, 200¢
Mr. Suriyakumar was appointed Chairman of our BazrBirectors. Mr. Suriyakumar served as an advifddoldings from March 1998 un
his appointment as a director of the Company iroat 2004. Mr. Suriyakumar joined Micro Device, .lfgur predecessor company) in 1¢
He became the Vice President of Micro Device, inc1990. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Suriyakar was employed with Aitke
Spence & Co. LTD, a highly diversified conglomeratel one of the five largest corporations in Sikaa

Jorge Avaloswas appointed Chief Financial Officer of the Compam February 1, 2015. Prior to his appointmenCtoef Financie
Officer, Mr. Avalos served as Chief Accounting @#i and Vice President Finance of the Company tipasi he held since April 14, 20:
Mr. Avalos joined the Company in June 2006 as tlen@any’s Director of Finance, and became the Cogiga@orporate Controller
December 2006, and Vice President, Corporate Cltettioc December 2010. From March 2005 through J20@6, Mr. Avalos was employ
with Vendare Media Group, an online network andialomedia company, as its controller. From Septeni898 through March 20C
Mr. Avalos was employed with PricewaterhouseCoopdrB, a global professional services firm focusimg audit and assurance, tax
advisory services.

Rahul K. Royoined Holdings as its Chief Technology OfficerSeptember 2000. Prior to joining the Company, Myy Rias the founde
President and Chief Executive Officer of MirrorPIlschnologies, Inc., which developed software far teprographics industry, from Aug
1993 until it was acquired by the Company in 199%. Roy also served as the Chief Operating OffieEinPrint, a provider of printin
software, duplication, packaging, assembly andidigion services to technology companies, from3L08til it was acquired by the Comp:
in 1999.

Dilantha ("Dilo") Wijesuriyajoined Ford Graphics, a former division of the Camyp, in January 1991. He subsequently became pre
of that division in 2001, and became a Companyoregi operations head in 2004, which position haimed until his appointment as
Companys Senior Vice President, National Operations in #si?008. Mr. Wijesuriya was appointed Chief OpgagpOfficer of the Compar
on February 25, 2011. Prior to his employment \hith Company, Mr. Wijesuriya was
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a divisional manager with Aitken Spence & Co. LTDqighly diversified conglomerate and one of tlve fargest corporations in Sri Lanka.

D. Jeffery Grimesvas appointed Vice President, Senior Corporate €slusnd Corporate Secretary in March 2014. Prigoiting the
Company, Mr. Grimes was Vice President, Legal AffaGeneral Counsel and Corporate Secretary ofigmacorporation, a publicly trad
specialty pharmaceutical company focused on theldpment and commercialization of drug productssievere respiratory diseases. F
2000 to 2013, Mr. Grimes worked ashpuse counsel for medical device, specialty phaemidzal, and technology companies servin
various senior corporate legal roles. Mr. Grimeseieed joint J.D./M.B.A. degrees and a Bacheloggrde in Finance, from University
Colorado at Boulder.

Available Information

ARC Document Solutions, Inc. uses its corporatesitepwww.earc.com, as a channel for routine distributionroportant informatiot
including news releases, analyst presentationsfianadcial information. The company files with orrfishes to the SEC Annual Reports
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Curfieaeports on Form & and any amendments to those reports, as wellay [statemen
and annual reports to shareholders, and, from tiintiene, other documents. The reports and otheumeats filed with or furnished to the S
are available to investors on or through our cafmmwebsite free of charge as soon as reasonaddyiqable after we electronically file th
with or furnish them to the SEC. In addition, thebfic may read and copy any of the materials we \iith the SEC at the SE€Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington R0549. The public may obtain information on thempion of the Public Referer
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SB330. The SEC maintains an internet site locatédtpt//www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy
information statements and other information remaydssuers, such as ARC, that file electronicalith the SEC. ARG SEC filings and oth
documents pertaining to the conduct of its busiwassbe found on the “Investorgage of its website. These documents are avaiialgent tc
any shareholder who requests a copy by writingyardling ARC Document Solutions.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business faces significant risks. The followiigl factors could adversely affect our result©pérations and financial condition
the price of our common stock. We may encountdssrin addition to those described below. Additiorisks and uncertainties not currel
known to us or that we currently deem immateriay miso impair or adversely affect our results oém@tions and financial condition.

We are highly dependent on the architectural, engering and construction (AEC) industry and any dew in that industry couls
adversely affect our future revenue and profitalbyli

We estimate that customers in the AEC industry actzal for approximately 77% of our net sales fer year ended December 31, 2014
therefore our results largely depend on the strenfithat industry. Our historical operating resukflect the cyclical and variable nature of
AEC industry. We believe that the industry gengrakperiences downturns several months after a lowiin the general economy, and
there may be a similar delay in the recovery of AR industry following a recovery of the generabromy. A downturn in the AEC indus
would diminish demand for some of our products sexvices, and would therefore negatively affectrewenues and have a material adv
effect on our business, operating results and &igdicondition.

Adverse domestic and global economic conditions aki&tuption of financial and commercial real estatearkets could have a mater
adverse effect on our business and results of opierss.

During the past several years, domestic and intemel financial markets have experienced signiftadisruption, including, among ott
things, extreme volatility and severely diminisheguidity and credit availability. These developnerand the related severe domestic
international economic downturn could adverselyeetffour business and financial condition in a numdfeways, including effects beyo
those that were experienced in recent previoussémes. A prolonged economic downturn may advera#éfct the ability of our customers ¢
suppliers to obtain financing and to perform thelligations under agreements with us. These réstiE could result in a decrease in
cancellation of, existing business, could limit nbusiness, and could negatively affect our abilitycollect on our accounts receivable ¢
timely basis, if at all. These events may, in thgragate, have a material adverse effect on outtsesf operations and financial condition.

Because a significant portion of our overall cosise fixed, our earnings are highly sensitive to alnges in revenue.

Our network of service centers, equipment andedlatipport activities involves substantial fixedtsovhich cannot be adjusted quick!
respond to declines in demand for our servicese¥tienate approximately 36% of our overall costsenfeted for the year ended Decembet
2014 . As a consequence, our results of operaticnsubject to relatively high levels of
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volatility and our earnings could deteriorate réypid the face of declining revenues because oilityato reduce fixed costs in the shderm is
limited. If we fail to manage our fixed costs appriately, or to maintain adequate cash reserveower such costs, we may suffer mat
adverse effects on our results of operations arahfiial condition.

Impairment of goodwill may adversely affect futuresults of operations.

We have intangible assets, including goodwill atiteoidentifiable acquired intangibles on our baksheet due to prior acquisitions
September 30, 2014 , we assessed goodwill for imgeit and determined that goodwill was not impaired

The results of our impairment analysis are as glgicular point in time. If our assumptions regagdfuture forecasted revenue
profitability of our reporting units are not achél; we may be required to record additional goddwmipairment charges in future periods
any such change constitutes a triggering event fwithe quarter in which we perform our annualdyeid impairment test.

Competition in our industry and innovation by ourompetitors may hinder our ability to execute our ¢iness strategy and advers
affect our profitability.

The markets for our products and services are yigbmpetitive, with competition primarily at locahd regional levels. We comp
primarily based on the level and quality of custorservice, technological leadership, and price. fiture success depends, in part, or
ability to continue to improve our service and prodofferings, and develop and integrate new teldgyosolutions. In addition, current &
prospective customers may decide to perform cedeivices themselves instead of outsourcing thesécss to us. These competil
pressures could adversely affect our sales andtidated results of operations.

We also face the possibility that competition veitintinue to increase, particularly if copy and prig or business services compa
choose to compete in lines of business similaruig.dMany of these companies are substantiallyelaagd have significantly greater finan
resources than us, which could place us at a catiwpetlisadvantage. In addition, we could encoumt@mpetition in the future from larg
well-capitalized companies such as equipment dealersyatem integrators that can produce their ownneldlyy and leverage their exist
distribution channels. Any such future competitomuld adversely affect our business and reducéubuire revenue and profitability.

If we are unable to charge for our value-added siens to offset declines in print volumes, our lomgrn revenue could decline.

Our customers value the ability to view and orddmtp over the internet and print to output devicetheir own offices and other locatic
throughout the country and the world. In 2014 , draditional Reprographics sales represented appaigly 27%of our total net sales, a
our Onsite Services represented approximately 82%ur total net sales. Both categories of revesmagegenerally derived from a charge
square foot of printed material. Future technolagyances may further facilitate and improve ourtausrs’ ability to reduce print and t
associated costs thereof. As technology contimu@sprove, this trend toward printing on an “asded’ basis could result in further decrea
printing volumes and sales decline in the longemtd-ailure to offset these declines in printindwwes by changing how we charge for
services and develop additional revenue sourcds significantly affect our business and reducelong term revenue, resulting in an adv
effect on our results of operations and financaadition.

We derive a significant percentage of net salesnfravithin the State of California and our busines®uald be disproportionately harm
by an economic downturn or natural disaster affeag California.

We derived approximately 30% of our net sales ii4@om our operations in California. As a result, are dependent to a large ex
upon the AEC industry in California and, accordingire sensitive to economic factors affecting A&dfivity in California, including gener
and local economic conditions, macroeconomic trepdstical factors affecting commercial and resitial real estate development and na
disasters (including drought, earthquakes and ikdélglf. Any adverse developments affecting Califarobuld have a disproportionat
negative effect on our results of operations andrfcial condition.

Our growth strategy depends, in part, on our ahjlito successfully market and execute several défer but related, service offering
Failure to do so could impede our future growth aradiversely affect our competitive position.

As part of our growth strategy, we intend to com¢irto offer and grow a variety of service offerinigat are relatively new to the compe
Our efforts will be affected by our ability to adginew customers for our new service offeringsvall as sell the new service offerings
existing customers. If we fail to procure new costos, our growth may be adversely affected and wa imcur operating losses as a result
failure to realize revenue from investments madeew service offerings.
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We are dependent upon our vendors to continue t@pEy us equipment, parts, supplies, and services@nhparable terms and prir
levels as the business grows.

Our access to equipment, parts, supplies, andcesndepends upon our relationships with, and oilityatp purchase these items
competitive terms from our principal vendors. Theeadors are not required to use us to distribluedr equipment and are generally fre
change the prices and other terms at which théycsek. In addition, we compete with the sellirifpes of some of these vendors. Signific
deterioration in relationships with, or in the fitegal condition of, these significant vendors coblile an adverse effect on our ability to
equipment as well as our ability to provide effeetservice and technical support. If one of themeders terminates or significantly curtails
relationship with us, or if one of these vendorases operations, we would be forced to expandesationships with our other existing venc
or seek out new relationships with previously uusendors.

Our failure to adequately protect the proprietargects of our technology, including SKYSITE®, Plalil® and Abacus®may caus
us to lose market share.

Our success depends on our ability to protect aesepve the proprietary aspects of our technolaoggyrts. We rely on a combinatior
copyright, trademark and trade secret protectiamnfidentiality agreements, license agreements, awmpetition agreements, rese
agreements, customer contracts, and technical me=atm establish and protect our rights in our petary technologies. These protectic
however, may not be adequate to remedy harm wersiifie to misappropriation of our proprietary rghy third parties. Furthermore, we n
from time to time, be subject to intellectual prdgditigation which can be expensive, a burdennsmnagement’s time and our Company’
resources, and the outcome of any such litigatiagy be uncertain.

In performing our document management services, Wandle customers’confidential information. Our failure to protect ot
customers’confidential information against security breache®uld damage our reputation, harm our business aadversely affect ot
results of operations.

Our document management services involve the hamddf our customerstonfidential information. Any compromise of secy)
accidental loss or theft of customer data in owgspssion could damage our reputation and expogerisk of liability, which could harm o
business and adversely affect our consolidatedtsesiuoperation.

Added risks are associated with our internationglerations.

We have international operations in China, Indiee United Kingdom, Canada, Hong Kong and Australipproximately 14%of oul
revenues for fiscal 201vere derived from our international operationshvdpproximately 7% derived from China. Our futueganues, cos
of operations and net income could be adverselyctdtl by a number of factors related to our intiwnal operations, including change:
economic conditions from country to country, cumerfluctuations, changes in a counsypolitical condition, trade protection meast
licensing and other legal requirements and localgsues.

A large percentage of our cash and cash equivalesrts held outside of the United States, and we doo# subject to repatriation delays
and costs which could reduce our financial flexikiy.

A large percentage of our cash and cash equivadeatsurrently held outside the United States. Rigimn of some of the funds could be
subject to delay for local country approvals andlddave potential adverse tax consequences. Asudt of holding cash and cash equivalents
outside of the U.S., our financial flexibility mée reduced.

Our business could suffer if we fail to attract, t&n, and successfully integrate skilled personnel.

We believe that our ability to attract, retain, anatcessfully integrate qualified personnel isaaltto our success. As we continue to p
more emphasis on document management and stoidgeotegy, our need to hire and retain software @thér technology focused persor
has and can be expected to continue to increasapétdion for such personnel, particularly in th@enS-rancisco Bay Area, is intense. If
lose key personnel and/or are unable to recruilifipcapersonnel, our ability to manage and grow business will be adversely affected
addition, the loss of the services of one or moeentmers of our senior management team would digupbusiness and impede our abilit
successfully execute our business strategy.

The market prices of our common stock may be vadativhich could cause the value of an investmeniiar stock to decline.

The market price of our common stock may fluctustbstantially due to a variety of factors, manywdfich are beyond our contr
Between January 1, 2014 and March 6, 2015, thénggeice of our common stock has fluctuated frofowa of $5.43 to a high of $10.36 |
share. Factors that may contribute to fluctuatiorte market prices of our common stock include:
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. failure to sustain an active, liquid trading metrkor our shares;

« changes in financial estimates or recommendatigreeburities analysts or failure to meet analysgformance expectatiol
. changes in market valuations of similar companies

. changes in our capital structure, such as fusswances of securities or the incurrence of debt;

. sales of our capital stock by our directors c@Hive officers;

. the gain or loss of significant customers;

» actual or anticipated developments in our bussiner our competitors' businesses, suclarasuncements by us or
competitors of significant contracts, acquisitiamstrategic alliances, or in the competitive lavagge generally;

. litigation involving us, our industry or both;

. additions or departures of key personnel,

. investors' general perception of us; and

. changes in general economic, industry and maxieditions.

The stock markets in general have experienced auifiest volatility that has often been unrelatedhte operating performance of partici
companies. These types of broad market fluctuatioeng adversely affect the trading price of our camratock.

In the past, stockholders have sometimes institséedrities class action litigation against comesauriollowing periods of volatility in tt
market price of their securities. Any similar laigon against us could result in substantial cafiteert management's attention as well as
other resources and could have a material advéfeset en our business, results of operations amahftial condition.

Damage or disruption to our facilities, includinguw technology center, could impair our ability toffectively provide our services a
may have a significant effect on our revenues, empes and financial condition.

Our IT systems are an important part of our openati We currently store customer data at servestetidoy Amazon and at our technol
center located in Silicon Valley near known earticu fault zones. Although we have redundant sysi@masoffsite backup procedures
place, interruption in service, damage to or desivn of our technology center or a disruption of data storage processes resulting
sustained process abnormalities, human error,oh¢ésrorism, violence, war or a natural disasseih as fire, earthquake or flood, could re
in delays, in reduced levels of customer serviog lasve a material adverse effect on the marketshich we operate and on our busir
operations.

Although we currently maintain general property dae insurance, if we incur losses from uninsurezhesy we could incur significe
expenses which would adversely affect our restilgperations and financial condition.

Results of tax examinations may adversely affect @uture results of operations.

We are subject to various tax examinations on goinig basis. Adverse results of tax examinationsrftome, payroll, value added, sales
based and other taxes may require future mateapayments if we are unable to sustain our pasitith the relevant jurisdiction. Whe
appropriate, we have made accruals for these mattach are reflected in our Consolidated Balantee® and Statements of Operations.

Our debt instruments impose certain restrictions onr ability to operate which in turn could negaty affect our ability to respond
business and market conditions and therefore coblive adverse effect on our business and resultspdrations.

As of December 31, 2014 , we had $203.9 millioroutstanding short and lortgrm borrowings under term loans, lines of crealitc
capital leases, excluding trade payables. The teftise agreements under which this indebtednessimcarred may limit or restrict, amc
other things, our ability to incur certain additdmebt, make certain restricted payments, consumo&tain asset sales, and enter into ce
transactions with affiliates.

We are also required to maintain specified findn@#os, including leverage and fixed charge cagerratios, as outlined in our Tern
Credit Agreement. Our inability to meet these matiould result in the acceleration of the repaynoétite related
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debt, the termination of our revolving line of citethe increase in our effective cost of fundghe crossdefault of other credit arrangeme
As a result, our ability to operate may be restdcand our ability to respond to business and nmaxieditions may be limited, which col
have an adverse effect on our business and opgrasuilts.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

At the end of 2014 , we operated 178 service centéiwhich 156 were in the United States, 9 war€anada, 10 were in Chinaw2re ir
London, England andih India. We also occupied technology centers lit@i Valley, California and Kolkata, India, as Wa$ other facilitie:
including our executive offices located in Walnue€k, California.

In total the Company occupied approximately 1.diamlsquare feet as of December 31, 2014 .

We lease nearly all of our service centers, eacuofidministrative facilities and our technolognters. The two facilities that we own
subject to liens under our credit agreement. Iritefdto the facilities that are owned, our fixessats are comprised primarily of machinery
equipment, vehicles, and computer equipment. Wiemelthat our facilities are adequate and apprtgfiar the purposes for which they
currently used in our operations and are well nadetd.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On October 21, 2010, a former employee, indivigualid on behalf of a purported class consistingllafon-exempt employees who work
or worked for American Reprographics Company, L.laGd American Reprographics Company in the Sta@abifornia at any time from
October 21, 2006 through the present, filed aroadgainst the Company in the Superior Court off@ala for Orange County. The compla
alleges, among other things, that the Company té@dlthe California Labor Code by failing to (i) pide meal and rest periods, or
compensation in lieu thereof, (ii) timely pay wagkes at termination, and (iii) that those practials® violate the California Business and
Professions Code. The relief sought includes damagstitution, penalties, interest, costs, anutiadlys’ fees and such other relief as the cour
deems proper. On March 15, 2013, the Company paatexd in a private mediation session with claimaodunsel which did not result in
resolution of the claim. Subsequent to the mediadiession, the mediator issued a proposal thabe@epted by both parties. The Company
received preliminary court approval of the settlamand awaits final court approval. The Company ddability of $0.9 million as of
December 31, 2014 related to the claim, whichesgmnts management's best estimate based on inifamraggilable.

On February 1, 2013, the Company filed a civil ctaim against a competitor and a former employetaénSuperior Court of California
for Orange County, which alleged, among other cfaithe misappropriation of ARC trade secrets; ngnpebprietary customer lists that were
used to communicate with the Company's customeas imttempt to unfairly acquire their businessrior litigation with the competitor based
on related facts, in 2007 the competitor enteréal ansettlement agreement and stipulated judgménich included an injunction. The
Company instituted this suit to stop the defendiamh using similar unfair business practices agditria the Southern California market. The
case proceeded to trial in May 2014, and a jurgicemwas entered for the defendants. In Decembg4 2bie court awarded the defendant
attorneys' fees related to the case. In Februat$,28RC entered into a settlement with the defehdéth regards to attorneys' fees. Legal f
including the settlement with the defendant, asgedi with the litigation totaled $3.8 million in 20 and were recorded as selling, general anc
administrative expense.

In addition to the matters described above, the 2o is involved in various additional legal prodiegs and other legal matters fr
time to time in the normal course of business. Thenpany does not believe that the outcome of artlgesfe matters will have a material ef
on its consolidated financial position, result®pérations or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Skdwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

Our common stock, par value $0.001, is listed @enNlew York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the stegknbol “ARC". The followinc
table sets forth for the fiscal periods indicateel high and low sales prices per share of our comstack as reported by the NYSE.

2014 2013

High Low High Low
First Quarter $ 851 % 6.5¢ $ 3.0 $ 2.1z
Second Quarter $ 79z % 567 $ 428t % 2.7¢
Third Quarter $ 83C % 54C $ 524 $ 4.0C
Fourth Quarter $ 1067 $ 8.1C $ 9.3t $ 4.5¢

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative 5-ytetal return to shareholders of ARC Document Sohgi common stock relative to t
cumulative total returns of (a) the Russell 2000ei (b) a customized peer group of 15 companiestified as: (1) having a business-to
business focus, (2) offering outsourced/managedcssy, (3) having a digital or technology servibattis significant to their customer offeri
and (4) involved in print publishing.

The graph assumes that the value of the investimemite company common stock, in the peer group, and the indegluding
reinvestment of dividends) was $100 on Decembe3Q9 and tracks it through December 31, 2014.
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2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

ARC Document Solutions, Inc. 100.0( 108.2: 65.4¢ 36.52 117.2¢ 145.7¢
Russell 2000 100.0( 126.8¢ 121.5¢ 141.4: 196.3¢ 205.9¢
Managed Services & Publishing Peer Group 100.0( 126.7¢ 125.0¢ 165.5: 230.2¢ 233.6¢

The stock price performance included in the grepbve is not necessarily indicative of future stpdke performance.

Holders

As of February 23, 2015 , the approximate numbestaoc¢kholders of record of our common stock was ,18dd the closing price of ¢
common stock was $9.3&r share as reported by the NYSE. Because mathedfhares of our common stock are held by brokedsothe
institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are Wmab estimate the total number of beneficial owneapresented by these stockholde:
record.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash dividends orcommon stock. We currently intend to retain afhitable funds and any futt
earnings for use in the operation of our busines$ @ not anticipate paying any cash dividendshi foreseeable future. Any futi
determination to declare cash dividends will be enadthe discretion of our board of directors, sabjo compliance with Delaware corpol
law, certain covenants under our debt instrumetishwrestrict or limit our ability to declare orydividends, and will depend on our finan
condition, results of operations, capital requiratae general business conditions, and other fadtwat our board of directors may de
relevant.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

Information regarding the securities authorizedi$suance under our equity compensation plans edound under Item 12 of this Ann
Report on Form 10-K.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(a) Total (c) Total Number of Shares  (d) Maximum Number of

Number of Shares That May Yet Be

Shares (b) Average Purchased as Part of Purchased Under the Plan:

Purchased(1) Price Paid per Publicly Announced Plans
Period (in thousands) Share(1) or Programs or Programs

October 1, 2014—October 31, 2014 9 $ 10.01 — —
November 1, 2014—November 30, 2014 — — — —
December 1, 2014—December 31, 2014 — — — —
Total 9 % 10.01] — —

(1) Our stock plan provides us with the right to dedurcwithhold, or require employees to remit to ais,amount sufficient to satisfy ¢
applicable tax withholding requirements applicablstockbased compensation awards. To the extent permétegdloyees may elect
satisfy all or part of such withholding requirementith the Company's repurchase of shares havifagr anarket value equal to t
minimum statutory tax withholding rate that coukel imposed on the transaction. All shares showhigtable were repurchased dui
the fourth quarter of 2014 in connection with tle&lement of vested restricted stock awards tefyatiax withholding requirements.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected historical financial data presentddvbés derived from the audited consolidated firahstatements of ARC Documt
Solutions for the fiscal years ended December 8142 2013 , 2012, 2011 , and 2QIhe selected historical financial data does noport tc
represent what our financial position or result®pérations might be for any future period or datee financial data set forth below shoulc
read in conjunction with “Management’'s Discussiamd aAnalysis of Financial Condition and Results ope@ations” and our audite
consolidated financial statements included elsewfrethis report.

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)
Statement of Operations Data:
Service Sales

Onsite Services (1) $ 135,02( $ 121,55 $ 108,81 $ 100,68: $ 89,99:
Traditional Reprographics 113,17¢ 116,67: 126,78! 145,44¢ 173,36:
Color 90,31( 83,60: 79,08( 84,06: 81,55
Digital 33,37t 33,53¢ 35,57¢ 38,02( 39,63¢
Total service sales 371,88 355,35¢ 350,26( 368,21: 384,54¢
Equipment and Supplies Sales 51,87: 51,83: 55,85¢ 54,51¢ 57,09(
Total net sales 423,75t 407,19 406,11¢ 422,73. 441,63
Cost of sales 279,47¢ 272,85 282,59¢ 288,43: 299,30
Gross profit 144,27t 134,33 123,51¢ 134,29 142,33.
Selling, general and administrative expenses 107,67. 96,80( 93,07: 101,31! 107,74
Amortization of intangibles 5,98 6,612 11,03t 18,71¢ 11,657
Goodwill impairment — — 16,701 65,44« 38,26:
Restructuring expense 177 2,54¢ 3,32( — —
Income (loss) from operations 29,84: 28,38 (61€) (51,179 (15,33))
Other income, net (96) (10€) (200 (103) (15€)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 5,59¢ 16,33¢ — — 2,50¢
Interest expense, net 14,56( 23,731 28,16¢ 31,10¢ 24,09:
Income (loss) before income tax provisior
(benefit) 9,77¢ (11,589 (28,687) (82,17 (41,776
Income tax provision (benefit) 2,34¢ 2,98¢ 2,78¢ 50,93: (14,18¢)
Net income (loss) 7,431 (14,574 (31,46%) (133,109 (27,59()
(Income) loss attributable to noncontrolling
interest (15€) (74¢) (503 21 88
Net income (loss) attributable to ARC
Document Solutions $ 727 % (15,329 $ (31,969 $ (133,08) $ (27,507)

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to ARC
shareholders:

Basic $ 0.1€¢ $ 037 % (0.70 $ (299 ¢ (0.63)

Diluted $ 0.1t $ (0.3%) $ 0.7 $ (299 % (0.67)
Weighted average common shares outstandir

Basic 46,24: 45,85¢ 45,66¢ 45,40: 45,21

Diluted 47,08¢ 45,85¢ 45,66¢ 45,40: 45,21
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Other Financial Data:
Depreciation and amortization
Capital expenditures
Interest expense, net

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Long term obligations

Total ARC stockholders’ equity
Working capital

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
$ 34,13t $ 34,74 $ 39,52: $ 47,87¢ % 45,64¢
$ 13,26¢ $ 18,19. $ 20,34¢  $ 15,55 % 8,63¢
$ 1456 $ 23,737 $ 28,16 $ 31,10¢ $ 24,09
As of December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
$ 22,63t $ 27,36: $ 28,02: $ 25437 $ 26,29:
$ 414,06¢ $ 409,92 $ 41583¢ % 441,35 $ 569,08!
$ 212,83 % 233,05¢ $ 241,42¢ $ 240,90 % 221,08t
$ 102,770 $ 91,69( $ 103,89t $ 130,67 $ 256,50¢
$ 20,66 $ 28,70: $ 40,65( $ 40,40 % 22,38)

(1) Represents services provided at our custorsées, which includes both Managed Print Serv{d#8S) and Facilities Management

(FM).
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Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionna Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctwith the other sections of this Annual RepartForm 10K, including Part 1
“ltem 1 — Business”; Part |, “Iltem 1A — Risk Fac&r Part I, “ltem 6 — Selected Financial Data”; ah Part Il, “ltem 8 — Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Business Summary

ARC Document Solutions, Inc. (“ARC Document Sola8g “ARC,” “we,” “us,” or “our”) is the nation's leading document solut
provider for the architectural, engineering andstorction (“AEC”) industry while also providing doment solutions to businesses of all types

We help our customers reduce their costs and ingppraductivity of their documents, improve theicass and control over docume
and offer a wide variety of ways to print, produdistribute, collaborate on, and store documents.

We have categorized our service and product offerin report distinct sales recognized from ouri@rServices, Color Services, Dig
Services, Traditional Reprographics Services, aquifinent and Supplies Sales.

Onsite Servicesonsists of placement, management, and optimizafigmint and imaging equipment in our customéagilities, relieving
them of the burden of owning and managing printickessyzand print networks, and shifting their costs t'per-use’basis. Onsite Servic
sales are driven by the ongoing print needs ofomstomers, and are less exposed to the episodjeflaimat printing needs associa
with construction projects.

Color Servicegonsists of specialized color printing and finighservices to marketing departments, regional atidmal retailers, and @
traditional AEC customer base. This includes sewvisrovided under our Riot Creative Imaging brand.

Digital Servicesconsists of digital document management servicesdl &iinds, including archiving and information nagement (“AlM’),
“digital shipping” and managed file transfer, sadte licensing, and technology consulting services.

Traditional Reprographicsconsists of the management, distribution, and fmmtlemand of black and white construction draw
(frequently referred to as “blueprints”) and spiegifion books. It derives a majority of its reverfuem largeformat black and whi
printing.

Equipment and Supplie®nsists of reselling printing, imaging, and rete¢guipment to customers primarily in the AEC irtdus

We have expanded our business beyond the servieeésaditionally provided to the AEC industry in thast and are currently focusec
growing managed print services, technold@sed document management services, and digital ioohging, as we believe the mix of serv
demanded by the AEC industry continues to shiftamvdocument management at customer locationse@§epted primarily by our Ons
Services revenues), and away from its historicgbleasis on printing of large-format black and whitenstruction drawings “offsitein oui
service centers (represented primarily by our Ti@al Reprographics revenues). This belief is sujgal by the fact that our Onsite Service
2014 were 32% of our total sales as compared to % raditional Reprographics. Onsite Services s targest service offering a
continues to grow at a rate of more than 10% ora-gver-year basis. In comparison, our revenueim2013 consisted of 30%f our sale
coming from Onsite Services as compared to 29%ifloadl Reprographics.

We deliver our services through a nationwide nekwof service centers, regionally-based technicacigists, locallypased salt
executives, and a national/regional sales forcavknas Global Solutions.

Acquisition activity during the last three yearsieeen minimal and did not materially affect ouem@l business.

We believe we offer a distinct portfolio of sengceithin the AEC industry that include our legaeprographics business as well as
newer offerings in Onsite Services, Color Serviee®] Digital Services. Our customer base for ttsesgices, however, is still primarily 1
AEC industry. Based on our analysis of our opegatisults, we estimate that sales to the AEC imgustcounted for approximately 7786
our net sales for the year ended December 31, 2@ith the remaining 23% consisting of sales to-A&C industries.

We identify operating segments based on the vatimsiness activities that earn revenue and incpemse, whose operating results
reviewed by the Company's Chief Executive Officeinp is our Company's chief operating decision ma&erce our operating segments t
similar products and services, classes of custgnpeosluction processes, distribution methods amsh@wmic characteristics, we have a sil
reportable segment. See Note 2 “Summary of Signifié\ccounting Policies” for further information.

Costs and Expenses.
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Our cost of sales consists primarily of materigisper, toner and other consumables), labor, ardiréict costs'which consist primarily ¢
expenses for service center ("offsite”) facilittesd equipment. Facilities and equipment expenssgda maintenance, repairs, rents, insur:
and depreciation. Paper is the largest componentiofnaterial cost; however, paper pricing typicalbes not significantly affect our operat
margins due, in part, to our efforts to pass ineedacosts on to our customers. We closely monitterial cost as a percentage of net sal
measure volume and waste. We also track laboratitin, or net sales per employee, to measure ptiwdy and determine staffing levels.

We maintain low levels of inventory. Historicallgur capital expenditure requirements have variegl uthe cost and availability
capital lease lines of credit. As we continue tstdéo our relationships with credit providers anthobattractive lease rates, we are increas
choosing to lease rather than purchase equipmamind most of 2013, we were more frequently electin purchase equipment for
facilities and onsite service installations ratttean lease equipment due to the availability ohdasfund capital expenditures and the inte
savings thereby.

Research and development costs consist mainly eok#haries, leased building space, and computépreeat that comprises our d
storage and development centers in Fremont, Calé@nd Kolkata, India. Such costs are primariyorded to cost of sales.

We believe customers are increasingly (1) adoptemhnology and digital document management pragtiemd (2) changing th
workflow patterns and thereby their document anidtipg needs. While there were some indicationg tha nonresidential constructic
market strengthened in 2012, we believe that there a growing body of evidence by the third quaofe2012 that demonstrated Traditic
Reprographics sales would not likely recover atdhme pace due to these factors. To ensure th&dimpanys costs and resources wer
line with demand for our current portfolio of sex@s and products, management initiated a restingtyplan in October of 2012, that v
completed by the fourth quarter of 2013. The restning plan included the closure or downsizing38fof the Company’ service centers
2012, which represented more than 10% of our tatalber of service center locations, and we clogeddaitional 23ervice centers in 201
In addition, as part of the restructuring plan, reduced headcount and middle management assodcidifecbur service center locatiol
streamlined the senior operational management tearhallocated more resources into growing sale=goaes such as Onsite Services
Digital Services. The reduction in headcount tatedpproximately 300 fultime employees, which represented approximately d0%ur tota
workforce.

During 2014 , our gross margins improved by 100isbpsints compared to the same period in 2018e attribute this improveme
primarily to our restructuring efforts initiated @ctober 2012 and ongoing margin improvement prograboth of which suggest continui
though abated, year-over-year margin expansiontiné periods.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures.

EBIT, EBITDA and related ratios presented in thépart are supplemental measures of our performérteare not required by
presented in accordance with accounting princigleserally accepted in the United States of Ame(iGAAP”). These measures are
measurements of our financial performance under BAAd should not be considered as alternativesttmmoome, income from operations
any other performance measures derived in accoedaitt GAAP or as an alternative to cash flows froperating, investing or financi
activities as a measure of our liquidity.

EBIT represents net income before interest andstaxBITDA represents net income before interegegadepreciation and amortization.
EBIT margin is a non-GAAP measure calculated bydilng EBIT by net sales. EBITDA margin is a non-GRAneasure calculated by
dividing EBITDA by net sales.

We have presented EBIT, EBITDA and related ratiesanise we consider them important supplementaluresasf our performance and
liquidity. We believe investors may also find theseasures meaningful, given how our management snade of them. The following is a
discussion of our use of these measures.

We use EBIT and EBITDA to measure and compare #rdopnance of our operating segments. Our operatggmentsfinancia
performance includes all of the operating actigitexcept debt and taxation which are managed atdhgorate level for U.S. operat
segments. As a result, we believe EBIT is the besstsure of operating segment profitability andrttest useful metric by which to meas
and compare the performance of our operating segm&ide use EBITDA to measure performance for deténg consolidatedevel
compensation. In addition, we use EBIT and EBITDAvaluate potential acquisitions and potentialtaapxpenditures.

EBIT, EBITDA and related ratios have limitations asalytical tools, and should not be consideredsatation, or as a substitute
analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. &ofrthese limitations are as follows:

« They do not reflect our cash expenditures, or futequirements for capital expenditures and cotutehcommitment:
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e They do not reflect changes in, or cash requiresnfemt our working capital neet

» They do not reflect the significant interest expere the cash requirements necessary, to sentieest or principal payments on
debt;

« Although depreciation and amortization are ©@ash charges, the assets being depreciated antizzdavill often have to be replac
in the future, and EBITDA does not reflect any cesfuirements for such replacements; and

e Other companies, including companies in our ingusiray calculate these measures differently thaieydimiting their usefulness
comparative measures.

Because of these limitations, EBIT, EBITDA, andatet ratios should not be considered as measumisavétionary cash available to
to invest in business growth or to reduce our iteldess. We compensate for these limitations lyynigglprimarily on our GAAP results a
using EBIT, EBITDA and related ratios only as sgmpénts.

Our presentation of adjusted net income and adjusBATDA over certain periods is an attempt to pdevmeaningful comparisons to
historical performance for our existing and futimgestors. The unprecedented changes in our enlletsaover the past several years |
required us to take measures that are unique ihistary and specific to individual circumstanc€smparisons inclusive of these actions n
normal financial and other performance patternicdif to discern under a strict GAAP presentatiBach nonsAAP presentation, however
explained in detail in the reconciliation table$obe

Specifically, we have presented adjusted net incfloss) attributable to ARC and adjusted earnidgss] per share attributable to A
shareholders for the years ended December 31, 22043 and 20120 reflect the exclusion of loss on extinguishmehtlebt, restructurir
expense, trade secret litigation costs, goodwiidirment, amortization impact related specificadlythe change in useful lives of trade nat
interest rate swap related costs, and changesinatuation allowances related to certain defetegdassets and other discrete tax items
have presented adjusted cash flows from operatitigitees for the years ended December 31, 201@132and 20120 reflect the exclusion
cash payments related to trade secret litigati@misc@ash payments related to restructuring exgeiasel the receipt of a federal income
refund in 2013 related to the Company's 2009 cadesteld federal income tax return. This presentatémilitates a meaningful comparisor
our operating results for the years ended Dece®bef014 , 2013 and 2012We believe these charges were the result of theeie
macroeconomic environment, our capital restructyrar other items which are not indicative of oatual operating performance.

We have presented adjusted EBITDA for the yearg@rakecember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2@i2xclude loss on extinguishment of d
trade secret litigation costs, stobblised compensation expense, goodwill impairmenty@structuring expense. The adjustment of EBITDr
these items is consistent with the definition ofuated EBITDA in our credit agreement; therefore lelieve this information is useful
investors in assessing our financial performance.

The following is a reconciliation of cash flows pided by operating activities to EBIT, EBITDA, amet income (loss) attributable to Al
Document Solutions, Inc. shareholders:

Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Cash flows provided by operating activities $ 50,01 $ 46,79¢ $ 37,55
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business acquisitions 4,43¢ (2,389 (463)
Non-cash expenses, including depreciation, amaidizand restructuring (47,019 (58,989 (68,559
Income tax provision 2,34¢ 2,98¢ 2,78¢
Interest expense, net 14,56( 23,73 28,16¢
Income attributable to the noncontrolling interest (15€) (74¥%) (509)

EBIT 24,18 11,40( (1,019
Depreciation and amortization 34,13¢ 34,74¢ 39,52:

EBITDA 58,31¢ 46,14¢ 38,50:
Interest expense, net (14,56() (23,737) (28,165
Income tax provision (2,34 (2,98¢) (2,789
Depreciation and amortization (34,139 (34,745 (39,529

Net income (loss) attributable to ARC Document 8ohs, Inc. shareholders $ 7,278 $ (15,329 $ (31,96¢)
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The following is a reconciliation of net incomeg§) attributable to ARC Document Solutions, IncERIT, EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA:

Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Net income (loss) attributable to ARC Document 8ohs, Inc. shareholders $ 7,278 $ (15,329 $ (31,96¢)
Interest expense, net 14,56( 23,731 28,16¢
Income tax provision 2,34¢ 2,98¢ 2,78¢

EBIT 24,18 11,40( (1,019
Depreciation and amortization 34,13t 34,74t 39,52:

EBITDA 58,31¢ 46,14: 38,501
Loss on extinguishment of debt 5,59¢ 16,33¢ —
Trade secret litigation costs 3,76¢ — —
Goodwill impairment — — 16,701
Restructuring expense 777 2,54¢ 3,32(
Stock-based compensation 3,80z 3,201 1,99¢

Adjusted EBITDA $ 72,26: $ 68,23t $ 60,52¢

@On February 1, 2013, we filed a civil complaint ingaa competitor and a former employee in the 8ap€ourt of California for Orange County, which
alleged, among other claims, the misappropriatfoRRC trade secrets; namely, proprietary custonsés that were used to communicate with our custerm
an attempt to unfairly acquire their business.riorgitigation with the competitor based on rethfacts, in 2007 the competitor entered into desatnt
agreement and stipulated judgment, which includehnction. We instituted this suit to stop trefehdant from using similar unfair business prastic
against us in the Southern California market. Tdsegroceeded to trial in May 2014, and a jury icémdas entered for the defendants. In Decembed4 20
court awarded the defendant attorneys' fees retatdw case. In February 2015, ARC entered irgetdement with the defendant. Legal fees assatiaith
the litigation, including the settlement with thefeindant, totaled $3.8 million for the year en@&tember 31, 2014 and were recorded as sellimgrgkand
administrative expense.

The following is a reconciliation of cash flows pied by operating activities to adjusted cash #qwovided by operating activities:

Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Cash flows provided by operating activities $ 50,01 $ 46,79¢ $ 37,55
Payments related to trade secret litigation costs 2,744 — —
Payments related to restructuring expenses 1,20 4,30¢ 94C
Receipt of federal income tax refufid — (3,762 —

Adjusted cash flows provided by operating actigitie $ 53,95¢ $ 47,340 $ 38,49:

®In March 2013, ARC received a federal income tdmne of $3.8 million related to its 2009 consoliedfederal income tax return.
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The following is a reconciliation of net income &) margin attributable to ARC to EBIT margin, EBIA margin and adjusted EBITC
margin:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 (1) 2012 (1)

Net income (loss) margin attributable to ARC 1.7% (3.9% (7.9%
Interest expense, net 3.4 5.8 6.€
Income tax provision 0.€ 0.7 0.7

EBIT margin 5.7 2.€ (0.9
Depreciation and amortization 8.1 8.t 9.7

EBITDA margin 13.¢ 11.2 9.t
Loss on extinguishment of debt 1.3 4.C —
Trade secret litigation costs 0.¢ — —
Goodwill impairment — — 4.1
Restructuring expense 0.2 0.€ 0.€
Stock-based compensation 0.¢ 0.€ 0.t

Adjusted EBITDA margin 17.1% 16.€ % 14.C%

Q) Column does not foot due to roundi

The following is a reconciliation of net income g§) attributable to ARC Document Solutions, Incut@mudited adjusted net income (I«
attributable to ARC Document Solutions, Inc.:

Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2014 2013 2012

Net income (loss) attributable to ARC Document 8ohs, Inc. $ 7,278 % (15,329 $ (31,96¢)
Loss on extinguishment of debt 5,59¢ 16,33¢ —
Goodwill impairment — — 16,70"
Restructuring expense 7717 2,544 3,32(
Trade secret litigation costs 3,76¢ — —
Change in trade name impact to amortization — — 3,15¢
Interest rate swap related costs — — 3,44(
Income tax benefit related to above items (3,959 (7,667 (7,676
Deferred tax valuation allowance and other disci@tétems (1,65%) 8,24t 11,31

Unaudited adjusted net income (loss) attributatl@RC Document Solutions, Inc. $ 11,807 $ 413t $ (1,708

Actual:

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to ARC DaminSolutions, Inc. shareholders:

Basic $ 0.1€ $ 039 $ (0.70

Diluted $ 0.1t $ (039 $ (0.70)
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 46,24¢ 45,85¢ 45,66¢

Diluted 47,08¢ 45,85¢ 45,66¢
Adjusted:
Earnings (loss) per share attributable to ARC DaninSolutions, Inc. shareholders:

Basic $ 0.2¢ $ 0.0¢ $ (0.09

Diluted $ 02¢ $ 0.0¢ $ (0.09
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 46,24¢ 45,85¢ 45,66¢

Diluted 47,08¢ 46,15’ 45,66¢
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Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31,

2014 Versus 2013

Increase (decrease)

2013 Versus 2012

Increase (decrease)

(In millions, except percentages) 2014 (1) 2013(1) 2012(1) $(2) % $(2) %
Onsite Service® $ 135.( $ 121.¢ $ 108.¢ $ 13.¢ 11.C% $ 12.¢ 11.€%
Traditional Reprographics 113.2 116.% 126.¢ (3.5 (3.0% (20.7 (8.0%
Color 90.: 83.€ 79.1 6.7 8.L% 4.t 57%
Digital 33.2 33.t 35.€ 0.9 (0.9% (2.7 (5.9%
Total services sales $ 371¢ $ 355« $ 350 $ 16.5 4€% $ 5.1 1E%
Equipment and Supplies Sales 51.¢ 51.¢ 55.¢ 0.1 0.2% (4.7 (7.9%
Total net sales $ 4238 $ 407z $ 406.1 9 16.€ 41% $ 1.1 0.2%
Gross profit $ 144°: $ 134 $ 123%L % 10.C 74% $ 10.t 8.7%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 107.7 $ 96.6 $ 931 §$ 10.¢ 11.:% $ 3.7 4.C%
Amortization of intangibles $ 6.C $ 6. $ 11.C $ (0.6) 9% $ 449 (40.0%
Goodwill impairment $ — — $ 167 $ — —% $ (16.9) (100.0%
Restructuring expense $ 0. $ 25 % 33 $ (2.9 (68.0% $ (0.8 (24.9%
Loss on extinguishment of debt $ 5€ $ 162 $ — $ (109 (65.0% $ 16.2 100.C%
Interest expense, net $ 14€ $ 237 $ 287 % (9.9) (389)% $ (4.5 (16.0%
Income tax provision $ 22 % 3. % 28 % (0.7) (23.9% $ 0.2 7.1%
Net income (loss) attributable to ARC $ 72 $ (159 $ (320 $ 22.¢ (147.9% $ 16.7 (52.2%
Adjusted net income (loss) attributable to
ARC $ 116 $ 41 $ (17 $ 7.7 187.6% $ 5.8 (341.9%
Cash flows provided by operating activitie$ 50.C $ 46.¢ $ 37.€ $ 3.2 6.£% % 9.2 24.E%
Adjusted cash flows provided by operating
activities $ 54C $ 47 $ 38t % 6.7 142% $ 8.8 22.£%
EBITDA $ 58: $ 461 $ 38E $ 12.2 26.5E% $ 7.€ 19.7%
Adjusted EBITDA $ 72: $ 682 $ 60F % 4.C 5£% $ 7.7 12.7%

Q) Column does not foot due to roundi

(2) Represents services provided at our custorsées, which includes both Managed Print Servit#&3S) and Facilities Management

(FM).
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The following table provides information on the gemtages of certain items of selected financiad data percentage of net sales for the pe
indicated:

As Percentage of Net Sales
Year Ended December 31,

2014(1) 2013(1) 2012(1)
Net Sales 100.C% 100.C % 100.C %
Cost of sales 66.C 67.C 69.€
Gross profit 34.C 33.C 30.4
Selling, general and administrative expenses 25.4 23.t 22.¢
Amortization of intangibles 1.4 1.€ 2.7
Goodwill impairment — — 4.1
Restructuring expense 0.2 0.€ 0.8
Income (loss) from operations 7.C 7.C (0.2
Other income, net — — —
Loss on extinguishment of debt 1.3 4.C —
Interest expense, net 3.4 5.8 6.9
Loss before income tax provision 2.3 (2.9 (7.1
Income tax provision 0.€ 0.7 0.7
Net income (loss) 1.8 (3.6) (7.7)
Income attributable to the noncontrolling interest — (0.2 0.2
Net income (loss) attributable to ARC 1.7% (3.9% (7.9%
EBITDA 13.£% 11.2% 9.E%
Adjusted EBITDA 17.1% 16.£% 14.€%

Q) Column does not foot due to roundi

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared ta&li®’ear Ended December 31, 2013
Net Sales

Net sales in 2014 increase d 4.1% . The increaset sales was primarily due to the higher salgwity for Onsite and Color Servic
which were partially offset by lower sales activity Traditional Reprographics Services. In 201®nsite Services generated the lat
percentage of net sales, and it produced the higieesentage change from 2013 ( 11.§f6wth). Declines in Traditional Reprographics s
remain influenced by the continuing trend of a tgease of digital processes for document workfbowd less reliance on print.

Onsite Services Onsite Services sales increase d $13.4 million1od% , in 2014 , and represented approximately 82%tal net sale
for 2014 , as compared to approximately 30% dugi@g3. Onsite Services revenue is derived from two smairé) an engagement with
customer to place primarily large-format equipmehgt we own or lease, in our customeoffices, typically referred to as a facilit
management engagement or “traditional FeEYd 2) an arrangement by which our customers orgsedteir printing function to us, includi
all office printing, copying, and reprographicsmimng, typically referred to as Managed Print Seesi or “MPS.”In both cases, we establ
long-term contracted revenue streams for which n@egaid a single cost per unit of material usetirofeferred to as a “click charge.”

The number of Onsite Services locations has grawapproximately 8,500 as of December 31, 2014 inarease of approximateB0C
locations compared to December 31, 20#8e primarily to growth in new MPS placements. bédieve Onsite Services is a high growth
for us as demonstrated by the adoption of our M&8ices by large, multiational firms in the AEC space over the past sdwsars. W
intend to continue the expansion of our Onsite Beroffering through our regional sales force anbugh Global Solutions, our natio
accounts group. Our Global Solutions sales forcedstablished lonterm contract relationships with 22 of the large3tAEC firms. As oL
Onsite Services, and more specifically MPS seryibesome a larger percentage of our sales, ouabhsales will be less exposed to
seasonality associated with construction projed8S services are driven primarily by the numbercastomer employees at an office
largely by non-construction project related worktsas office printing and copying.
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Traditional Reprographics Traditional Reprographics sales decrease d $3lomir 3.0% in 2014 , and represented approxirge2@
of total net sales for 2014 , as compared to apprately 29% during 2013 .

Overall Traditional Reprographics Services salémnwide were negatively affected lower volume dhped construction drawings due
the adoption of technology referenced above, pasather conditions over much of the US during thdygzart of the first quarter, as well
increased production of documents on customer agepposed to documents being produced at oucsemnters.

Color Services Color Services sales increase d $6.7 million o#8,@nd comprised approximately 21% of our totalsades in 2014 The
increase in sales from Color Services is primatikhg to additional sales realized from the acqoisitf two businesses in the United Kingc
during the second quarter of 2014. Also contritgitim our color sales growth is our continued foonghe expansion and enhancement o
Color Services offerings through our Riot Creafiveaging brand and to our AEC industry customer base

Digital . Digital Services sales decrease d $0.1 million.888in 2014 . Sales of Digital Services decreadigtitly to 7.9%of total ne
sales for 2014 , as compared to 8.2% for 2013mamily due to a decline in those services relategrojectbased work performed at «
service centers, offset in part by sales of our Aidfvices which were introduced into the marke20t 3. New digital service offerings suct
AIM experienced growth, but not at a rate suffitiemoffset the decline in digital service saldsted to project work.

Equipment and Supplies SalesEquipment and Supplies Sales increase d by $0liomibr 0.2% in 2014 primarily due to increas
equipment sales in the United States during 201daflg offset by the decline in equipment salesGhina. Revenues from Equipment
Supplies Sales represented approximately 12% af n&t sales in 2014 , compared to approximate®p ¥82013. The growth of equipme
sales in the United States in 2014 was driven fgel@quipment purchases from customers who prefewnh their own equipment. Equipm
and Supplies Sales derived from UNIS Document 8nistCo. Ltd (“UDS”"), our Chinese business ventuvere $19.3 million in 2014 as
compared to $19.9 million in 2013The decrease in Equipment and Supplies Sales dnarChinese operations was driven by a softe
Chinese economy and a corresponding decrease italaaxpenditures from several of our largest conrs in China. Quarterly movement:
Equipment and Supplies Sales are largely drivethbytiming of replacements of aging equipment fidet customers who prefer to own ti
equipment. In the long term we do not anticipataagh in Equipment and Supplies Sales, as we a@nglanore focus on growth in our On:
Services and converting sales contracts to Onsitéic®s agreements.

Gross Profit

Gross profit and gross margin increased to $144ll&m, and 34.0% , in 2014 , compared to $134i8ionm , and 33.0% , in 20130n ¢
sales increase of $16.6 million .

We were able to achieve expansion of our gross ima@f 100 basis points in 20Bie primarily to (1) increased sales that allowta
better leverage our fixed costs, (2) margin expanprograms at our service centers and customéiedosations, and (3) expense reduct
associated with the Company's restructuring in 2Mjgecifically, year-oveyear overhead costs as a percentage of sales sedréx
approximately 100 basis points in 201We believe the savings from these efforts aréaguable, and we believe the effect of these mea
coupled with leveraging our fixed costs in an eowiment of increasing sales, should result in coihmargin expansion in 2015, though ¢
abated level from 2014.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, marketing, general and administrative exgas increased by $10.9 million or 11.3% in 20l#mared to 2013 .

Year-over-year sales and marketing expenses irente®3.3 million in 2014 driven by increased sales commissions resultiom far
increase in sales year-owsar, as well as our continued investment in olesséeam which included: (1) hiring of new salesl aale
administrative personnel, and (2) expanded traimhgew and existing sales personnel to implempatific sales initiatives supporting ¢
digital services, onsite, and color offerings.

General and administrative expenses increasedndiflién in 2014 primarily due to legal fees related to trade selitigation during 201¢
as well as an increase in accrued incentive bordise$o an improvement in the Company's finanaialggmance in 2014.

On February 1, 2013, we filed a civil complaint mmgaa competitor and a former employee in the 8ap€ourt of California for Oran
County, which alleged, among other claims, the ppsapriation of ARC trade secrets; namely, propngtcustomer lists that were use
communicate with our customers in an attempt t@idigfacquire their business. In prior litigationtlwthe competitor based on related fact
2007 the competitor entered into a settlement ageeeand stipulated judgment, which
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included an injunction. We instituted this suitdtwp the defendant from using similar unfair busingractices against us in the Sout
California market. The case proceeded to trial iayN014, and a jury verdict was entered for theeni@dnts. In December 2014, the c
awarded the defendant attorneys' fees related gocéise. In February 2015, we entered into a sadtierwith the defendant. Legal fi
associated with the litigation, including the satient with the defendant, totaled $3.8 million tfee year ended December 31, 2014.

Amortization of Intangibles

Amortization of intangibles of $6.0 million in 2014ecreased by $0.6 million or 9.1% compared tb32@rimarily due to the comple
amortization of certain customer relationshipstealao historical acquisitions.

Goodwill Impairment

We assess goodwill at least annually for impairmeshtof September 30, or more frequently if evemid a@rcumstances indicate t
goodwill might be impaired. Goodwill impairment tieg) is performed at the reporting unit level. AAgsember 30, 2014, we assessed goo
for impairment and determined that goodwill was ingpaired.

See “Critical Accounting Policies” section for flnetr information related to our goodwill impairméest.

Restructuring Expense

Restructuring expenses totaled $0.8 million in 20B4d primarily consisting of revised estimatedséeéermination and obligation cc
resulting from facilities closed in 2013.

For further information, please see Note 3 “Restntiicg Expenses” to our Consolidated Financial Stegnts.
Loss on extinguishment of debt

In November 2014, we entered into a new $175.0ianilterm loan credit agreement ("Term A Loan Faci)i with Wells Fargo Banl
National Association, as administrative agent dralénders party thereto. The proceeds from thetaaw loan credit agreement were use
pay in full and terminate our previous term loaedit agreement (“Term B Loan Facility"). The $5.8lion loss on extinguishment of deb
due to the writedown of the unamortized original issue discount daferred financing fees related to the Term B LBanility and previot
revolving credit facility.

Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense totaled $14.6 million in 2Qlebmpared to $23.7 million in 2013The decrease was due to the purchast
redemption of all our outstanding 10.5% senior aate2013, and the replacement of the notes wigh$200.0 million Term B Loan Facil
with an effective interest rate of 6.25%. Duringl2Dwe made principal payments on our Term B Loaailfy totaling $25.0 million. |
November 2014, we were able to further reduce ffecive interest rate on lo-term debt by entering into the $175.0 million TeAnLoar
Facility with an initial effective interest rate &74% at December 31, 2014We expect additional interest savings relatedht® 201
refinancing of approximately $6 million in 2015.

Income Taxes

We recorded an income tax provision of $2.3 mill@npretax income of $9.8 million for 2014vhich yields an effective income tax
of 24.0%. Our income tax provision was primarilyedo the impact of amortization of tax basis godidwia deferred tax liability position. O
income tax provision includes a reduction of ouugtion allowance of $3.6 million against certafmoar deferred tax assets which includt
$1.6 million shortfall in stock based compensatiercluding the valuation allowance reduction, sfadlrtn stock based compensation and c
nondeductible compensation, our tax provision wdidde been $3.9 million which yields an effectimedme tax rate of 39.8%.

Noncontrolling Interest

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interespresents 35% of the income of UDS and its sudnsadi, which together comprise
Chinese operations.

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to ARC

Net income attributable to ARC was $7.3 million2014 , as compared to a net loss attributable t€ AR$15.3 million in 2013 The ne
income attributable to ARC in 2014 is primarily dweincreased sales and gross margins as note@ ados
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reductions in loss on extinguishment of debt aridrést expense in 2014. This increase was partidiiet by the increase in selling, gen
and administrative expenses, as noted above.

EBITDA

EBITDA margin increase d to 13.8% in 2014 , as carag to 11.3% in 2013 . Excluding the effect ofcktbased compensation, tr:
secret litigation costs, restructuring expense, lasd on extinguishment of debt, adjusted EBITDArgimaincreased to 17.1% in 2014as
compared to 16.8% in 2013The increases in EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA wdue primarily to the increase in gross margins idiesc
above patrtially offset by the increase in sellimgrketing, general and administrative expenses.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared te&li&’ear Ended December 31, 2012
Net Sales

Net sales in 2013 increase d 0.3% . The incra@aset sales was primarily due to the higher sakdivity for Onsite and Color Servic
which were partially offset by lower sales activity Traditional Reprographics Services and Equipnael Supplies Sales. In the second
of 2013, Onsite Services was our largest offering as agreage of total net sales, and for the full ybad the highest percentage change
2012 (11.8% growth).

Onsite ServicesOnsite Services sales increase d $12.8 millionld8% , in 2013, and represented approximately 80%6tal net sales fi
2013, as compared to approximately 27% during 2012

The number of Onsite Services locations grew to@pmately 7,700 as of December 31, 2013, an asgef approximately 7d6cation:
compared to December 31, 2012 , due primarily tovgin in new MPS placements.

Traditional Reprographics Traditional Reprographics sales decrease d $10libmor 8.0% in 2013 , and represented approxitge26%
of total net sales for 2013, as compared to apprately 31% during 2012 .

Overall Traditional Reprographics Services salesonwide were negatively affected by the lower vo&i of construction drawin
produced through larg®rmat black and white printing driven by the effexf technology adoption referenced above, as aglincrease
production of documents on customer sites as oppmsdocuments being produced at our service center

Color Services Color Services sales increase d $4.5 million 086, &and comprised approximately 21foour total net sales in 2013. "
attribute this increase to our continued focus lma éxpansion and enhancement of our Color Serviffesings through our Riot Creati
Imaging brand and to our AEC industry customer base

Digital . Digital Services sales decrease d $2.1 million.8#5in 2013 . Sales of Digital Services decreatigtitly to approximately 8%f
total net sales for 2013 , as compared to appraeimn&% for 2012 We attribute this decrease in Digital Servicea ttecline in those servic
related to projecbased work performed at our service centers, offfspart by sales of our AIM services which werenfially introduced int
the market in 2013.

Equipment and Supplies SalesEquipment and Supplies Sales decrease d by $4libmmilr 7.3% in 2013 We experienced declines
both our operations in the United States and im&hEquipment and Supplies Sales represented dppatety 13% of total net sales in 2013
compared to approximately 14% in 2012he decrease in Equipment and Supplies SaldwitJhited States was driven primarily by the
of vendor promotions in 2013 that had been offaiedur customers in 2012, as well as a large neonisring equipment order in 20
Equipment and Supplies Sales derived from our Gleirgperations were $19.9 million in 2013 , as caeghdo $21.5 million in 2012 The
decrease in Equipment and Supplies Sales from UNIG&iment Solutions Co. Ltd (“UDS"pur Chinese business venture, was due to st
large non-recurring equipment orders in 2012.

Gross Profit

Gross profit and gross margin increased to $134liBm, and 33.0% , in 2013 , compared to $123i8ion , and 30.4% , in 20120n ¢
sales increase of $1.1 million .

We were able to achieve expansion of our gross imaxf 260 basis points in 20Hie primarily to a combination of: (1) the closunr
merging of underperforming service centers andréuiction in labor and facility costs resultingrfraur restructuring plan initiated in 1
fourth quarter of 2012, and (2) ongoing margin @gian initiatives in 2013. Overall, direct labordaoverhead costs as a percentage of
decreased 130 and 60 basis points, respectiveBQi8due primarily to savings from facilities closuresdaelated cost reductions in respc
to the declining sales in our Traditional Reprodpiap Services that are performed from our servicears.
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A shift in our business mix also contributed to tlear-over-year increase in gross margins in 2008e to a decline in lowanargir
Equipment and Supplies Sales and 2013 margin ekpaistiatives, material costs as a percentageooolidated sales were points lowe
in 2013 compared to 2012 .

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

The increase of $3.7 million in selling, marketiggneral and administrative expenses in 2048 primarily due to an increase in sales
marketing expenses, partially offset by a decr@gageneral and administrative expenses.

Year-over-year sales and marketing expenses iresieég4.4 million in 2013 driven by our continued investment in sales whidduded
(1) the hiring of new sales and sales administeapigrsonnel, (2) expanded trainings of new andirgisales personnel to implement spe
sales initiatives, such as color sales, and ouit®uofering, and (3) expanded incentive programargd towards organic sales growth.

General and administrative expenses decreasedrlich in 2013primarily due to decreases in headcount relateditaestructuring ple
initiated in the fourth quarter of 2012, which werartially offset by an increase in incentive baerislue to the improvement in our finan
performance in 2013.

Amortization of Intangibles

Amortization of intangibles of $6.6 million in 2013lecreased by $4.4 million or 40.0% compared0b22 primarily due to phasing c
the use of local trade names in April 2012.

During the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company dedito phase out the use of local trade namestbgdpllowing 18 months and revis
the remaining estimated useful lives of our tradena intangible assets accordingly. Effective Jantia2011, all divisions began using
ARC name, though some use of the original brandesaremain in circulation to ensure business re¢ognand the retention of existi
customers. Once the “legactrade names were fully transitioned to the ARC nameé removed from the marketplace, they quickly tbei
value. This change in estimate was accounted f@ prospective basis, resulting in increased amaditin expense over the revised useful
for each trade name.

Goodwill Impairment

We assess goodwill at least annually for impairmesntof September 30, or more frequently if evemnid eircumstances indicate t
goodwill might be impaired. Goodwill impairment ties) is performed at the reporting unit level. AAfsember 30, 2013, we assessed goo
for impairment and determined that goodwill was ingpaired.

At September 30, 2012, our annual goodwill impaimtrenalysis indicated that seven of our 27 repgntinits, six in the United States
one in Canada, had goodwill impairments as of Sepés 30, 2012. Accordingly, we recorded a pretaxy-cash charge for the three mor
ended September 30, 2012 to reduce the carrying \adlgoodwill by $16.7 million.

See “Critical Accounting Policies” section for flnetr information related to our goodwill impairméest.

Restructuring Expense
Restructuring expenses totaled $2.5 million in 2GR primarily consisted of estimated lease teatiom and obligation costs.

For further information, please see Note 3 “Restntiicg Expenses” to our Consolidated Financial Stegnts.
Loss on extinguishment of debt

In December 2013, we commenced a cash tenderaffeconsent solicitation for all of our outstandir@®@5% senior unsecured notes
December 15, 2016 (the “Notesihd entered into the $200.0 million Term B Loane Hroceeds of the Term Loan Credit Agreement
used to repurchase all of the outstanding Notefsvileae validly tendered, and were also appliedeteem all of the Notes which remai
outstanding following the tender offer. The weighteverage purchase price to purchase and redeeNoths in this transaction was 105.89
par. This transaction, when combined with otheurepases of Notes done during 2013, resulted oss dn extinguishment of debt of $1
million for 2013. The Term B Loan bears interese#iher a LIBOR rate (subject to a 1% floor) orasé rate, plus an applicable margi
5.25% with respect to LIBOR loans and 4.25% witbpext to base rate loans. As of December 31, 20l®ans under the Term Loan Cr¢
Agreement were accruing interest at the LIBOR rfatea total interest rate of 6.25% or 425 basis{gdower than the extinguished Notes.
additional information regarding the impact of tigte repurchases to interest expense, pleaserdeeedt Expense, Net" discussion below.
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Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense totaled $23.7 million in 20t8mpared to $28.2 million in 2012The decrease was driven by a reduction in int
expense reclassified from accumulated other congmstie income into earnings as a result of theipusly terminated interest rate sv
agreement on December 1, 2010. The amortizatioogéor the interest rate swap expense ended iredber of 2012, and therefore hac
impact in 2013 compared to $3.4 million in addifbmterest expense in 2012lso contributing to the decrease in interestezge was (1) ti
repurchases of our outstanding 10.5% senior natgagithe third and fourth quarters of 2013, anda2eduction in interest rates incurrec
new capital leases. The interest savings relatétetoepurchases of the 10.5% senior notes was@pmtely $0.5 million in 2013 .

Income Taxes

We recorded an income tax provision of $3.0 millinrrelation to pretax loss of $11.6 million for 29, which was primarily due to t
impact of amortization of tax basis goodwill in efefred tax liability position. Our income tax prgien includes a $7.3 million valuati
allowance against certain of our deferred tax asstid we not recorded this valuation allowance tax benefit would have been 4.3 million
This yields an effective income tax rate benefi8di0% .

Noncontrolling Interest

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interespresents 35% of the income of UDS and its sudnsadi, which together comprise
Chinese operations.

Net Loss Attributable to ARC

Net loss attributable to ARC was $15.3 million B3 , as compared to net loss attributable to AR€38.0 million in 2012 The decrea:
in net loss attributable to ARC in 2013 is primaidue to the goodwill impairment charge in 2012 jramrease in gross margins and a redu
in amortization and interest expense in 20TBis decrease was partially offset by the losgxtinguishment of debt and the increase in se
general and administrative expenses in 2013 , &sirabove.

EBITDA

EBITDA margin increase d to 11.3% in 2013 , as carag to 9.5% in 2012 . Excluding the effect of ktbased compensatic
restructuring expense, goodwill impairment charg2012 and loss on extinguishment of debt, adjus&d DA margin increased to 16.8%
2013, as compared to 14.9% in 20IPhe increases in EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA wedue primarily to the increase in gross profit
result of the restructuring plan initiated in tleaifth quarter of 2012 as well as ongoing 2013 didlZnargin expansion initiatives.

The following table sets forth certain quarterlyacial data for the eight quarters ended Dece®ibe2014. This quarterly informatic
has been prepared on the same basis as the ammamtidl statements and, in our opinion, refledtsadjustments necessary for a
presentation of the information for periods presdnOperating results for any quarter are not reeecéyg indicative of results for any futt
period.
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Quarter Ended (In thousands, except percentages)

Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
2014 2013

Onsite Services $ 31,38 $ 34,11( $ 3495 $ 3457¢ $ 2897¢ $ 30,57¢ $ 30,99C $ 31,00¢
Traditional
Reprographics 28,32t 30,18: 28,19¢ 26,47" 29,55¢ 30,51¢ 28,907 27,69:
Color 21,16¢ 23,14¢ 22,86¢ 23,12¢ 20,90¢ 21,84¢ 20,63¢ 20,21:
Digital 8,05¢ 8,75¢ 8,411 8,14¢ 8,361 8,69( 8,29t 8,18

Total service

revenue 88,93: 96,19¢ 94,42¢ 92,32¢ 87,80( 91,62¢ 88,83( 87,10(
Equipment and
Supplies Sales 11,44 12,78« 12,38: 15,26¢ 12,23¢ 12,99 12,42 14,18¢

Total net

sales $ 100,37 $ 108,98 $ 106,800 $ 107,59: $ 100,03t $ 104,62 $101,25: $101,28!
Quarterly sales as
a % of annual
sales 23.1% 25.7% 25.2% 25.2% 24.€% 25.7% 24.%% 24.%%
Gross profit $ 3393« $ 39200 $ 3622: $ 3491« $ 3237¢ $ 3561 $ 32,88( $ 33,467
Gross margin 33.&% 36.(% 33.% 32.5% 32.%% 34.(% 32.5% 33.(%
Income from
operations $ 5847  $ 9,15 % 8,38¢  $ 6,461 $ 6,387 $ 838 $ 6594 $§ 7,01t
EBITDA $ 14466 $ 17,62¢ $ 16,63¢ $ 958 $ 14847 $ 16,98 $ 1490¢ $ (590

Net income (loss)

attributable to

ARC $ 1,39¢ $ 454t 3 3661 $ (232) % 415 $ 72z $ (450 $ (16,010
Income (loss) per

share attributable

to ARC
shareholders:

Basic $ 00: $ 01C $ 0.0 $ (0.05) % 0.01 $ 00z $ (001 $ (0.39

Diluted $ 0.0 $ 0.1C $ 0.0¢ $ (0.05) % 0.01 $ 00z $ (0.00) $ (0.39
The following is a reconciliation of EBITDA to nkiss for each respective quarter.

Quarter Ended (In thousands)
Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
2014 2013

EBITDA $ 1446¢ $ 17,628 $ 1663t $ 958 $ 14847 $ 16,98 $ 1490 $ (590
Interest expense, net (3,919 (3,949 (3,780 (2,929 (6,04)) (6,07¢) (5,89 (5,725
Income tax
(provision) benefit (664) (607) (659) (41¢) 311 (1,467) (790 (1,040
Depreciation and
amortization (8,499 (8,537) (8,53¢6) (8,579 (8,702) (8,719 (8,669 (8,655
Net income (loss) )
attributable to ARC $ 139% $ 454 $ 3661 $ (232) $ 415 $ 72z % (450 $ (16,010

We believe that quarterly revenues and operatiagltemay vary significantly in the future and tla@arter-toguarter comparisons of ¢
results of operations are not necessarily indioatiof future performance. In addition, our quayterberating results, particularly those of
Traditional Reprographics offerings, are typicaffected by seasonal factors, primarily the nundfevorking days in a quarter and the holi
season in the fourth quarter. Therefore, histdsicah regards to our service offerings our fougtarter has been the slowest and the
profitable. While our Traditional Reprographics imess is still influenced by the nature of buildieygles, our remaining offerings are less
Onsite Services, our largest revenue line, areedriby the production of office documents and owtamer's desire to improve busir
processes and reduce print management costs. Duoarity to the continued quarterly sequential griowf our onsite sales and the impac
inclement weather in the first quarter of 2014, 8044 fourth quarter sales and Adjusted EBITDA whigher than the first quarter of 20
We recorded losses on extinguishment of debt imatheunt of $5.3 million, $0.3 million, $16.1 miliioand $0.3 million during the quart
ended December 31, 2014, September 30, 2014, Dece3tth2013 and September 30, 2013, respectivedyréorded valuation allowant
against certain deferred tax assets of $1.1 mijll&#.6) million, $(1.7) million, and $(1.3) millioduring the quarters ended Decembe



2014, September 30, 2014, June 30, 2014 and MdrcP03 4, respectively. We recorded valuation
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allowances against certain deferred tax assets7d® #illion, $0.4 million, and $0.2 million durinthe quarters ended December
2013, September 30, 2013 and June 30, 2013, rasggct

We believe inflation has not had a significant effen our operations. Price increases for raw rnasersuch as paper and fuel char
typically have been, and we expect will continuééo passed on to customers in the ordinary cafrsasiness.

Liquidity and Capital Resource

Our principal sources of cash have been operatiodshorrowings under our debt and lease agreenf@atsiecent historical uses of ¢
have been for ongoing operations, payment of grad@nd interest on outstanding debt obligationd, @apital expenditures.

Total cash and cash equivalents as of Decembe2?@# was $22.6 million . Of this amount, $14.5 ioilwas held in foreign countrie
with $12.7 million held in China.

Supplemental information pertaining to our histakisources and uses of cash is presented as folo@should be read in conjunci
with our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flowsrantds thereto included elsewhere in this report.

Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 50,01: $ 46,79¢ $ 37,55
Net cash used in investing activities $ (13,79¢ $ 17,450 $ (20,02%)
Net cash used in financing activities $ (40,77) $ (30,289 $ (15,067

Operating Activities

Cash flows from operations are primarily drivendayes and net profit generated from these saleljdirg non-cash charges.

The overall increase in cash flows from operation2014was primarily due the increase in our net inconieedr by our expansion
adjusted EBITDA of $4.0 millioras described above, as well a reduction of casrest of over $9.0 million due to our long term t
refinancings. These increases were offset, in pgrthe income tax refund of $3.8 million receivied?013 related to our 2009 consolide
federal income tax return, cash payments of $2lliomirelated to trade secret litigation costs, and iases in accounts receivable, pre
expenses and other assets. Days sales outstafiBi8@'() increased to 52 days as of December 31428dm 50 days as ddecember 3:
2013.

The overall increase in cash flows from operation2013 was primarily due the increase in our mebme driven by our expansion
EBITDA of approximately $7.0 million, as well as @amcome tax refund of $3.8 million received in 20Eated to our 2009 consolida
federal income tax return, and the timing of acdésyrayable and accrued expenses. These increasesoffaet, in part, by an increase
accounts receivable and cash payments related testwucturing plan of $4.3 million in 2013, com@é to $0.9 million in 2012,

Investing Activitie:

Net cash used in investing activities was primamdiated to capital expenditures. We incurred edqgikxpenditures totaling $13.3 millign
$18.2 million , and $20.3 million in 2014 , 2013daR012 , respectively. The decrease in capital mdipgres from 2013 to 2014and fron
2012 to 2013, is primarily due to our increasetarale on leasing rather than purchasing equipmentve continue to foster our relationst
with credit providers and obtain attractive leastes, we may increasingly choose to lease ratherghrchase equipment in the future.

Financing Activities
Net cash of $40.8 million used in financing actastin 2014primarily relates to proceeds and payments on ebt dgreements and cag
leases.

During 2014, we paid $25.0 million in aggregatenpipal amount of our $200.0 million Term B Loan Hac In November 2014, w
entered into a $175.0 million Term A Loan Facilignd the related proceeds were used to pay ouringmgaoutstanding balance of $17
million Term B Loan Facility. In December 2014, waid $2.0 million in aggregate principal amountoofr Term A Loan Facility. Ca:
payments for deferred financing fees related toriien A Loan Facility totaled $2.5 million .

Our cash position, working capital, and debt olilss as of December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2&x&2shown below and should be reg
conjunction with our Consolidated Balance Sheetsrautes thereto contained elsewhere in this report.
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December 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents $ 22,63t $ 27,36: $ 28,02:
Working capital $ 20,66¢ $ 28,708 $ 40,65(

Borrowings from senior secured credit facility,neloan facility

and Notes (1) $ 173,000 $ 196,000 $ 196,85:
Other debt obligations 30,88t 23,72¢ 25,67:
Total debt obligations $ 203,88! % 219,72t $ 222,52!

(1) Net of original issue discount 0f4,000 and $3,148 at December 31, 2013 and 28d$pectively

The decrease of $8.0 million in working capitaPi@il4was primarily due to the $15.5 million current pontof our Term A Loan Facilit
partially offset by an increase in accounts reddivaf $5.7 million. In accordance with the Term A Credit Agreemerd,are required to ma
quarterly mandatory repayments of principal of $illion, resulting in an increase in the shtatm portion of our outstanding debt. Cash
cash equivalents decreased by $4.7 millias noted above. The increase in accounts redeiveds driven by higher revenue in the fo
quarter of 2014 as compared to the fourth quart€2043. To manage our working capital, we chiefbgeds on our number of days si
outstanding and monitor the aging of our accougteivable, as receivables are the most signifielement of our working capital.

We believe that our current cash and cash equitsatsaiance of $22.6 millionavailability under our revolving credit facilitgvailability
under our equipment lease lines, and cash flowgigied by operations should be adequate to covendhetwelve months of working capi
needs, debt service requirements consisting ofdstbeé principal and interest payments, and plaroegdtal expenditures, to the extent <
items are known or are reasonably determinabledbaseurrent business and market conditions. litiadd we may elect to finance certair
our capital expenditure requirements through boimge/under our revolving credit facility, which had debt outstanding as becember 3:
2014, other than contingent reimbursement obligatimmsuhdrawn standby letters of credit describedwelmat were issued under this facil
See “Debt Obligations” section for further inforneet related to our revolving credit facility.

We generate the majority of our revenue from safeservices and products to the AEC industry. A®sult, our operating results ¢
financial condition can be significantly affecteg bconomic factors that influence the AEC indussych as nomesidential and resident
construction spending. Additionally, a general emoit downturn may adversely affect the ability ofr @ustomers and suppliers to ob
financing for significant operations and purchases] to perform their obligations under their agreets with us. We believe that cre
constraints in the financial markets could resnltai decrease in, or cancellation of, existing kessn could limit new business, and ct
negatively affect our ability to collect our acctésineceivable on a timely basis.

While we have not been actively seeking growthulgitoacquisition during the last three years, thecetive team continues to selecti
evaluate potential acquisitions.

Debt Obligations

Term A Loan Facility

On November 20, 2014 we entered into a Credit Agerd (the “Term A Credit AgreementWith Wells Fargo Bank, Natior
Association, as administrative agent and the lengarty thereto.

The Term A Credit Agreement provides for the exi@m®f term loans (“Term LoansTh an aggregate principal amount of $175.0 mil
the entirety of which was disbursed on the Clodage in order to pay outstanding obligations unttier Companys Term Loan Crec
Agreement dated as of December 20, 2013. The CAggdéement also provides for the extension of néngl loans (“Revolving Loans’h ar
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $30.0iamillThe Revolving Loan facility under the Term Ae@it Agreement replaces -
Companys Credit Agreement dated as of January 27, 2012.émpany may request incremental commitmentsdaatigregate princig
amount of Term Loans and Revolving Loans availalsider the Credit Agreement by an amount not to ex&¥5 million in the aggrega
Unless an incremental commitment to increase them Tean or provide a new term loan matures atex ldate, the obligations under the Cr
Agreement mature on November 20, 2019.

Loans borrowed under the Term A Credit Agreemerar beterest, in the case of LIBOR rate loans, gtea annum rate equal to
applicable LIBOR rate, plus a margin ranging frofsQ®6 to 2.50%, based on the Company’s Total LewRatio (as
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defined in the Term A Credit Agreement). Loans bared under the Term A Credit Agreement that areltiBOR rate loans bear interest :
per annum rate equal to (i) the greatest of (A)Réderal Funds Rate plus 0.50%, (B) the one molBIOR rate plus 1.00% per annum, and
the rate of interest announced, from time to timeWells Fargo Bank, National Association as itdifye rate,”plus (ii) a margin ranging fro
0.50% to 1.50%, based on our Company’s Total Leyeefatio.

We will pay certain recurring fees with respecthe credit facility, including administration festhe administrative agent.

Subject to certain exceptions, including in certaircumstances, reinvestment rights, the loansnele® under the Term A Cre
Agreement are subject to customary mandatory prepayprovisions with respect to: the net proceeals fcertain asset sales; the net proc
from certain issuances or incurrences of debt (dthen debt permitted to be incurred under the $esfithe Term A Credit Agreement); the
proceeds from certain issuances of equity secsiriéied net proceeds of certain insurance recovangxondemnation events of our Company

The Term A Credit Agreement contains customary es@ntations and warranties, subject to limitatiand exceptions, and custom
covenants restricting the ability (subject to vasa@xceptions) of our Company and its subsididgdescur additional indebtedness (incluc
guarantee obligations); incur liens; sell certaioperty or assets; engage in mergers or other fuadtal changes; consummate acquisit|
make investments; pay dividends, other distribionrepurchase equity interest of our Companysosubsidiaries; change the nature of -
business; prepay or amend certain indebtednesageng certain transactions with affiliates; amémeir organizational documents; or el
into certain restrictive agreements. In accordamitke the Term A Credit Agreement, we are permittegpay dividends related to our eqt
securities payable solely in shares of equity sgesr In addition, the Term A Credit Agreement t@ons financial covenants which require:
to maintain (i) at all times, a Total Leverage Bati an amount not to exceed 3.25 to 1.00 throughGompanys fiscal quarter endi
September 30, 2016, and thereafter, in an amourtbrexceed 3.00 to 1.00; and (ii) a Fixed Chargeetage Ratio (as defined in the Tert
Credit Agreement), as of the last day of each figoarter, in an amount not less than 1.25 to 1.00.

The Term A Credit Agreement contains customary tsveh default, including with respect to: nonpayinehprincipal, interest, fees
other amounts; failure to perform or observe comgsiamaterial inaccuracy of a representation oravdy when made; crostefault to othe
material indebtedness; bankruptcy, insolvency aisdotution events; inability to pay debts; monetarggment defaults; actual or asse
invalidity or impairment of any definitive loan dementation, repudiation of guaranties or suboriinaierms; certain ERISA related events
a change of control.

The obligations of the Comparsysubsidiary that is the borrower under the Craditeement are guaranteed by the Company anc
other United States domestic subsidiary of the GomgpThe Credit Agreement and any interest ratéeption and other hedging arrangem
provided by any lender party to the Credit Facibtyany affiliate of such a lender are secured dinsa priority basis by a perfected secu
interest in substantially all of the borrower'se tiompany’s and each guarantor’'s assets (subjeettain exceptions).

Term B Loan Facility

On December 20, 2013, we entered into a Term LaadiCAgreement (the “Term B Loan Credit Agreemgathong ARC, as borrow:
JPMorgan Chase Bank., N.A, as administrative agadtas collateral agent, and the lenders partetihe€oncurrently with the Company’
entry into the Term A Credit Agreement describedva) the Company paid in full and terminated thenT8 Loan Credit Agreement result
in a loss on early extinguishment of debt of $5ilian in 2014.

The credit facility provided under the Term B Lo@redit Agreement consisted of an initial term Idacility of $200.0 million, the entire
of which was disbursed in order to pay for the pase of the Notes that were accepted under a eadhrtoffer and the subsequent redem
of the remaining outstanding Notes and to pay aatamtfees and expenses in connection with the tesster offer and redemption.

By refinancing the Notes with this Term Loan Credlifreement, we were able to reduce the effectiterést rate on our longrm dek
from 10.5% (or $21.0 million of interest per year $200.0 million of principal) to 6.25% (or $12.5llion of interest per year on $20(
million of principal).

10.5% Senior Notes

On December 1, 2010, we completed a private placeofel0.5% senior unsecured notes due 2016 (tlmeedN). During the third and four
quarters of 2013, we repurchased $12.3 millionggregate principal amount of the Notes in the aparket using available cash. In Decen
2013 we commenced a cash tender offer and conshixitagion for all of the remaining outstanding fée and accepted for payment all N
that were validly tendered, followed by a redemptaf all Notes which remained outstanding followitite tender offer. In addition, \
discharged all of our obligations under the indemtyoverning
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the Notes by causing to be delivered a notice @émgotion to holders of the remaining outstandingel@nd we deposited funds sufficier
pay and discharge all remaining indebtedness oiNtites, including accrued and unpaid interest. finehase and redemption of the Ni
resulted in a loss on early extinguishment of @él§16.3 million in 2013.

2012 Credit Agreement

On January 27, 2012, we entered into a Credit Agess: (the “2012 Credit Agreementiyhich, as amended in 2013, provided revol
loans in an aggregate principal amount not to ek&#.0 million, with a Canadian sublimit of $5.0@lian, based on inventory and accot
receivable of our subsidiaries organized in the(tWhited States Domestic Subsidiaries”) and Can@@anadian Domestic Subsidiarieshal
meet certain eligibility criteria. Concurrently Wwithe Company entry into the Term A Credit Agreement descrilabdve, the Compa
terminated the 2012 Credit Agreement.

Foreign Credit Agreement

In the third quarter of 2013, UDS, ARC’s Chinesem@ions, entered into a revolving credit facilitith a term of 18 monthsThe facility
provides for a maximum credit amount of 20.0 milicChinese Yuan Renminbi, which translates to UsS.3 million as ofDecember 3:
2014 . Draws on the facility are limited to 30 gmriods and incur a fee of 0.058fthe amount drawn and no additional interesherged. A
of December 31, 2014 , there was $1.8 million itstanding debt drawn on our foreign credit facility

The following table sets forth the outstanding hat borrowing capacity and applicable interes tatder the term loan credit agreer
and senior secured credit facilities.

December 31, 2014

Available
Borrowing Interest
Balance Capacity Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Term A Loan Facility (1) $ 173,000 $ 27,71¢ 2.74%
Foreign revolving facilities 1,89 1,35 0.6(%
$ 174,89 $ 29,07:

(1) Term A loan facility available borrowing cajitggc net of $2.3 million of outstanding standbytéet of credit as of December 31, 2014

As of December 31, 2014 , we had $28.8 million aital lease obligations outstanding, with a wesghtwverage interest rate of 6.8ic
maturities between 2014 and 2018.

Other Notes Payable

As of December 31, 2014 , we had $0.2 million ofesgpayable outstanding, with an interest rate.®¥%tand maturities in 2016. The
notes are collateralized by equipment previouslgipased.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 31, 2014 , we did not have any afébce-sheet arrangements as defined in Item 3@)({@)of Regulation S-K.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments
Our future contractual obligations as of Decemlier2®14 , are as follows:

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1to 3 years 3to 5 years 5 years

(Dollars in thousands)

Debt obligations $ 175,09¢ $ 17,53¢ $ 3506( $ 122,500 $ =
Capital lease obligations 28,78¢ 10,43: 14,08: 4,19¢ 78
Interest on long-term debt and capital leases 22,48 6,10¢ 10,16: 6,211 3
Operating lease 51,01 17,64¢ 23,61 8,03 1,72(
Total $ 27737¢ $ 51,72: $ 8291 $ 14093¢ $ 1,801
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Operating LeasedVe have entered into various non-cancelable operéases primarily related to our facilities.

Contingent Transaction Consideratiowe have entered into earnout obligations in conaeatith prior acquisitions. If the acquir
businesses generate sales and/or operating piroféscess of predetermined targets, we are obligetemake additional cash payment
accordance with the terms of such earnout obligatid\s of December 31, 2014wve recorded liabilities related to future earnpayment
consummated subsequent to the adoption of ASC B@&iness Combinationsf $1.8 million. Liabilities related to future earnout paym:e
are carried at fair value, and any changes invilire at each reporting period, are recognizediirconsolidated statement of operations.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our management prepares financial statements ifolcoity with GAAP. When we prepare these finangtdtements, we are requirec
make estimates and assumptions that affect theteebamounts of assets and liabilities and thdalsice of contingent assets and liabilitie
the date of the financial statements and the regaxmounts of revenues and expenses during thetirgpperiod. On an ogeing basis, w
evaluate our estimates and judgments, includingethelated to accounts receivable, inventorieerded tax assets, goodwill and intang
assets and lonlived assets. We base our estimates and judgmaenitéstorical experience and on various other factbat we believe to
reasonable under the circumstances, the resulthich form the basis for our judgments about theyoag values of assets and liabilities 1
are not readily apparent from other sources. Toetttent that there are material differences betwbese estimates and actual results
future financial statement presentation, financ@idition, results of operations and cash flows el affected. We believe that the accour
policies discussed below are critical to understamdur historical and future performance, as thesleies relate to the more significant ai
involving management's judgments and estimates.

Goodwill

In connection with acquisitions, we apply the psiomns of ASC 805Business Combinationausing the acquisition method of account
The excess purchase price over the fair value ttiangible assets and identifiable intangible asaeyuired is recorded as goodwill.

In accordance with ASC 35tangibles - Goodwill and Otherwe assess goodwill for impairment annually aSeptember 30, and mq
frequently if events and circumstances indicaté goadwill might be impaired.

At September 30, 2014, we performed our assessanendetermined that goodwill was not impaired.

Goodwill impairment testing is performed at theadimg unit level. Goodwill is assigned to repodinnits at the date the goodwill
initially recorded. Once goodwill has been assigtteteporting units, it no longer retains its asation with a particular acquisition, and all
the activities within a reporting unit, whether aed or internally generated, are available topsupthe value of the goodwill. During the tt
quarter of 2014, in connection with an operatigndcused reorganization of our business into #reg format, we realigned our managen
and reporting structure. The reorganization wademgnted to (1) better align our operations andsstdrritories to that of our customers,
quickly respond to the evolving needs of compamiperating in the AEC industry, our primary markg) eliminate redundant busin
practices, and (4) realize operational economiescafe by combining operational staff, sales statkoffice functions and streamlining ¢
management structure. We concluded that a numbeurofeporting units met the required aggregatidteria, and as a result, we aggreg
those reporting units into seven reporting unienidfied for purposes of evaluating goodwill forgairment as of September 30, 2014.

Goodwill impairment testing is a twstep process. Step one involves comparing thevidire of our reporting units to their carry
amount. If the carrying amount of a reporting usitgreater than zero and its fair value is gre#tean its carrying amount, there is
impairment. If the reporting ung’carrying amount is greater than the fair valbe,gecond step must be completed to measure thenaimi
impairment, if any. Step two involves calculatire timplied fair value of goodwill by deducting tfer value of all tangible and intangil
assets, excluding goodwill, of the reporting undnfi the fair value of the reporting unit as deteradi in step one. The implied fair value
goodwill determined in this step is compared to ¢herying value of goodwill. If the implied fair itee of goodwill is less than the carry
value of goodwill, an impairment loss is recognizegial to the difference.

We determine the fair value of our reporting uniséng an income approach. Under the income appreoeetdetermined fair value ba:
on estimated discounted future cash flows of eagwonting unit. Determining the fair value of a repa unit is judgmental in nature &
requires the use of significant estimates and apsans, including revenue growth rates and EBITDArgins, discount rates and future ma
conditions, among others.

Our projections are driven, in part, by industryadgathered from third parties, including projectgdwth rates of the AEC industry
segment (i.e., residential and non-residential)amtetipated GDP growth rates, as well as compaegific data
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such as estimated composition of our customer fiasenon-AEC vs. AEC, residential vs. nomesidential), historical revenue trends,
EBITDA margin performance of our reporting unitsurQevenue projections for each of ARGeporting units include the estimated respe
customer composition for each reporting unit, yieadate revenue at the time of the goodwill impairmamalysis, and projected growth r:
for the related customer types. Although we relyaorariety of internal and external sources ingrting revenue, our relative reliance on ¢
source or trend changes from year to year. In 201Rinto 2013, we noted a continued divergence detvour historic revenue growth re
and AEC non-residential construction growth rateswell as the “dilution” of traditional reprograps as the Company’dominant busine
line. Therefore, we increased our reliance upoari@l sources for our short-term and Idegn revenue forecasts. Once the forecasted re
was established for each of the reporting unitetham the process noted above, using the curremt BITDA margin as a base line,
forecasted future EBITDA margins. In general, o EDA margins are significantly affected by (1) sswe trends and (2) cost managel
initiatives. Revenue trends impact our EBITDA maggibecause a significant portion of our cost oésare considered relatively fiy
therefore an increase in forecasted revenue (p&tlg when combined with any cost management odpctivity enhancement initiative
would result in meaningful gross margin expansi®milarly, a significant portion of our selling, meral, and administrative expenses
considered fixed. Hence, in forecasting EBITDA niasgsignificant reliance was placed on the hisarimpact of revenue trends on EBIT
margin.

The estimated fair values of our reporting unitgevieased upon their respective projected EBITDAgimst which were anticipated
increase between 0 and 200 basis points from 202015, followed by year-overear increases of approximately 100 to 200 basdistpdn
2016, with stabilization expected in 2017. Thesshdiows were discounted using a weighted averageaf capital ranging from 11% to 13
depending upon the size and risk profile of theorépg unit. We considered market information isessing the reasonableness of the fair®
under the income approach described above.

The results of step one of the goodwill impairmtest, as of September 30, 2014, were as follows:

Number of

Reporting Representing
(Dollars in thousands) Units Goodwill of
No goodwill balance 1 3 —
Reporting units failing step one that continuedog a goodwill balance — —
Fair value of reporting unit exceeds its carryimjue by 25%-30% 1 7,28t
Fair value of reporting unit exceeds its carryidue by more than 75% 5 205,32:

7 $ 212,60¢

Based upon a sensitivity analysis, a reductionppir@ximately 50 basis points of projected EBITDAZ2614 and beyond, assuming
other assumptions remain constant, would resuibireporting unit proceeding to step two of thelysia.

Based upon a separate sensitivity analysis, a §8 paint increase to the weighted average cosapital would result in no reporting u
proceeding to step two of the analysis.

Given the current economic environment and the gimgndocument and printing needs of our customedsthe uncertainties regard
the effect on our business, there can be no asseithat the estimates and assumptions made foogespf our goodwill impairment testing
2014 will prove to be accurate predictions of theufe. If our assumptions, including forecasted HBA of certain reporting units, are 1
achieved, we may be required to record additiooaldgill impairment charges in future periods, whegtin connection with our next ann
impairment testing in the third quarter of 2014 0oran interim basis, if any such change consstatériggering event (as defined under /
350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Othéroutside of the quarter when we regularly perfaun annual goodwill impairment test. It is not pbk
at this time to determine if any such future impant charge would result or, if it does, whethahscharge would be material.

Revenue Recognitio

We apply the provisions of ASC 60Revenue RecognitionIn general, we recognize revenue when (i) pergeasvidence of ¢
arrangement exists, (ii) shipment of products hazuoed or services have been rendered, (iii) #hessprice charged is fixed or determin:
and (iv) collection is reasonably assured. Netssalelude an allowance for estimated sales retanasdiscounts.

We recognize revenues from Traditional Reprograph@olor Services and Onsite Services when senheee been rendered, wt
revenues from the sale of equipment and suppleese&ognized upon delivery to the customer or upctomer pickup.
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We recognize revenues from Digital services wherhservices have been rendered as they relataitmisg services, "digital shippir
and managed file transfer. Revenues derived fronDdgital Services include hosted software licegsattivities, which are recognized rate
over the term of the license.

We have established contractual pricing for cerf@aige national customer accounts. These contggsisrally establish uniform pricing
all service centers for Global Solutions. Reveremsied from our Global Solutions are recognizeithénsame manner as nGhebal Solution
revenues.

Management provides for returns, discounts andwalhtes based on historic experience and adjusts allmvances as conside
necessary. To date, such provisions have beemwtieirange of management’s expectations.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect tempodifferences between the amount of assets ahditiies for financial and tax reportii
purposes. Such amounts are adjusted, as appropoateflect changes in tax rates expected to beffect when the temporary differen
reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduar deferred tax assets to the amount that ig mialy than not to be realized. Change
tax laws or accounting standards and methods niegtaécorded deferred taxes in future periods.

When establishing a valuation allowance, we comsfdure sources of taxable income such as futenensals of existing taxal
temporary differences, future taxable income exetusf reversing temporary differences and carmyfnds and tax planning strategies. A
planning strategy is an action that: is prudentfaadible; an enterprise ordinarily might not taset would take to prevent an operating los
tax credit carryforward from expiring unused; andwd result in realization of deferred tax asskighe event we determine the deferrec
assets, more likely than not, will not be realinedhe future, the valuation adjustment to the defé tax assets will be charged to earniny
the period in which we make such a determination.

As of June 30, 2011, we determined that cumuldtigses for the preceding twelve quarters constitstéficient objective evidence |
defined by ASC 740-10ncome Taxe$ that a valuation allowance was needed. As of Béeg 31, 2014 the valuation allowance agai
certain deferred tax assets was $82.0 million .

In future quarters we will continue to evaluate bistorical results for the preceding twelve quartnd our future projections to detern
whether we will generate sufficient taxable incotoautilize our deferred tax assets, and whethearéigh or full valuation allowance is s
required. Should we generate sufficient taxablernme, however, we may reverse a portion or all efttten current valuation allowance. Be
on recent earnings in certain jurisdictions thera ireasonable possibility that, within the nexaryeufficient positive evidence may becc
available to reach a conclusion that a portiorhefvaluation allowance will no longer be neededsidsh, we may release a significant pol
of the valuation allowance within the next 12 manthhis release would result in the recognitioceartain deferred tax assets and a decrei
income tax expense for the period such releasecsrded. Any such adjustment could materially impag financial position and results
operations.

We calculate our current and deferred tax provisiased on estimates and assumptions that coult diffm the actual results reflectet
income tax returns filed in subsequent years. Adjests based on filed returns are recorded whenifiel.

Income taxes have not been provided on certainstnitilited earnings of foreign subsidiaries becausd earnings are considered t
permanently reinvested.

The amount of taxable income or loss we reporh#oviarious tax jurisdictions is subject to ongoénglits by federal, state and foreign
authorities. Our estimate of the potential outcarhany uncertain tax issue is subject to managemassessment of relevant risks, facts.
circumstances existing at that time. We use a riked~thannot threshold for financial statement recognitiord aneasurement of t
positions taken or expected to be taken in a taxmeWe record a liability for the difference betn the benefit recognized and measure:
tax position taken or expected to be taken on awrréturn. To the extent that our assessment df s positions changes, the chang
estimate is recorded in the period in which thedrination is made. We report testated interest and penalties as a componentofre ta
expense.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Biek” to our Consolidated Financial Statements for dsale on recent account
pronouncements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MakRisk

Our primary exposure to market risk is interesé nagk associated with our debt instruments. Wehadh fixed and variable rate deb
sources of financing. In 2014, we entered into 2581 million Term A Credit Agreement. Borrowingsden the Term A Credit Agreement b
interest at a rate equal to an applicable margis plvariable rate. As such, our Term A Credit &grent exposes us to market risk for cha
in interest rates. As of December 31, 2014 , we $2@3.9 millionof total debt, net of discount, and capital leabéigations, of whic
approximately 15% was at a fixed rate, with theagmer at variable rates. Given our debt positiobecember 31, 2014the effect of a 1(
basis point increase in LIBOR on our interest esgenould be approximately $1.7 million annually.

As of December 31, 2014 we were not party to any derivative or hedgingnsactions; however, we have entered into deri
instruments in the past to manage our exposurédoges in interest rates. These instruments allavget raise funds at floating rates
effectively swap them into fixed rates, without isechange of the underlying principal amount. Weehaot, and do not plan to, enter into
derivative financial instruments for trading or spkative purposes.

Although we have international operating entitiear exposure to foreign currency rate fluctuatimsiot significant to our financi
condition or results of operations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our financial statements and the accompanying nibias are filed as part of this report are listedler ‘Part IV, Item 15. Financi
Statements Schedules and Reports” and are settfeginning on page E-immediately following the signature pages of thimual Report o
Form 10-K, except for our quarterly results of @iems, which are included in Item 7 of this AnnRalport on Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatetiesigned to ensure that information requindektdisclosed in our reports under
Exchange Act are recorded, processed, summarinddeported within the time periods specified ia Securities and Exchange Commission
rules and forms, and that such information is aedated and communicated to our management, inaduaiim Chief Executive Officer and ¢
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allamely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Under the supervision and with the participatioroof management, including our Chief Executive €ffiand Chief Financial Officer \
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofdiselosure controls and procedures (as definelule 13a-15(e) and 156(e) under tr
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of DecemberB14. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executiveid@ffand our Chief Financ
Officer concluded that as of December 31, 2014 disclosure controls and procedures were effective

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financigdasing (as defined in Rule 13&(f)
or 15(d)-15(f) of the Exchange Act). Under the suimon and with the participation of the Compasyhanagement, including our Ct
Executive Officer and President, and our Chief Raial Officer, the Company conducted an evaluatbrihe effectiveness of its interi
control over financial reporting based upon thanfeavork inlInternal Control — Integrated Framewo(R013) issued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommissiRased on that evaluation, the Compangianagement concluded that its inte
control over financial reporting was effective dbecember 31, 2014 .

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdotes may deteriorate.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes to internal control overniife reporting during the quarter ended December2®14, that have material
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our internal control over financial reporting

Our independent registered public accounting fias issued an audit report on internal control éwmancial reporting, which appears below.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
ARC Document Solutions, Inc.
Walnut Creek, California

We have audited the internal control over financedorting of ARC Document Solutions, Inc. and sdibsies (the “Company”hs o
December 31, 2014 , based on criteria establighéaternal Control — Integrated Framewo(R013) issued by the Committee of Sponsc
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camjzamanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financ
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiser@ internal control over financial reportingclided in the accompanying Management’
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti®gr responsibility is to express an opinion om @ompanys internal control over financ
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight rBo@United States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetdodbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedigege considered necessary in the circumstancesbéleve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supemnvisi, the companyg principa
executive and principal financial officers, or pmrs performing similar functions, and effected lne tcompanys board of director
management, and other personnel to provide reakaasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of finan
statements for external purposes in accordance geétierally accepted accounting principles. A comimiinternal control over financ
reporting includes those policies and proceduras (h) pertain to the maintenance of records tihateasonable detail, accurately and f:
reflect the transactions and dispositions of theetssof the company; (2) provide reasonable asser#mat transactions are recordel
necessary to permit preparation of financial stetes in accordance with generally accepted acaogirrinciples, and that receipts
expenditures of the company are being made onlgctordance with authorizations of management anectdirs of the company; a
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding pr@rewnti timely detection of unauthorized acquisitioisg, or disposition of the compaay’
assets that could have a material effect on tlenéial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tcoh over financial reporting, including the posstp of collusion or imprope
management override of controls, material misstatémdue to error or fraud may not be preventedeatected on a timely basis. Al
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenet¢he internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk tha
controls may become inadequate because of changesnditions, or that the degree of compliance vifit policies or procedures n
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as obDecember 3:
2014 , based on the criteria establishedinternal Control — Integrated Frameworf013) issued by the Committee of Sponsc
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo&United States), tl
consolidated financial statements as of and forythar ended December 31, 2014 of the Company andeport datedvarch 13, 201
expressed an unqualified opinion on those finarste@tements and financial statement schedule.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
San Francisco, California

March 13, 2015
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

Certain information regarding our executive offeés included in Part I, Item 1, of this Annual Repon Form 10-K underExecutive
Officers of the Registrant.All other information regarding directors, execetivfficers and corporate governance required by iteim i
incorporated herein by reference to the applicatit@mation in the proxy statement for our 2015 @aimmeeting of stockholders, which will
filed with the SEC within 120 days after our fisgalar end of December 31, 2014 , and is set fartteu“Nominees for Director,”Corporat
Governance Profile,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Owstep Reporting Compliance,” and in other applieaféctions in the proxy statement.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item is incorp@aterein by reference to the applicable infornmaiiothe proxy statement for our 2(
annual meeting of stockholders and is set fortreufiEixecutive Compensation.”

The information in the section of the proxy stateméor our 2015 annual meeting captioned “CompeéasaCommittee Reportls
incorporated by reference herein but shall be ddeiuraished, not filed and shall not be deemedetanicorporated by reference into any fil
we make under the Securities Act of 1933 or thehBrge Act.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ainagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is incorp@aterein by reference to the applicable infornmatiothe proxy statement for our 2(
annual meeting of stockholders and is set fortheunBeneficial Ownership of Voting Securities” arfdEquity Compensation Pl
Information.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information required by this item is incorp@eterein by reference to the applicable infornmatiothe proxy statement for our 2(
annual meeting of stockholders and is set fortreuf\@ertain Relationships and Related Transactiamsl’ “Corporate Governance Profile.”

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorpatherein by reference to the proxy statement for 2015 annual meeting
stockholders and is set forth under “Auditor Fees.”
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ thnnual Report on Form 10-K:

(1) Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiimp Deloitte & Touche LLP

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&812013

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yesaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomssjlfor the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012@tI
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the yearedridecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaied December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules have been omitted as the redunformation is not present or is not preserdritounts sufficient to require submissiol
the schedule, or because the information requérénciuded in the Consolidated Financial Statemantsnotes thereto.

(3) Exhibits
See Item 15(b) below.
(b) Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed herewith as pafttbis Annual Report on Form 1R-or are incorporated by reference to exhibits mesty
filed with the SEC:
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Index to Exhibits

Number Description

3.1 Certificate of Ownership and Merger as filed witc&tary of State of the State of Delaware (incafzal by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Fori Blled December 27, 2012).

3.2 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, filed Mad® 2013.

3.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws, (incorporatedfbrence to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’'s F@&
filed on October 6, 2009).

4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate (incorporated by refeegto Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-kdilon
March 9, 2011).

4.2 Indenture, dated December 1, 2010, among ARC DontiB@utions, certain subsidiaries of ARC Document
Solutions as guarantors thereto, and Wells Fargdk Bdational Association, as trustee (incorporated
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Fori Blled on December 2, 2010).

4.2 Form of 10.5% Senior Note due 2016 (incorporatedefgrence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’'s F&4 filed
on December 2, 2010).

4.4 Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 10 28mong ARC Document Solutions, certain subsihar
of ARC Document Solutions as guarantors theretd,Marrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporétas
representative of the several initial purchasersofiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Regnt's
Form 8-K filed on December 2, 2010).

4.t First Supplemental Indenture dated December 203 28iong ARC Document Solutions, Inc., the Guarantor
named therein, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Aission), as trustee (incorporated by reference toitki4.1
to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 231 3).

10.1 ARC Document Solutions 2005 Stock Plan (incorpatdie reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 A (Reg. No. BB3788), as amended on January 13, 2005).»

10.2 Amendment No. 1 to ARC Document Solutions 2005 IS®lan dated May 22, 2007 (incorporated by refezenc
to Exhibit 10.63 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-Qdilen August 9, 2007)."

10.c Amendment No. 2 to ARC Document Solutions 2005 IS®lan dated May 2, 2008 (incorporated by referea
Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filedgust 8, 2008). »

10.¢ Amendment No. 3 to ARC Document Solutions 2005 ISfdlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@.the
Registrant’'s Form 10-Q filed August 7, 2009). »

10.t Forms of Stock Option Agreements under the 2006kS&tan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 110.&he
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-Qj(R®. 333-119788), as filed on October 15, 2004).»

10.€ Forms of Restricted Stock Award Agreements und@628tock Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibiR27
to the Registrant’'s Registration Statement on F&¢inA (Reg. No. 333-119788), as amended on Decefber
2004).~
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10.7

10.¢

10.¢

10.1¢(

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement un2@d5 Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.28 to the Registrant’s Registration Staént on Form S-1 A (Reg. No. 333-119788), as arttnd
December 6, 2004)."

Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement unded2&tock Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi9
to the Registrant’'s Registration Statement on F&+inA (Reg. No. 333-119788), as amended on JariiBary
2005).~

Form of ARC Document Solutions Stock Option Graptibe — Non-employee Directors (Discretionary Non-
statutory Stock Options) (incorporated by refereiocExhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed
December 16, 2005)."

Form of ARC Document Solutions Non-employee Diresfdonstatutory Stock Option Agreement
(Discretionary Grants) (incorporated by refererc&xhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed o
December 16, 2005)."



10.11 Amended and Restated ARC Document Solutions 2008id&me Stock Purchase Plan amended and restated
of July 30, 2009 (incorporated by reference to BiHiO.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed on mber 9,
2009).~

10.1z2 Lease Agreement, for the premises commonly knowdB8dsand 940 Venice Boulevard, Los Angeles, CAedat
November 19, 1997, by and between American Reppbigra Company, L.L.C. (formerly Ford Graphics Grpup
L.L.C.) and Sumo Holdings LA, LLC (incorporated tBference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’'s Rigtion
Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-119788), ad &h October 15, 2004).

10.1: Amendment to Lease for the premises commonly knasv@34 and 940 Venice Boulevard, Los Angeles, CA,
effective as of August 2, 2005, by and between SHimidings LA, LLC, Landlord and American Reprogragh
Company, L.L.C. (formerly known as Ford Graphic®@r, L.L.C.) Tenant (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed davember 14, 2005).

10.1¢ Lease Agreement for the premises commonly know8B8&sWest Julian Street, San Jose, CA, dated Fgbtar
2009, by and between American Reprographics CompahyC. and Sumo Holdings San Jose, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Regyistrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-Jj(Re
No. 333-119788), as filed on October 15, 2004).

10.1¢ Amendment to Lease for the premises commonly knasv835 West Julian Street, San Jose, CA, datectigffe
February 1, 2009, by and between Sumo Holdingsl8ae, LLC, Landlord, and American Reprographics
Company, L.L.C. Tenant (incorporated by referemcExhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q fileal
May 8, 2009).

10.1¢ Lease Agreement for the premises commonly knowtv@21 Mitchell North, Irvine, CA, dated April 1, 29,
by and between American Reprographics Company..&and Sumo Holdings Irvine, LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrant’s Regtion Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-119%88
filed on October 15, 2004).

10.15 Amendment to Lease for the premises commonly knasvh7721 Mitchell North, Irvine, CA, effective as o
August 2, 2005, by and between Sumo Holdings Inih€, Lessor and American Reprographics Company,
L.L.C., Lessee (incorporated by reference to ExHibil to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed on Noweml4,
2005).

10.1¢ Assignment of Lease and Consent for the premisesnzmly known as 17721 Mitchell North, Irvine, CAgtdd
effective April 28, 2009, by and between OCB, LIAnerican Reprographics Company, L.L.C. and Sumo
Holdings Irvine LLC (incorporated by reference tehibit 10.2 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-Q filed iday 8,
2009).
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Second Amendment to Lease for the premises comnkmoiyn as 17721 Mitchell North, Irvine, CA, dated
effective April 28, 2009, by and between Sumo Huoddi Irvine LLC, Lessor, and OCB, LLC, Lessee,
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thegRtrant’'s Form 10-Q filed on May 8, 2009).

Lease Agreement for the premises commonly knowtB8a8 V Street, Sacramento, CA, dated December 1,
1997, by and between American Reprographics CompahyC. (formerly Ford Graphics Group, L.L.C.) and
Sumo Holdings Sacramento, LLC (Sacramento Propéngdrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-J(R®. 333-119788), as filed on October 15, 2004).

Amendment to Lease for the premises commonly knasvh322 V Street, Sacramento, CA, effective as of
August 2, 2005, by and between Sumo Holdings SaaméonLLC, Landlord and American Reprographics
Company, L.L.C. (formerly known as Ford Graphic®@r, L.L.C.) Tenant (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed davember 14, 2005).

Lease Agreement for the premises commonly knows#asClinton Street, Costa Mesa, CA, dated Septe@Ry
2003, by and between American Reprographics Com(itrey Consolidated Reprographics) and Sumo Holding
Costa Mesa, LLC (incorporated by reference to ExHib.16 to the Registrant’s Registration Statenoent

Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-119788), as filed on Octdlier2004).

Lease Agreement for the premises commonly knowsil&sMonterey Pass Road, Monterey Park, CA, by and
dated November 19, 1997, between Dieterich-Postgaomand American Reprographics Company, L.L.C. (as
successor lessee) (incorporated by reference tiERR.26 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-K filed oraMh 1,
2007).

Indemnification Agreement, dated April 10, 2000,aca0m American Reprographics Company, L.L.C., America
Reprographics Holdings, L.L.C., ARC Acquisition Cb.L.C., Mr. Chandramohan, Mr. Suriyakumar, Micro
Device, Inc., Dieterich-Post Company, ZS Ford Land ZS Ford L.L.C. (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrant’s Registration &taént on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-119788), as fited o
October 15, 2004).

Restricted Stock Award Grant Notice between AmeriReprographics Company and Mr. Sathiyamurthy
Chandramohan dated March 27, 2007 (incorporatagfieyence to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s F&id
filed on March 30, 2007).»

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datedhVed.,, 2012, between American Reprographics
Company and Mr. Suriyakumar (incorporated by rafeesto Exhibit 10. 1 to the Registrant’s Form 8fike¢l on
March 21, 2011).A

Letter Agreement, dated February 21, 2012, by @&telden American Reprographics Company and
Kumarakulasingam Suriyakumar (incorporated by exfee to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’'s Form 8fileq
on February 21, 2012)."

Restricted Stock Award Grant Notice between AmeriReprographics Company and Mr. Suriyakumar dated
March 27, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Ext8Bi2 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on MaRh
2007).”

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datedhVed, 2011, between American Reprographics
Company and Mr. Rahul K. Roy (incorporated by reffiee to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 8i&df on
March 21, 2011).A

Agreement to Grant Stock dated effective Decemb@0@4, between American Reprographics Company and
Mr. Rahul K. Roy (incorporated by reference to Eihi0.36 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-K filed onidla 31,
2005).~
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Letter Agreement, dated February 21, 2012, by @&tebden American Reprographics Company and Rahul Roy
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thegRtrant’s Form 8-K filed on February 21, 2012).~

First Amendment to Agreement to Grant Stock datey W7, 2006 between American Reprographics Compan
and Mr. Rahul K. Roy (incorporated by referenc&xibit 10.48 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-K filed o
March 1, 2007).»

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreerdated March 21, 2011, between American
Reprographics Company and Dilantha Wijesuriya (ipocated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Regigts
Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2011). »

Letter Agreement, dated February 21, 2012, by ataiden American Reprographics Company and Dilantha
Wijesuriya (incorporated by reference to ExhibitZLfb the Registrant's Form 8-K filed on Februaty 2012)."

Restricted Stock Award Grant Notice between AmeriRaprographics Company and Dilantha Wijesuriyadiat
October 28, 2009 (incorporated by reference to likhD.79 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-K filed orbReary 26,
2010).

Executive Employment Agreement, dated April 14, Pddetween American Reprographics Company and Jorc
Avalos, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on April 15, 201

Separation Agreement, dated April 13, 2011, betwsmerican Reprographics Company and Jonathan Mathel
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlegRtrant’'s Form 8-K filed on April 21, 2011).»

Executive Employment Agreement, dated July 18, 20&iween American Reprographics Company and John
E.D. Toth, (incorporated by reference to Exhibitll® the Registrant’'s Form 8-K filed on July 18,12)."

Form of Indemnification Agreement between ARC DoeutSolutions, Inc. and each of its Directors and
Executive Officers.

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Employigrdement, dated March 13, 2013, between ARC
Document Solutions, Inc. and Mr. Rahul K. Roy.»

Letter Amendment, dated March 13, 2014, by and éetwARC Document Solutions, Inc. and Mr. Suriyakuma
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.47 toRegyistrant's Form 10-K filed on March 14, 2014).»

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datedhMa, 2014, between ARC Document Solutions, Inc
and Mr. Kumarakulasingam (incorporated by referegndexhibit 10.48 to the Registrant's Form 10-kdilon
March 14, 2014).»

Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 20%4and between ARC Document Solutions, Inc. anch Jot
Toth (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1He Registrant’'s Form 8-K filed on May 7, 2014).

Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 20%4and between ARC Document Solutions, Inc. and
Rahul K. Roy (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit2 to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed on May @12).”
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Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 20%4and between ARC Document Solutions, Inc. and
Dilantha Wijesuriya (incorporated by reference tdibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed oraj7,
2014).~

Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 20%4and between ARC Document Solutions, Inc. and
Jorge Avalos (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi# to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed on May @12)."

ARC Document Solutions, Inc. 2014 Stock IncentilenRincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1He t
Registrant's Form 8-K filed on May 6, 2014).

Amendment No. 1 to ARC Document Solutions, Inc.£281ock Incentive Plan (incorporated by referemnce t
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed iday 6, 2014).

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreedstat May 17, 2014 by and between ARC Documen
Solutions, Inc. and Mr. Suriyakumar (incorporatgdéference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's8¢K filed
on May 19, 2014).»

Credit Agreement dated November 20, 2014, among PREument Solutions, LLC, Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent, #fiedenders party thereto (incorporated by refezgndExhibit
10.1 to the Registrant’'s Form 8-K filed on NovemBér 2014).

List of Subsidiaries.*
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Number

Description

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Rieged Public Accounting Firm.*
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursutdo Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the SecuritieshBnge
Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 3@Be@Barbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuao Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the SecuritieshEnge
Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 3@Be@Barbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioB8e906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdioB8e906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
101.INS XBRL Instance Document *
101.SCt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema *
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase *
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase *
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase *
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase *
* Filed herewith
n Indicates management contract or compensatary i agreement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registhas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, INC.

By: /sl KUMARAKULASINGAM SURIYAKUMAR
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 13, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons on behalf of
registrant in the capacities and on the dates atelit

Signature Title Date
/sl KUMARAKULASINGAM SURIYAKUMAR Chairman, President and March 13, 2015
Kumarakulasingam Suriyakumar Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl JORGE AVALOS Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial March 13, 2015
Jorge Avalos Officer)
/s THOMAS J. FORMOLO Director March 13, 2015

Thomas J. Formolo

/s/ ERIBERTO SCOCIMARA Director March 13, 2015
Eriberto Scocimara

/s DEWITT KERRY MCCLUGGAGE Director March 13, 2015
Dewitt Kerry McCluggage

/sl JAMES F. MCNULTY Director March 13, 2015
James F. McNulty

/sl MARK W. MEALY Director March 13, 2015
Mark W. Mealy
/sl MANUEL PEREZ DE LA MESA Director March 13, 2015

Manuel Perez de la Mesa
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
ARC Document Solutions, Inc.
Walnut Creek, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of ARC Document Solutions, Inc. and slidrsés (the “Company”as o
December 31, 2014 and 201and the related consolidated statements of dpasatcomprehensive income (loss), equity, and dasvs for
each of the three years in the period ended Deaegihe014. Our audits also included the financial statensetiedule listed in the Index
Item 15. These financial statements and finant¢&kement schedule are the responsibility of the amg’'s management. Our responsibilit
to express an opinion on these financial statenmmdinancial statement schedule based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversightaBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet daodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimntecial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateteegpresent fairly, in all material respects, thearicial position of ARC Docume
Solutions, Inc. and subsidiaries as of DecembeRB14 and 2013 and the results of their operations and theih ¢ksvs for each of the thr
years in the period enddDecember 31, 2014in conformity with accounting principles geneyailccepted in the United States of Amel
Also, in our opinion, such financial statement siile, when considered in relation to the basic cliaigted financial statements taken
whole, presents fairly, in all material respedtg, information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the Company’
internal control over financial reporting as of Bawer 31, 2014 , based on the criteria establish&dernal Control—ntegrated Framewol
(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgitns of the Treadway Commission and our repated March 13, 2015expressed
unqualified opinion on the Company'’s internal cohtiver financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
San Francisco, California

March 13, 2015




ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except per share data)

December 31,

December 31,

2014 2013
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 22,63¢ 27,36:
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for accoweteivable 082,413 and $2,517 62,04t 56,32¢
Inventories, net 16,25 14,04°
Deferred income taxes 27¢ 35¢€
Prepaid expenses 4,76 4,32¢
Other current assets 6,08( 4,01
Total current assets 112,05 106,43(
Property and equipment, net of accumulated degreciaf $214,697 and $206,636 59,52( 56,18:
Goodwill 212,60t 212,60¢
Other intangible assets, net 23,84 27,85¢
Deferred financing fees, net 2,44( 3,24%
Deferred income taxes 1,11(C 1,18¢
Other assets 2,49: 2,41¢
Total assets $ 414,06! 409,92:
Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 26,86¢ 23,36
Accrued payroll and payroll-related expenses 13,76¢ 11,497
Accrued expenses 22,79 21,36t
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lsase 27,96¢ 21,50(
Total current liabilities 91,39: 77,72¢
Long-term debt and capital leases 175,91¢ 198,22¢
Deferred income taxes 33,46 31,66
Other long-term liabilities 3,45¢ 3,16:
Total liabilities 304,23( 310,78:
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Stockholders’ equity:
ARC Document Solutions, Inc. stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 25,000 sharb®rared;0 shares issued and outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 150,000 sharesanghl;46,800 and 46,365 shares issued and
46,723 and 46,320 shares outstanding 47 46
Additional paid-in capital 110,65( 105,80¢
Retained deficit (7,359 (14,629
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (167) 634
103,18: 91,85¢
Less cost of common stock in treasufy.and 45 shares 40¢ 16¢
Total ARC Document Solutions, Inc. stockholdersligg 102,77" 91,69(
Noncontrolling interest 7,062 7,44¢
Total equity 109,83t 99,13¢
Total liabilities and equity $ 414,06! 409,92:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.






ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended
December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Service sales $ 371,88: % 355,35 350,26(
Equipment and supplies sales 51,87: 51,83} 55,85¢

Total net sales 423,75t 407,19! 406,11¢
Cost of sales 279,47¢ 272,85¢ 282,59¢

Gross profit 144,27¢ 134,33 123,51¢
Selling, general and administrative expenses 107,67 96,80( 93,07«
Amortization of intangible assets 5,98 6,612 11,03t
Goodwill impairment — — 16,707
Restructuring expense 777 2,544 3,32(

Income (loss) from operations 29,84: 28,38: (61¢€)
Other income, net (96) (10¢€) (200
Loss on extinguishment of debt 5,59¢ 16,33¢ —
Interest expense, net 14,56( 23,73 28,16¢

Income (loss) before income tax provision 9,77¢ (11,589 (28,687)
Income tax provision 2,34¢ 2,98¢ 2,78¢

Net income (loss) 7,431 (14,579 (31,46%)
Income attributable to noncontrolling interest (15€) (74¢) (509)

Net income (loss) attributable to ARC Document 8ohs, Inc. shareholders $ 7278 $ (15,329 (31,969
Earnings (loss) per share attributable to ARC Dasnin$olutions, Inc.
shareholders:

Basic $ 0.1¢ $ (0.39) (0.70)

Diluted $ 0.1f $ (0.39) (0.70)
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 46,24¢ 45,85¢ 45,66¢

Diluted 47,08¢ 45,85¢ 45,66¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended
December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Net income (loss) $ 7,431 % (14,577 $ (31,46Y)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustments (857) 19C 34t
Amortization of derivative, net of tax effect $9, $0 and $1,285 — — 2,15¢
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (857) 19C 2,49¢
Comprehensive income (loss) 6,58( (14,38%) (28,96¢)
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontroliiigrest 10C 99:¢ 553
Comprehensive income (loss) income attributablkR€ Document Solutions, Inc.
shareholders $ 6,48 $ (15,378 $ (29,519

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
(In thousands, except per share data)

ARC Document Solutions, Inc. Shareholders

Common Stock Accumulated
Additional Other Common
Par Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Stock in Noncontrolling
Shares Value Capital Earnings Income (loss) Treasury Interest Total
Balance at December 31, 201. 46,23t $ 46 $ 99,72¢ $ 3266: $ 1,760 $ — 6,38¢ $ 137,06
Stock-based compensation 6 1,99¢ $ 1,99¢
Issuance of common stock unt
Employee Stock Purchase Pla 6 28 $ 28
Stock options exercised 15 79 $ 79
Tax benefit from stock-based
compensation, net of tax
deficiency — 67€ $ 67€
Treasury shares 12 — — (44) $ (44)
Comprehensive loss — (31,96%) 2,44¢ — 55¢ $ (28,96¢)
Balance at December 31, 2012 46,27: $ 46  $ 102,51 $ 69t $ 68¢ $ (44 $ 6,941 $ 110,83
Stock-based compensation 41 3,207 3,207
Issuance of common stock under
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 6 3C 30
Stock options exercised 11 5¢ 59
Dividends paid to
noncontrolling interest — (48E) (48%)
Treasury shares 33 — (129 (124
Comprehensive loss — (15,329 (55) — 993 (14,38%)
Balance at December 31, 2013 46,36: $ 46 $ 105,80t $ (14,620 $ 634 $ (168) $ 744¢ $  99,13¢
Stock-based compensation 167 3,53: — 3,532
Issuance of common stock under
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 13 82 — 82
Stock options exercised 225 1 1,23( 1,231
Treasury shares 32 — — (240) (240)
Dividends paid to
noncontrolling interest — — — (48€) (48€)
Comprehensive income (loss) — 7,27¢ (795) — 10C 6,58(
Balance at December 31, 201: 46,80( $ 47 $ 110,65( $ (7,359 $ 161 $ (40¢) $ 7,06 $ 109,83t

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @eshgrovided by operating activities:

Allowance for accounts receivable
Depreciation

Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of bond discount

Goodwill impairment

Stock-based compensation

Deferred income taxes

Deferred tax valuation allowance
Restructuring expense, non-cash portion
Amortization of derivative, net of tax effect
Loss on early extinguishment of debt

Other non-cash items, net

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business acquisitions:

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures
Payments for businesses acquired, net of cashradqui
Other
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from stock option exercises
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under Erapl8yock Purchase Plan
Share repurchases, including shares surrenderéaixfarithholding
Proceeds from borrowings on long-term debt agreésnen
Payments of debt extinguishment costs
Early extinguishment of long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt agreements and cagétse$
Net borrowings (repayments) under revolving créatitlities
Payment of deferred financing costs
Dividends paid to noncontrolling interest
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash haks
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest
Income taxes paid (received), net

Noncash financing activities:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
7431 $ (14,579 (31,46
54¢ 63€ 45¢
28,14 28,13¢ 28,48’
5,981 6,61¢ 11,03
75¢ 1,09¢ 1,08¢
764 671 611
— — 16,70
3,80: 3,207 1,99¢
5,42¢ (4,909 (6,439
(3,557) 7,27 9,75¢(
= 244 2,37¢
— — 2,15
5,59¢ 16,33 =
(462) (329 321
(6,899) (5,139 2,53
(2,220 37€ (3,008
(1,830 1,96¢ 1,03
6,51( 5,17¢ (97)
50,01 46,79¢ 37,55:
(13,269 (18,19) (20,349
(342 — —
(188) 741 322
(13,799 (17,45() (20,02}
1,22 59 7¢
82 30 28
(240 (124 —
175,00 196,40: —
— (11,330) —
(194,50() (200,001 —
(19,217 (12,379 (15,609
08 (237) 1,26¢
(2,739 (2,220) (839
(486) (488) —
(40,777) (30,289 (15,06)
171 277 12¢
(4,726 (659 2,58t
27,36 28,02: 25,43
2263t $ 27,36: 28,02
13,30 22,87¢ 23,27
54¢ (3,345 (122)



Capital lease obligations incurred $ 19,058 $
Liabilities in connection with the acquisition afisinesses $ 1,76¢ $

Liabilities in connection with deferred financingsts $ 8 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtheasolidated financial statements.
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ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data or where othetise noted)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

ARC Document Solutions, Inc. (“ARC Document Solasg “ARC” or the “Company”)s a leading document solutions company se!
businesses of all types, with an emphasis on thmeresidential segment of the architecture, engingeaind construction (“AEC")ndustry
ARC offers a variety of services including: Ons8ervices, Digital Services, Color Services, anddifi@nal Reprographics Services.
addition, ARC also sells Equipment and Suppliese Tompany conducts its operations through its whmlned operating subsidiary, Al
Document Solutions, LLC, a Texas limited liabildtgmpany, and its affiliates.

Basis of Presentatiol

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statenmanbsde the accounts of the Company and its sudnsédi. All material intercompa
accounts and transactions have been eliminateshisotidation.

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptedthie United States of Ameri
(“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assmspiat affect the amounts reported in the Conatd Financial Stateme
and accompanying notes. The Company evaluatestithaes and assumptions on an ongoing basis died om historical experience ¢
various other factors that it believes to be reabtsnunder the circumstances to determine sucmatgts. Actual results could differ from th
estimates and such differences may be materiakt€bnsolidated Financial Statements.

Risk and Uncertainties

The Company generates the majority of its revenomn fsales of services and products to custometiseirAEC industry. As a result, 1
Companys operating results and financial condition carsigaificantly affected by economic factors thatiueihce the AEC industry, such
non+esidential construction spending, GDP growth,regerates, unemployment rates, and office vacasigs. Reduced activity (relative
historic levels) in the AEC industry would diminislemand for some of ARE€’services and products, and would therefore nedataffec
revenues and have a material adverse effect busisess, operating results and financial condition

As part of the Compang’growth strategy, ARC intends to continue to offed grow a variety of service offerings that akatively nev
to the Company. The success of the Company’s effeilt be affected by its ability to acquire newstemers for the Compars/hew servic
offerings as well as sell the new service offeribgsexisting customers. The Compasyhability to successfully market and execute ¢
relatively new service offerings could significgndffect its business and reduce its long term meee resulting in an adverse effect or
results of operations and financial condition.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents include demand deposits and g#rontinvestments with a maturity of three month&es when purchased.

The Company maintains its cash deposits at numdraniss located throughout the United States, Canadi, the United Kingdom a
China, which at times, may exceed federally inslirads. UDS, the Company’s operations in Chinddt#12.7 million of the Compang’cas
and cash equivalents as of December 31, 20kt Company has not experienced any losses maemounts and believes it is not expost
any significant risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Restricted Casl

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had restrictésh of $1.4 millionelated to a government grant received by UNIS Doau
Solutions Co. Ltd., (“UDS"), the Company's jownture in China, which was included in other cofrassets. Restrictions on the cast
removed upon approval by the governmental agengyapéct-based expenditures supporting technologgstments made by UDS.

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Significant Vendo

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to tradeeivables are limited due to a large, diversgtaner base. Nndividual custome
represented more than 4% of net sales during taesysnded December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 .
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The Company has geographic concentration risk las §a California, as a percent of total sales,ensgpproximately 30% , 31% ald%
for the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 ah? 2@spectively.

The Company contracts with various suppliers. Altjio there are a limited number of suppliers thatld¢csupply the Company’
inventory, management believes any shortfalls fexisting suppliers would be absorbed from othepiaps on comparable terms. Howeve
change in suppliers could cause a delay in salésidversely affect results.

Purchases from the Company’s three largest vertioisg the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2012@h2comprised approximate
33% , 36% , and 34% respectively, of the Compatota purchases of inventory and supplies.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company performs periodic credit evaluationghef financial condition of its customers, monitolections and payments fre
customers, and generally does not require collat€h® Company provides for the possible inabiii@ycollect accounts receivable by recort
an allowance for doubtful accounts. The Companytesrioff an account when it is considered uncoliéetiThe Company estimates
allowance for doubtful accounts based on histossalerience, aging of accounts receivable, andnmdition regarding the credit worthines:
its customers. Additionally, the Company providesaslowance for returns and discounts based owrigal experience. In 2014 , 201&nc
2012 the Company recorded expenses of $0.5 milli0.6 million and $0.5 million respectively, related to the allowance for doul
accounts.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (debeesh on a first-in, firsbut basis; or average cost) or market. Inventgrignarily consis
of reprographics materials for use and resale egigpment for resale. On an ongoing basis, invegare reviewed and adjusted for estim
obsolescence or unmarketable inventories to refleetiower of cost or market. Charges to increaseritory reserves are recorded a
increase in cost of sales. Estimated inventory lelssence has been provided for in the financidestants and has been within the rancg
management’s expectations. As of December 31, 2884013 , the reserves for inventory obsolescesmse$0.9 million .

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect temppouifferences between the amount of assets abditi@s for financial and tax reportil
purposes. Such amounts are adjusted, as approgdateflect changes in tax rates expected to beffect when the temporary differen
reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded to redhe Company's deferred tax assets to the amloamnistmore likely than not to be realiz
Changes in tax laws or accounting standards andadetmay affect recorded deferred taxes in futeregs.

When establishing a valuation allowance, the Compaonsiders future sources of taxable income sucfuture reversals of existi
taxable temporary differences, future taxable ine@xclusive of reversing temporary differences eardyforwards and tax planning stratec
A tax planning strategy is an action that: is pnidend feasible; an enterprise ordinarily might tadee, but would take to prevent an opere
loss or tax credit carryforward from expiring undsand would result in realization of deferred &ssets. In the event the Company deterr
that its deferred tax assets, more likely than not, will be realized in the future, the valuation adjusttrie the deferred tax assets will
charged to earnings in the period in which the Camypmakes such a determination.

As of June 30, 2011, the Company determined thatutative losses for the preceding twelve quartensstituted sufficient objecti
evidence (as defined by Financial Accounting Stassl®oard (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codificati’ASC”) 740-10,Income Taxe$
that a valuation allowance was needed. As of Deeer8b, 2014 and 2013the valuation allowance against certain defeteedassets wi
$82.0 million and $85.6 million , respectively.

In future quarters the Company will continue tolaate its historical results for the preceding teetjuarters and its future projection
determine whether the Company will generate swffictaxable income to utilize its deferred tax tsssend whether a partial or full valuat
allowance is still required. Should the Companyegate sufficient taxable income, however, a portorall of the then current valuati
allowance may be reversed. Based on recent earmrggstain jurisdictions there is a reasonablesjimlity that, within the next year, sufficie
positive evidence may become available to reachnalasion that a portion of the valuation allowamdl no longer be needed. As such,
Company may release a significant portion of theation allowance within the next 12 months. Thikease would result in the recognitior
certain deferred tax assets and a decrease to entarexpense for the period such release is redofny such adjustment could materi
impact our financial position and results of operz.
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The Company calculates its current and deferregtaxision based on estimates and assumptionsthed differ from the actual resu
reflected in income tax returns filed in subsequerars. Adjustments based on filed returns arerdecowhen identified.

Income taxes have not been provided on certainstritzlited earnings of foreign subsidiaries becaus#h earnings are considered t
permanently reinvested.

The amount of taxable income or loss the Compapgrts to the various tax jurisdictions is subjecbhgoing audits by federal, state
foreign tax authorities. The Company's estimatéhefpotential outcome of any uncertain tax issusulgiect to managemeatassessment
relevant risks, facts, and circumstances existinghat time. The Company uses a more-likely-thab-threshold for financial statem
recognition and measurement of tax positions takeexpected to be taken in a tax return. The Compecords a liability for the differen
between the benefit recognized and measured angbttion taken or expected to be taken on itgétxrn. To the extent that the Compa
assessment of such tax positions changes, the eharegtimate is recorded in the period in whioh determination is made. The Comp
reports tax-related interest and penalties as gooent of income tax expense.

The Company’s effective income tax rate differsnfrthe statutory tax rate primarily due to the vitraallowance on the Compasy’
deferred tax assets, state income taxes, siaskd compensation, goodwill and other identifiati@ngibles, and other discrete items. See
9 “Income Taxes” for further information.

Income tax deficiencies and benefits affecting ldtotders’ equity are primarily related to employteck-based compensation.

Property and Equipmen
Property and equipment are stated at cost andepreciated using the straight-line method over thgimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 10-20 years

Leasehold improvements 10-20 years or lease term, if shorter
Machinery and equipment 3-7 years

Furniture and fixtures 3-7 years

Assets acquired under capital lease arrangemeatsnaluded in machinery and equipment, are recomtethe present value of 1
minimum lease payments, and are depreciated usegttaightine method over the life of the asset or termhef lease, whichever is shor
Expenses for repairs and maintenance are chargexptmse as incurred, while renewals and bettesvastcapitalized. Gains or losses or
sale or disposal of property and equipment areceft in operating income.

The Company accounts for software costs developethfernal use in accordance with ASC 350-MiBangibles —Goodwill and Othel
which requires companies to capitalize certain ifgiaj costs incurred during the application deyetent stage of the related softw
development project. The primary use of this sofema for internal use and, accordingly, such edigitd software development costs
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the aoindives of the related products not to excee@gdhyears. The Compamsymachinery ar
equipment (see Note 6 “Property and Equipment’juihes $0.1 million and $0.3 millionf capitalized software development costs
December 31, 2014 and 2013 , respectively, netofimulated amortization of $17.5 million and $1mBlion as of December 31, 20%hc
2013, respectively. Depreciation expense includesmortization of capitalized software developheasts which amounted to $0.2 million
$0.3 million and $0.5 million during the years edd®ecember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

The Company periodically assesses potential impaitsnof its long-lived assets in accordance withglovisions of ASC 36@Rroperty
Plant, and EquipmenAn impairment review is performed whenever evemtshmnges in circumstances indicate that the cagryalue of th
assets may not be recoverable. The Company grtaipssets at the lowest level for which identigabhsh flows are largely independer
cash flows of the other assets and liabilities. Tooenpany has determined that the lowest level tuclvidentifiable cash flows are availabl
the regional level, which is the operating segnheve|.

Factors considered by the Company include, buhatdéimited to, significant underperformance relatto historical or projected operat
results; significant changes in the manner of ddb@acquired assets or the strategy for the dMeuainess; and significant negative indu
or economic trends. When the carrying value ofrgilived asset may not be recoverable based
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upon the existence of one or more of the abovesatdis of impairment, the Company estimates therdutindiscounted cash flows expecte
result from the use of the asset and its evenispbdition. If the sum of the expected future uadisited cash flows and eventual dispositic
less than the carrying amount of the asset, thepaagrecognizes an impairment loss. An impairmess is reflected as the amount by w
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the &hirevof the asset, based on the fair value if alsbdl or discounted cash flows, if fair valu
not available. The Company had no long-lived asspairments in 2014 , 2013 or 2012 .

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In connection with acquisitions, the Company agptlee provisions of ASC 80Business Combinationausing the acquisition method
accounting. The excess purchase price over thesebéair value of net tangible assets and idabt#iintangible assets acquired is record:
goodwill.

In accordance with ASC 350ntangibles — Goodwill and Othey the Company assesses goodwill for impairment aliyas o
September 30, and more frequently if events armigistances indicate that goodwill might be impaired

Goodwill impairment testing is performed at theadimg unit level. Goodwill is assigned to repodinnits at the date the goodwill
initially recorded. Once goodwill has been assigtteteporting units, it no longer retains its asation with a particular acquisition, and all
the activities within a reporting unit, whether azgd or internally generated, are available tgpsupthe value of the goodwill.

Goodwill impairment testing is a twstep process. Step one involves comparing thevédire of the reporting units to its carrying ama
If the carrying amount of a reporting unit is geahan zero and its fair value is greater thagatsying amount, there is no impairment. If
reporting units carrying amount is greater than the fair valbe,decond step must be completed to measure thentuwfoimpairment, if an'
Step two involves calculating the implied fair valof goodwill by deducting the fair value of alhtible and intangible assets, excluc
goodwill, of the reporting unit from the fair valwé the reporting unit as determined in step ortee implied fair value of goodwill determin
in this step is compared to the carrying value addyvill. If the implied fair value of goodwill iseks than the carrying value of goodwill,
impairment loss is recognized equal to the diffeeen

The Company determines the fair value of its répgrunits using an income approach. Under the irc@pproach, the Compe
determined fair value based on estimated discouiutiede cash flows of each reporting unit. The cistvs are discounted by an estime
weightedaverage cost of capital, which is intended to mftbe overall level of inherent risk of a repogtinnit. Determining the fair value o
reporting unit is judgmental in nature and requthesuse of significant estimates and assumptiookiding revenue growth rates and EBIT
margins, discount rates and future market conditioamong others. The Company considered marketniafion in assessing t
reasonableness of the fair value under the incgapeoach outlined above.

Other intangible assets that have finite livesaamertized over their useful lives. Customer reladitips are amortized using the accelel
method, based on customer attrition rates, oveér éiséimated useful lives of 13 (weighted averagsrs.

Deferred Financing Cost:

Direct costs incurred in connection with debt agreets are capitalized as incurred and amortizeddoas the effective interest method
the Company's borrowings under its term loan cragitement ("Term A Credit Agreement"). At Decembkr2014 and 2013the Compan
had deferred financing costs of $2.4 million and2$illion , respectively, net of accumulated anzation of $0.1 million and $0.5 million
respectively.

In 2014, the Company added $2.5 milliohdeferred financing costs related to its Term #edt Agreement. In addition, the Comp.
wrote off $2.4 millionof deferred financing costs due to the extinguishinia full, of its previous term loan credit agneent ("Term B Loa
Credit Agreement") and the termination of the Cony®2012 Credit Agreement.

In 2013, the Company added $2.7 milliohdeferred financing costs related to its Termm.@xedit Agreement and amended 2012 C
Agreement. In addition, the Company wrote off $&h#lion of deferred financing costs due to the egtiishment, in full, of its 10.5%enio
secured notes and the amendment to the Compary2sCG@dit Agreement.

Derivative Financial Instruments

As of December 31, 2014 the Company was not parany derivative or hedging transactions.

Historically, the Company enters into derivativetmments to manage its exposure to changes iresiteates. These instruments allow
Company to raise funds at floating rates and effelst swap them into fixed rates, without the exufa
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of the underlying principal amount. Such agreeman¢sdesignated and accounted for under ASC Bé#&yatives and Hedging Derivative
instruments are recorded at fair value as eithegtar liabilities in the Consolidated Balanceedfe

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were useth®yCompany in estimating the fair value of itsafigial instruments for disclosi
purposes:

Cash equivalentsCash equivalents are time deposits with maturityhoée months or lesshen purchased, which are highly liquid
readily convertible to cash. Cash equivalents rejgloin the Company’s Consolidated Balance Shee¢ 8r2 million and $12.9 millioas o
December 31, 2014 and 2018espectively, and are carried at cost and apprabe fair value due to the relatively short periodnaturity o
these instruments.

Contingent Liabilities: The Company recognizes liabilities for future eartnabligations on business acquisitions at theinfalue based
on discounted projected payments on such obligatibhe inputs to the valuation, which are levetfuts within the fair value hierarchy, are
projected sales to be provided by the acquirediiessies based on historical sales trends for wlaictoat amounts are contractually based.
Liabilities for future earnout obligations totale®ll.8 million as of December 31, 2014 .

Short- and long-term debThe carrying amount of the Compasycapital leases reported in the Consolidated Bal&heets approxima
fair value based on the Compasycurrent incremental borrowing rate for similapag of borrowing arrangements. The carrying arn
reported in the Company’s Consolidated Balance tSheeof December 31, 201@r borrowings under its Term A Credit Agreement aithe
notes payable is $173.0 million and $0.2 milliorespectively. The Company has determined thevidire of its borrowings under its Tern
Credit Agreement and other notes payable is $1mdliwn and $0.2 million , respectively, as of Dedeer 31, 2014 .

Insurance Liability

The Company maintains a high deductible insuraradeypfor a significant portion of its risks andsagiated liabilities with respect
workers’ compensation. The Company’s deductibl&250 thousangber individual. The accrued liabilities associateith this program al
based on the Comparsyestimate of the ultimate costs to settle knowamts, as well as claims incurred but not yet reggbtd the Company,
of the balance sheet date. The Compamgtimated liability is not discounted and is ldaggon an actuarial report obtained from a thirdyp
The actuarial report uses information provided g €Company’s insurance brokers and insurers, cadbivith the Compang’ judgment
regarding a number of assumptions and factorsudimt) the frequency and severity of claims, claoeselopment history, case jurisdicti
applicable legislation, and the Company’s claintlesment practices.

The Company is self-insured for healthcare benefitth a stop-loss at $250 thousapet individual. Liabilities associated with theks
that are retained by the Company are estimatepaify by considering historical claims experierdemographic factors, severity factors
other actuarial assumptions. The Compangsults could be materially affected by claimd ather expenses related to such plans if fi
occurrences and claims differ from these assumptonl historical trends.

Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company astisnpotential future loss accruals related tolJegarkers’ compensation, healthca
tax and other contingencies. These accruals reguaeagemens’ judgment on the outcome of various events baseth® best availak
information. However, due to changes in facts drmumstances, the ultimate outcomes could diffemfimanagement’s estimates.

Revenue Recognitio

The Company applies the provisions of ASC 6RByenue Recognitianin general, the Company recognizes revenue wh@ersuasiv
evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) deliveryprfducts has occurred or services have been reshd@ii) the sales price charged is fixe«
determinable and (iv) collection is reasonably esguNet sales include an allowance for estimasdesseturns and discounts.

The Company recognizes service revenue when serkienée been rendered, while revenues from theere$aquipment and supplies
recognized upon delivery to the customer or upataruer pickup. Revenue from equipment service ageats are recognized over the tert
the service agreement.
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The Company has established contractual pricingcéatain large national customer accounts (“GloBalutions”). These contrac
generally establish uniform pricing at all opergtsegments for Global Solutions. Revenues earmad fhe Companyg Global Solutions a
recognized in the same manner as non-Global Sokitievenues.

Included in revenues are fees charged to custofmeshipping, handling, and delivery services. Stmrenues amounted to $11.6 million
$12.1 million , and $12.9 million for the years edddecember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively

Revenues from hosted software licensing actividies recognized ratably over the term of the liceRsvenues from software licens
activities comprise less than 1% of the Compangissolidated revenues during the years ended Dec¢e3tb2014 , 2013 and 2012 .

Management provides for returns, discounts andwalhwes based on historic experience and adjusts allmvances as conside
necessary. To date, such provisions have beemwliRirange of management’s expectations.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Companys comprehensive income (loss) includes foreigneray translation adjustments and the amortized Value of th
company's previous swap transaction, net of takhe. previous swap transaction wasd#signated on December 1, 2010, as it no I
qualified as a cash flow hedge when the cash pdscéem the issuance of the Notes were used tooffathe Companys previous crec
agreement. At that time, the fair value of the Admth Swap Transaction was computed and the effegibrdon was stored in ott
comprehensive income and was amortized into incomteof tax effect, on the straight-line methodsdzhon the original notional schedule.

Asset and liability accounts of international opienas are translated into the Companfunctional currency, U.S. dollars, at currenes
Revenues and expenses are translated at the wb@eeage currency rate for the fiscal year.

Segment and Geographic Reportil

The provisions of ASC 280egment Reporting require public companies to report financial atescriptive information about th
reportable operating segments. The Company idestdperating segments based on the various busintegisies that earn revenue and ir
expense, whose operating results are reviewedébZtimpany's Chief Executive Officer, who is the @any's chief operating decision ma
Because its operating segments have similar predact services, classes of customers, productiooepses, distribution methods
economic characteristics, the Company is operat@ssingle reportable segment.

Net sales of the Company’s principal services andycts were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Service Sales
Onsite Services(1) $ 135,02( $ 121,55( $ 108,81
Traditional Reprographics 113,17¢ 116,67: 126,78!
Color 90,31( 83,60: 79,08(
Digital 33,37t 33,53¢ 35,57¢

Total services sales 371,88« 355,35¢ 350,26(
Equipment and Supplies Sales 51,87: 51,83 55,85¢

Total net sales $ 423,75t $ 407,19 $ 406,11

(1) Represents work done at the Company’s custaites which includes Facilities Management (“FMid Managed Print Servic
(“MPS”).

The Company recognizes revenues in geographic &@sesd on the location to which the product wappsd or services have by
rendered. Operations outside the United States bese small but growing. See table below for reesmand londived assets, net, excludi
intangible assets, attributable to the CompanyS. dperations and foreign operations.
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Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Foreign Foreign Foreign
U.S. Countries Total uU.S. Countries Total uU.S. Countries Total

Revenues

from externa

customers $ 364,38. $ 59,37« $ 423,75t $ 354,99" $ 52,20 $ 407,19* $ 353,76: $ 52,35 $ 406,11
Long-lived

assets, net,

excluding

intangible

assets $ 51,82t $% 7692 $ 5952( $ 48,31¢ $ 786 $ 56,18 $ 48,48t $ 798t $ 56,47

Advertising and Shipping and Handling Cos

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred andoappated $1.7 million , $1.4 million , and $1.5 hah during the years end
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectivaippshg and handling costs incurred by the Compameyincluded in cost of sales.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company applies the Black-Scholes valuationehioddetermining the fair value of sharased payments to employees, which is
amortized on a straight-line basis over the retpisérvice period.

Total stock-based compensation for the years ebdgegmber 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , was $3.8 miJl83.2 million and $2.0 million
respectively and was recorded in selling, genenad, administrative expenses, consistent with thestfication of the underlying salaries
accordance with ASC 718 come Taxes the excess tax benefit resulting from stbased compensation, in the Consolidated Statenoé
Cash Flows, are classified as financing cash irglow

The weighted average fair value at the grant dateoptions issued in the fiscal years ended Dece®ibe2014 , 2013 and 201 2vas
$3.69 , $1.57 and $2.97 respectively. The fair @alfi each option grant was estimated on the datgasft using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model using the following weighted averagsumptions for the years ended December 31, 2012G1 3 and 2012 :

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Weighted average assumptions used:
Risk free interest rate 2.12% 1.3¢% 1.17%
Expected volatility 57.2% 59.7% 54.8%
Expected dividend yield —% —% —%

Using historical exercise data as a basis, the @osngetermined that the expected term for stoclonptissued in 2014 , 2013 ag@1z
was 7.1 years, 7.0 years and 7.1 years, resphctive

For fiscal years 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , expectaekgtrice volatility is based on the Compan¥iistorical volatility for a period equal
the expected term. The rigiee interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasetd gurve in effect at the time of grant with amie@lent remainin
term. The Company has not paid dividends in th¢ @ad does not currently plan to pay dividendshimtiear future. The Company assum
forfeiture rate of 3% in 2014 , 3% in 2013 and 292012 . The Company’assumed forfeiture rate is based on the histdoc@iture rate fo
employees at similar levels in the Company. The Gamy reviews its forfeiture rate at least on anuahbasis.

As of December 31, 2014 , total unrecognized stmmded compensation expense related to nonvestekitsieed compensation v
approximately $3.7 million , which is expected ®recognized over a weighted average period ofoxipately 1.8 years.

For additional information, see Note 10 “Employ¢ec® Purchase Plan and Stock Plan.”

Research and Development Expen:

Research and development activities relate to cass®ciated with the design and testing of newntelclgy or enhancements ¢
maintenance to existing technology. Such costegpensed as incurred are primarily recorded toaostles. In total,
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research and development amounted to $6.3 mill&55 million and $5.4 million during the fiscalams ended December 31, 2014 , 2ah8
2012 , respectively.

Noncontrolling Interest

The Company accounted for its investment in UNISWvoent Solutions Co. Ltd., (“UDS’)nder the purchase method of accountin
accordance with ASC 803Business CombinationsUDS has been consolidated in the Comparfinancial statements from the date
acquisition. Noncontrolling interest, which repnetse the 35 percent non-controlling interest in UDS,reflected on the Compary’
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Sales Taxe:!

The Company bills sales taxes, as applicable stoustomers. The Company acts as an agent anddboillscts, and remits the sales ta
the proper government jurisdiction. The sales tatesaccounted for on a net basis, and thereferaetr included as part of the Company’
revenue.

Earnings Per Share

The Company accounts for earnings per share inrdanoe with ASC 26arnings Per ShareBasic earnings per share are compute
dividing net income attributable to ARC by the waied-average number of common shares outstanding fopehied. Diluted earnings [
common share is computed similarly to basic easijpgr share except that the denominator is incdesenclude the number of additio
common shares that would have been outstandirgmion shares subject to outstanding options andisitign rights had been issued an
the additional common shares were dilutive. Comsitare equivalents are excluded from the computétitreir effect is antdilutive. Thert
were 1.5 million , 2.1 million and 2.3 million conum stock options excluded as their effect wouldehbgen antdilutive for the years end
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectivdig Companys common share equivalents consist of stock optissised under tl
Company'’s Stock Plan.

Basic and diluted weighted average common sharessamaling were calculated as follows for the yearded December 31, 2012Q1:
and 2012 :

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Weighted average common shares outstanding durengeriod — basic 46,24! 45,85¢ 45,66¢
Effect of dilutive stock options 843 — —
Weighted average common shares outstanding durengeriod — diluted 47,08¢ 45,85¢ 45,66¢

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards M08’ FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (W&P 201409 whict
supersedes the existing revenue recognition regeinés in “Revenue Recognition (Topic 605)he new guidance requires entities
recognize revenues when promised goods or serareesansferred to customers in an amount thataisfithe consideration that is expecte
be received in exchange for those goods or servik®s 201409 is effective for annual reporting periods begigrafter December 15, 20:
including interim periods within that reporting pmt. Early adoption is not permitted. The Compaggdrrently in the process of evaluating
impact of the adoption of ASU 2014-09 on its coititkd financial statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 20D8. The new guidance raises the threshold for@oda to qualify as a discontinued opere
and requires new disclosures of both discontinugerations and certain other disposals that do remtrthe definition of a discontinu
operation. It is effective for annual periods bediy on or after December 15, 2014. Early adopguermitted but only for disposals that h
not been reported in financial statements previoissiued. The adoption of ASU 2008-is not expected to have an impact on the Conig
consolidated financial statements. The Company adibpt this standard effective January 1, 2015. fduthe change in requirements
reporting discontinued operations described abpresentation and disclosures of future transactidtes adoption may be different than ur
current standards.
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3. RESTRUCTURING EXPENSES

To ensure that the Compasycosts and resources were in line with demandsaurrent portfolio of services and products, agemer
initiated a restructuring plan in the fourth quamé 2012. Restructuring activities associated witd plan concluded in the fourth quarte
2013. Through December 31, 2013 , the restructysiag included the closure or downsizing of 56 le Companys service centers, whi
represented more than 258bkits total number of service center locationsatidition, as part of the restructuring plan, thempany reduce
headcount and middle management associated witheitsice center locations, streamlined the senpmrational management team,
allocated more resources into growing sales caitegsuch as Onsite Services. The reduction in leeeddotaled approximately 300 fullme
employees, which represented approximately 10%hefG@ompany’s total workforce. To date, the Comphag incurred $6.6 milliorof
expense related to its restructuring plan.

Restructuring expenses include employee terminatiosts, estimated lease termination and obligatiosts, and other restructur
expenses. The Company'’s restructuring efforts ohedluservice center closures in both 2012 and ZDi8.Company closed or downsiz2g
service center locations in 2013, in addition tos88vice center locations in 2012. Restructuringeeses in 201grimarily consisted of revis:
estimated lease termination and obligation costgltiag from facilities closed in 2013 .

The following table summarizes restructuring exgsriacurred in 2014 , 2013 and 2012 :

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Employee termination costs $ — 8 15 $ 784
Estimated lease termination and obligation costs 554 1,80: 2,16¢
Other restructuring expenses 223 72€ 36¢
Total restructuring expenses $ 771 % 2,54, $ 3,32(

The changes in the restructuring liability from Beter 31, 2012 through December 31, 2014 are suimedaas follows:

Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 2,29¢
Restructuring expenses 2,544
Payments (4,309

Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 53¢
Restructuring expenses 77
Payments (1,209

Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 112

4. ACQUISITIONS

During 2014, the Company acquired five businesSessideration for the purchase of the fibesinesses included earnout liabilitie
$2.1 million , of which $0.3 million was paid instain 2014 with a remaining earnout liabilitiesdrale of $1.8 millioras of December 3
2014. The Company's requirement to pay these etliabilities is contingent upon the future finaalkcgrowth of the acquired businesses.
results of operations of the companies acquirede Hmen included in the Consolidated Financial Btates from their respective dates
acquisition. The acquisitions, individually andaggregate, were not material to the Company's ¢idiased results of operations.

During 2013 and 2012, the Company had no busirezgsisitions.

5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES RESULTING FROM BU SINESS ACQUISITIONS

In connection with acquisitions, the Company agptlee provisions of ASC 80Business Combinationausing the acquisition method
accounting. The excess purchase price over these$éair value of net tangible assets and idabtdiintangible assets acquired is record:
goodwill.

In accordance with ASC 35Mhtangibles-Goodwill and Otherthe Company assesses goodwill for impairment aliyas
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of September 30, and more frequently if events eincbmstances indicate that goodwill might be im@di At September 30, 2014,
Company performed its assessment and determineddbdwill was not impaired.

At September 30, 2012, absent the fact that the pados assesses goodwill for impairment annually faSeptember 30, the Compe
determined that there were sufficient indicatorsrigger a goodwill impairment analysis. The indara included, among other factors: (1)
Companys underperformance relative to its plan in thedttquarter of 2012, (2) the performance against gmeporting units whic
previously had goodwill impairment, (3) the econorenvironment, and (4) the continued decreasergeland small format printing at 1
Company'’s service centers, which the Company manege believes is partly due to customergreasing adoption of technology. -
Company’s analysis indicated that seven of its m@pp units, six in the United States and dneCanada, had a goodwill impairment a
September 30, 2012. Accordingly, the Company remmbia pretax, nonash charge for the three months ended Septemp@032@ to reduc
the carrying value of goodwill by $16.7 million .

Goodwill impairment testing is performed at theadimg unit level. Goodwill is assigned to repodinnits at the date the goodwill
initially recorded. Once goodwill has been assigtteteporting units, it no longer retains its asation with a particulaacquisition, and all «
the activities within a reporting unit, whether agd or internally generated, are available topsupthe value of the goodwill. During the tt
quarter of 2014, in connection with an operationéticused reorganization of the Company's busingssa regional format, the Compe
realigned its management and reporting structulne. fEorganization was implemented to (1) bettgnalhe Company's operations and ¢
territories to that of its customers, (2) quickbspond to the evolving needs of companies operatittte AEC industry, the Company's prim
market, (3) eliminate redundant business practiaed, (4) realize operational economies of scaledbining operational staff, sales si
backoffice functions and streamlining the Company's agament structure. The Company concluded that euof its reporting units m
the required aggregation criteria, and as a rethdtCompany aggregated those reporting unitsseten reporting units identified for purpc
of evaluating goodwill for impairment as of SepteanB0, 2014.

Goodwill impairment testing is a twatep process. Step one involves comparing thevédire of the reporting units to its carrying ama
If the carrying amount of a reporting unit is gexahan zero and its fair value is greater thagatsying amount, there is no impairment. If
reporting units carrying amount is greater than the fair valbe,gecond step must be completed to measure thenawioimpairment, if an'
Step two involves calculating the implied fair valof goodwill by deducting the fair value of alhtable and intangible assets, excluc
goodwill, of the reporting unit from the fair valwé the reporting unit as determined in step ortee implied fair value of goodwill determin
in this step is compared to the carrying value addyvill. If the implied fair value of goodwill iseks than the carrying value of goodwill,
impairment loss is recognized equal to the diffeeen

The Company determines the fair value of its répgrunits using an income approach. Under the irc@pproach, the Compe
determined fair value based on estimated discouiutenie cash flows of each reporting unit. The cHistvs are discounted by an estime
weightedaverage cost of capital, which is intended to mftee overall level of inherent risk of a repogtinnit. Determining the fair value o
reporting unit is judgmental in nature and requtfesuse of significant estimates and assumptionkiding revenue growth rates and EBIT
margins, discount rates and future market conditioamong others. The Company considered marketniation in assessing 1
reasonableness of the fair value under the incqpeoach outlined above.

Given the current economic environment, the changiocument and printing needs of the Compsirggistomers, and the uncertair
regarding the related impact on the Comparbusiness, there can be no assurance that theatstiand assumptions made for purposes
Company’s goodwill impairment testing in 2014 willove to be accurate predictions of the futureh&f Companys assumptions, includil
forecasted EBITDA of certain reporting units, ac¢ achieved, the Company may be required to readditional goodwill impairment charc
in future periods, whether in connection with thenpanys next annual impairment testing in the third geraof 2015, or on an interim ba:
if any such change constitutes a triggering evastdefined under ASC 35Mtangibles-Goodwill and Othéroutside of the quarter when
Company regularly performs its annual goodwill innpeent test. It is not possible at this time toedstine if any such future impairment che
would result or, if it does, whether such chargelldde material.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill fréemuary 1, 2013 through December 31, 2014 are swized as follows:
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Accumulated Net

Gross Impairment Carrying

Goodwill Loss Amount
January 1, 2013 $ 405,55¢ $ 192,95( $ 212,60¢
Additions — — —
Goodwill impairment — — —
December 31, 2013 405,55¢ 192,95( 212,60¢
Additions — — —
Goodwill impairment — — —
December 31, 2014 $ 405,55¢ $ 192,95( $ 212,60¢

Other intangible assets that have finite livesaam®rtized over their useful lives. Customer reladitips are amortized using the accelel
method, based on customer attrition rates, over #stimated useful lives of 1@veighted average) years. The Company acquirec
businesses during 2014 and recorded customerarsaip intangibles of $2.1 million related to tlegaisitions.

During the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company dedito consolidate the various brands that preiyorepresented the Company’
market presence in North America. Beginning in dap2011, each of the CompasyNorth American operating segments and their @
locations began to adopt ARC, the Companyverall brand name. Original brand names werd irse€onjunction with the new ARC bra
name to reinforce the Compasytontinuing presence in the business communitisgrves, and ongoing relationships with its cusis
Accordingly, the remaining estimated useful livéghe trade name intangible assets were revisedhdovi8 months This change in estims
was accounted for on a prospective basis, resutimgcreased amortization expense over the reviseful life of each trade name. There
no related impact for the years ended Decembe2@14 or 2013 . The impact of this change for theltemonths ended December 31, 2
was an increase in amortization expense of appieiyn $3.2 million . Trade names were amortizechgighe straightine method. Th

Company retired the original North American tra@denes in April 2012.

The following table sets forth the Company’s oth@angible assets resulting from business acqoistias of December 31, 204a#c¢

December 31, 2013 which continue to be amortized:

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Amortizable other intangible assets
Customer relationships $ 99,60¢ $ 76,29¢ $ 23,30¢ $ 97,77 % 70,49t $ 27,28(
Trade names and trademarks 20,37( 19,83 532 20,37¢ 19,79¢ 57¢€
$ 119.97¢ $ 96,13 $ 23,84. % 118,15 $ 90,29 $ 27,85¢

Based on current information, estimated future dixetion expense of other intangible assets fohezfcthe next five fiscal years a

thereafter are as follows:

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
Thereafter

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
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4,844
4,27¢
3,86¢
3,14¢
2,04t

$ 23,84:




Property and equipment consist of the following:

December 31,

2014 2013
Machinery and equipment $ 254,20t $ 241,62t
Buildings and leasehold improvements 16,39¢ 17,25¢
Furniture and fixtures 3,617 3,93¢
274,21 262,81
Less accumulated depreciation (214,69) (206,63f)
$ 59,52( $ 56,18:

Depreciation expense was $28.1 million , $28.1iarill, and $28.5 million for the years ended Decandie 2014 , 2013 and 2012
respectively.

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31,

2014 2013
Term A loan facility maturing 2012.74% interest rate at December 31, 2014 $ 173,00 $ =
Term B loan facility maturing 2018, net of originasue discount of $4,000 (repajdj.25% interest
rate at December 31, 2013 — 196,00(
Various capital leases; weighted average inteegstaf6.8% and 7.5% at December 31, 2014 and
2013; principal and interest payable monthly thitodpvember 2020 28,78¢ 21,51¢
Borrowings from foreign revolving credit facilitie8.6% interest rate at December 31, 2014 and 2013 1,89 1,811
Various other notes payable with a weighted avenaigeest rate 06.5% and 6.4% at December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively; principal and intepasiable monthly through June 2016 19¢ 401
203,88! 219,72¢
Less current portion (27,969 (21,500
$ 17591t $ 198,22¢

Term A Loan Facility

On November 20, 2014 the Company entered into diCAgreement (the “Term A Credit Agreementjth Wells Fargo Bank, Natior
Association, as administrative agent and the lengarty thereto.

The Term A Credit Agreement provides for the exim®f term loans (“Term Loans”) in an aggregat@gpal amount of $175.0 million
the entirety of which was disbursed on the Clodage in order to pay outstanding obligations unither Companys Term Loan Crec
Agreement dated as of December 20, 2013. The CAggdéement also provides for the extension of néwngl loans (“Revolving Loans’n ar
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $30.0ianill The Revolving Loan facility under the Term A CiteAgreement replaces t
Companys Credit Agreement dated as of January 27, 2012.démpany may request incremental commitments dcatfgregate princig
amount of Term Loans and Revolving Loans availaliider the Term A Credit Agreement by an amounttacéxceed $75 milliorin the
aggregate. Unless an incremental commitment tease the Term Loan or provide a new term loan reatat a later date, the obligati
under the Term A Credit Agreement mature on NoverdBe 2019. As of December 31, 201the Company's borrowing availability under
Term A Credit Agreement was $27.7 million , whicassthe maximum borrowing limit of $30.0 millisaduced by outstanding letters of cr
of $2.3 million .

Loans borrowed under the Term A Credit Agreemerar beterest, in the case of LIBOR rate loans, gtea annum rate equal to
applicable LIBOR rate, plus a margin ranging frori0Pb6 to 2.50% , based on the Comparijjbtal Leverage Ratio (as defined in the Ter
Credit Agreement). Loans borrowed under the Ter@r&dit Agreement that are not LIBOR rate loans l@rest at a per annum rate equ
(i) the greatest of (A) the Federal Funds Rate PlG9% , (B) the one month LIBOR rate plus 1.0p&6 annum, and (C) the rate of inte
announced, from time to time, by Wells Fargo Bad#itional Association as its “prime rate,” plus @)margin ranging from 0.50% to 1.50%
based on our Company’s Total Leverage Ratio.
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The Company will pay certain recurring fees withpect to the credit facility, including administoat fees to the administrative agent.

Subject to certain exceptions, including in certaircumstances, reinvestment rights, the loansnele® under the Term A Cre
Agreement are subject to customary mandatory prepayprovisions with respect to: the net proceeals fcertain asset sales; the net proc
from certain issuances or incurrences of debt (dthen debt permitted to be incurred under the $esfithe Term A Credit Agreement); the
proceeds from certain issuances of equity secsriéied net proceeds of certain insurance recovangxondemnation events of the Company

The Term A Credit Agreement contains customary a@spntations and warranties, subject to limitatiand exceptions, and custom
covenants restricting the ability (subject to vas@xceptions) of the Company and its subsididaescur additional indebtedness (incluc
guarantee obligations); incur liens; sell certaioperty or assets; engage in mergers or other fuadtal changes; consummate acquisiti
make investments; pay dividends, other distribiionrepurchase equity interest of the Companysasubsidiaries; change the nature of
business; prepay or amend certain indebtednesagenig certain transactions with affiliates; amdémeir organizational documents; or el
into certain restrictive agreements. In accordamitie the Term A Credit Agreement, the Company isnpted to pay dividends related to
equity securities payable solely in shares of ggsétcurities. In addition, the Term A Credit Agremsrhcontains financial covenants wt
requires the Company to maintain (i) at all timeg,otal Leverage Ratio in an amount not to exce2l ® 1.00 through the Companryfisca
quarter ending September 30, 2016, and thereaftan amount not to exceed 3.@01.00; and (ii) a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratiad@mec
in the Term A Credit Agreement), as of the last dagach fiscal quarter, in an amount not less thas to 1.00.

The Term A Credit Agreement contains customary &sveh default, including with respect to: nonpayinehprincipal, interest, fees
other amounts; failure to perform or observe comgsiamaterial inaccuracy of a representation oravdy when made; crostefault to othe
material indebtedness; bankruptcy, insolvency aisdotution events; inability to pay debts; monetarggment defaults; actual or asse
invalidity or impairment of any definitive loan deamentation, repudiation of guaranties or suboréinaerms; certain ERISA related events
a change of control.

The obligations of the Comparsysubsidiary that is the borrower under the Teri@rédit Agreement are guaranteed by the Compan
each other United States domestic subsidiary o€Civapany. The Term A Credit Agreement and any @serate protection and other hed
arrangements provided by any lender party to thedi€facility or any affiliate of such a lender aecured on a first priority basis b
perfected security interest in substantially altre#f borrower’s, the Company’s and each guaranémsets (subject to certain exceptions).

Term B Loan Facility

On December 20, 2013, we entered into a Term LaadiCAgreement (the “Term B Loan Credit Agreemgathong ARC, as borrow:
JPMorgan Chase Bank., N.A, as administrative agadtas collateral agent, and the lenders partetihe€oncurrently with the Company’
entry into the Term A Credit Agreement describedva) the Company paid in full and terminated thenT8 Loan Credit Agreement result
in a loss on early extinguishment of debt of $5ilion in 2014.

The credit facility provided under the Term B Lo@medit Agreement consisted of an initial term Idanility of $200.0 million, the
entirety of which was disbursed in order to paytfer purchase of the Notes that were accepted undash tender offer and the subsec
redemption of the remaining outstanding Notes anuhly associated fees and expenses in connectibrthei cash tender offer and redempt

10.5% Senior Notes

On December 1, 2010, the Company completed a priplaicement of 10.5% senior unsecured notes du@ @Hé “Notes”).During the
third and fourth quarters of 2013, the Company refpased $12.3 milliom aggregate principal amount of the Notes in theromarket usir
available cash. In December 2013 the Company coroetea cash tender offer and consent solicitatiorafioof the remaining outstandi
Notes and accepted for payment all Notes that walilly tendered, followed by a redemption of albtds which remained outstand
following the tender offer. In addition, the Compattischarged all of its obligations under the indea governing the Notes by causing t
delivered a notice of redemption to holders ofrér@aining outstanding Notes and the Company degubfiinds sufficient to pay and dische
all remaining indebtedness on the Notes, includiogrued and unpaid interest. The purchase and pebemof the Notes resulted in a loss
early extinguishment of debt of $16.3 million in130

2012 Credit Agreement

On January 27, 2012, the Company entered into ditCkgreement (the “2012 Credit Agreementi)hich, as amended in 2013, provi
revolving loans in an aggregate principal amounta@xceed $40.0 million , with a Canadian suliofii$5.0
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million , based on inventory and accounts recewalfl our subsidiaries organized in the US (“Unifidites Domestic Subsidiariesiyc
Canada (“Canadian Domestic Subsidiaries”) that megtin eligibility criteria. Concurrently with éhCompanys entry into the Term A Cre:
Agreement described above, the Company terminaee@8@12 Credit Agreement.

Foreign Credit Agreement

In the third quarter of 2013, in conjunction witls iChinese operations, UNIS Document Solutions IGd. (“UDS"), the Companye
Chinese business venture with Beijing-based Unigjdar, entered into a revolving credit facility wig term of 18 months The facility
provides for a maximum credit amount of 20.0 milliBhinese Yuan Renminbi, which translates to 3.3 million as of December 31, 2014
Draws on the facility are limited to 30 day pesazhd incur a fee of 0.05% of the amount drawnremddditional interest is charged.

Other Notes Payable

Includes notes payable collateralized by equiprpesitiously purchased.

Minimum future maturities of long-term debt and italjpease obligations as of December 31, 2014ar®llows:

Long-Term Debt Capital Lease Obligations

Year ending December 31:
2015 $ 17,53¢ % 10,43:
2016 17,56( 8,03t
2017 17,50( 6,04
2018 17,50( 3,39t
2019 105,00( 801
Thereafter — 78
$ 175,09¢ $ 28,78¢

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company leases machinery, equipment, and daficeoperational facilities under noancelable operating lease agreements. C
lease agreements for the Companidcilities generally contain renewal options gumdvide for annual increases in rent based on dha
Consumer Price Index. The following is a schedtiithe Company’s future minimum lease payments d3emfember 31, 2014 :

Year ending December 31:

2015 $ 16,92¢
2016 13,19¢
2017 10,41*
2018 5,351
2019 2,681
Thereafter 1,72(
$ 50,29(

Total rent expense under operating leases, induaianth-to-month rentals, amounted to $23.4 milli&24.1 million , anc26.3 millior
during the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2012@12], respectively. Under certain lease agreementsCtimpany is responsible for ot
costs such as property taxes, insurance, maintenand utilities.

The Company leased several of its facilities urildase agreements with entities owned by certaiitsofurrent and former execut
officers. The term of the final lease with suchatetl parties ended on March 2014. As of Decembg2@1l4, the Company is not party to
lease agreements with related parties. The rerpanse on these facilities amounted to $43 thous&0d million and $1.1 milliowluring the
years endeDecember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

The Company has entered into indemnification agesgswith each director and named executive offideich provide indemnificatic
under certain circumstances for acts and omissidmsh may not be covered by any directors’ andceff$’
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liability insurance. The indemnification agreememiay require the Company, among other things,dermify its officers and directors aga
certain liabilities that may arise by reason ofitlséatus or service as officers and directorsdpthan liabilities arising from willful miscondt
of a culpable nature), to advance their expensasiiad as a result of any proceeding against treta which they could be indemnified, an
obtain officers’ and directorshsurance if available on reasonable terms. Thaxe ftbeen no events to date which would requireCiirapan'
to indemnify its officers or directors.

On October 21, 2010, a former employee, indiviguatid on behalf of a purported class consistingllafion-exempt employees who w
or worked for American Reprographics Company, L.LaBd American Reprographics Company in the Sthtgatifornia at any time froi
October 21, 2006 through the present, filed aroacigainst the Company in the Superior Court off@ala for Orange County. The comple
alleges, among other things, that the Company tédlahe California Labor Code by failing to (i) pide meal and rest periods,
compensation in lieu thereof, (ii) timely pay waghkse at termination, and (iii) that those practie¢so violate the California Business
Professions Code. The relief sought includes damagstitution, penalties, interest, costs, anoriadlys'fees and such other relief as the ¢
deems proper. On March 15, 2013, the Company jaated in a private mediation session with claimanbunsel which did not result
resolution of the claim. Subsequent to the mediagiession, the mediator issued a proposal thatwe@epted by both parties. The Company
received preliminary court approval of the settlatnend awaits final court approval. The Compang haliability of $0.9 millionas o
December 31, 201¢klated to the claim, which represents managembeessestimate of the probable outcome based omiattion availabl
As such, the ultimate resolution of the claim cowgult in a loss different than the estimated tessrded.

On February 1, 2013, the Company filed a civil ctai against a competitor and a former employetaénSuperior Court of California
for Orange County, which alleged, among other ctaithe misappropriation of ARC trade secrets; ngnpebprietary customer lists that were
used to communicate with the Company's customeas imttempt to unfairly acquire their businessrior litigation with the competitor based
on related facts, in 2007 the competitor enteréal ansettlement agreement and stipulated judgménich included an injunction. The
Company instituted this suit to stop the defendiamh using similar unfair business practices agditria the Southern California market. The
case proceeded to trial in May 2014, and a jurgicemwas entered for the defendants. In Decembg4 2bie court awarded the defendant
attorneys' fees related to the case. In Februat$,28RC entered into a settlement with the defehdéth regards to attorneys' fees. Legal fees
associated with the litigation, including the satient with the defendant, totaled $3.8 million2014 and were recorded as selling, genere
administrative expense.

In addition to the matter described above, the Gomps involved in various additional legal procegd and other legal matters from ti
to time in the normal course of business. The Campmes not believe that the outcome of any ofahmatters will have a material effect
its consolidated financial position, results of @i®ns or cash flows.

9. INCOME TAXES

The following table includes the consolidated ineotax provision for federal, state, and foreignoime taxes related to the Company’
total earnings before taxes for 2014 , 2013 an®201

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Current:

Federal $ — 3 — ¢ 5¢
State 86 264 37C
Foreign 392 354 322
47¢ 61¢ 751

Deferred:
Federal 1,45:¢ 1,89¢ 1,35¢
State 34z 86¢ 48¢
Foreign 74 (399) 18¢
1,87( 2,36¢ 2,03
Income tax provision $ 2,34¢ % 298¢ $ 2,78¢

The Company's foreign earnings before taxes wei@ddlion , $2.3 million and $2.9 million for 20142013 and 2012 , respectively.

The consolidated deferred tax assets and lialsildansist of the following:
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December 31,

2014 2013

Deferred tax assets:

Financial statement accruals not currently dedlectib 3,661 3,211

Accrued vacation 914 763

Deferred revenue 42C 41¢

State taxes 62 162

Fixed assets 8,00« 6,40¢

Goodwill and other identifiable intangibles 25,07¢ 32,11:

Stock-based compensation 5,09¢ 6,061

Federal tax net operating loss carryforward 33,00¢ 31,817

State tax net operating loss carryforward, net 5,17¢ 4,58¢

State tax credits, net 994 942

Foreign tax credit carryforward 50¢€ 24¢

Foreign tax net operating loss carryforward 45k 361
Gross deferred tax assets 83,37: 87,09:
Less: valuation allowance (81,989 (85,557
Net deferred tax assets 1,38¢ 1,54
Deferred tax liabilities:

Goodwill and other identifiable intangibles $ (33,469 $ (31,66)
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (32,07Y) $ (30,12%)

A reconciliation of the statutory federal incomg tate to the Company’s effective tax rate is does:

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Statutory federal income tax rate 35% 35% 35%
State taxes, net of federal benefit 4 3 1
Foreign taxes 1 4 2
Goodwill impairment — — (8)
Valuation allowance (36) (63) (34
Non-deductible expenses and other 3 (@D} (@D}
Section 162(m) limitation 4 2 —
Stock-based compensation 1€ (8 4
Discrete item for state taxes 4 8 —
Discrete items for other 1 2 (€N}
Effective income tax rate 24% (26)% (10%

In accordance with ASC 740-1hcome Taxes the Company evaluates its deferred tax assedetermine if a valuation allowance
required based on the consideration of all avalabhlidence using a “more likely than natandard, with significant weight being giver
evidence that can be objectively verified. Thiseasment considers, among other matters, the ndtacgiency and severity of current |
cumulative losses, forecasts of future profitapilthe length of statutory carryover periods foemgiing losses and tax credit carryovers;
available tax planning alternatives. As of Decenfer2014, the Company determined that cumulative lossethiopreceding twelve quart
constituted sufficient objective evidence (as dadilby ASC 740-10lncome Taxe$ that a valuation allowance on certain deferresbeswa

needed.

Based on the Company’s assessment, the remaintndeferred tax assets of $1.4 million as of Decan3lde 2014are considered to
more likely than not to be realized. The valuatalowance of $82.0 milliormay be increased or decreased as conditions chanifehe
Company is unable to implement certain availabkeplanning strategies. The realization of the Comyps net deferred tax assets ultima

depend on future taxable income, reversals ofiegisaxable temporary differences or through a t@ssy back.
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As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had apprdri;n&94.3 million of consolidated federal, $105ullion of state and2.1 millior
of foreign net operating loss and charitable conotion carryforwards available to offset futureahbbe income, respectively. The federal
operating loss carryforward began in 2011 and beéjin to expire in varying amounts between 2031 2084 . The charitable contributic
carryforward began in 2008nd will begin to expire in varying amounts betwe&fi5 and 2019. The state net operating loss cawwgfd:
expire in varying amounts between 2015 and 2034e. fdreign net operating loss carryforwards begiexpire in varying amountseginning
in 2015 and 2034 .

Goodwill impairment item represents non-deductigpt@dwill impairment related to stock acquired inopryears. Nordeductible othe
items include meals and entertainment and othesithat, individually, are not significant.

The Company or one of its subsidiaries files incdenereturns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, aratious states and foreign jurisdictic
With few exceptions, the Company is no longer stttje U.S. federal, state and local, or ndrs. income tax examinations by tax author
for years before 2010. In 2010, the IRS commenceexamination of the ComparsyU.S. income tax return for 2008, which was cortagler
February of 2011. The IRS did not propose any adhjests to the Company’2008 U.S. income tax return. In 2011, the IRS roemced a
examination of the Company’s 2009 and 2010 U.Sorme tax returns. The IRS did not propose any samf adjustments to the Compasy’
2009 and 2010 U.S. income tax returns as of DeceBhe014 .

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeininrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

2014 2013 2012

Beginning balance at January 1, $ 26€ 9 26€ $ =
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear — — 26€
Reductions based on tax positions related to tioe pear (26€) — —
Reductions for tax positions due to expirationtafige of limitations — — —
Ending balance at December 31, $ — 3 266 $ 26€

The Company recognizes penalties and intereserktatunrecognized tax benefits in tax expenserdst expense of $0 af@7 thousan
is included in the ASC 740-1hcome Taxediability on the Company’s balance sheet as of Damer 31, 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

10. EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN AND STOCK PLAN
Employee Stock Purchase Ple

Under the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Pfen“BESPP”)eligible employees may purchase up to a calendar p@ximum pe
eligible employee of the lesser of (i) 2,5lfares of common stock, or (i) a number of shafe®smmon stock having an aggregate fair m:
value of $25 thousand as determined on the dapeirchase at 85%f the fair market value of such shares of comntonkson the applicab
purchase date. The compensation expense in coonegith the ESPP in 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 wastBaGsand , $5 thousand afé
thousand , respectively.

Employees purchased the following shares in thiegepresented:

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Shares purchased 13 6 6
Average price per share $ 6.2 $ 49C $ 451

Stock Plan

At the Company's annual meeting of stockholderd bel May 1, 2014, the Company's stockholders agutdlie Company's 2014 St
Plan (the “2014 Stock Plan'gds adopted by the Company's board of directors. ZlHel Stock Plan replaces the American Reprogrs
Company 2005 Stock Plan (the "2005 Plan"). The 2Btbtk Plan provides for the grant of incentive aodhstatutory stock options, stc
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restrictagtls units, stock bonuses and other forms of awgrdeted or denominated in the Compe
common stock or units of the Company's common staskvell as cash bonus awards to employees, alisesahd consultants of the Comps
The 2014 Stock Plan authorizes the Company to ispue
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to 3.5 million shares of common stock. At Decemdikr2014 , 3.0 million shares remain availablei$suance under the Stock Plan.

Stock options granted under the 2014 Stock Plaergdip expire no later than tgrears from the date of grant. Options generally aes
become fully exercisable over a period of threfots years from date of award, except that optigrasited to noremployee directors may v
over a shorter time period. The exercise priceptiods must be equal to at least 100% of the fairket value of the Comparsyfcommon stoc
on the date of grant. The Company allows for cashéxercises of vested outstanding options.

During the year ended December 31, 2014 , the Coyngeanted options to acquire a total of 518 thodsshares of the Company
common stock to certain key employees with an éserprice equal to the fair market value of the @any’'s common stock on the date
grant. These stock options will vest annually otfeee years and expire J@ars after the date of grant. In addition, the Gany grante
options to acquire a total of 48 thousand and bBghnd shares of the Compasgommon stock to its Chief Operating Officer atsdGhie
Financial Officer, respectively, with an exercigep equal to the fair market value of the Compamgmmon stock on the date of grant. T!
stock options will vest annually over four yearsl @&xpire 10 years after the date of grant.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Coyngamted options to acquire a total of 1.5 millglrares of the Company's comr
stock to certain key employees with an exerciseepegual to the fair market value of the Compaogfamon stock on the date of grant.

In 2012, the Company granted options to acquiraal of 631 thousand shares, of the Compamgmmon stock to certain key employ
with an exercise price equal to the fair marketigadf the Company’s common stock on the respedites of grant.

The following is a further breakdown of the stogkion activity under the Stock Plan:

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Weighted
Weighted Average Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Exercise Life Value
Shares Price (In years) (In thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 2,33t 9 7.64
Granted 1,508 $ 2.67
Exercised 11) $ 5.62
Forfeited/Cancelled (220) $ 7.61
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 3,61: $ 5.57
Granted 57¢ % 6.2t
Exercised (229 $ 5.5¢
Forfeited/Cancelled (28¢) $ 7.8¢€
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 3,681 $ 5.5C 7.15 $ 18,27¢
Vested or expected to vest at December 31, 2014 3,63 $ 5.51 713 $ 18,00:
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 1,87¢ $ 6.7¢ 5.89 % 7,371

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeagents the total pretax intrinsic value (theed#hce between the closing stock pric
December 31, 2014 and the exercise price, multiptie the number of in-theroney options) that would have been received byotbtéor
holders had all the option holders exercised thptrons on December 31, 2014 his amount changes based on the fair markeewafiithe
common stock. Total intrinsic value of options exsed during the years ended December 31, 20143 20d 2012 was $398 thousarkRy
thousand and $1 thousand , respectively.

A summary of the Company’s non-vested stock optiamof December 31, 2014and changes during the fiscal year then ended
follows:
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Weighted
Average Grant Date

Non-vested Options Shares Fair Market Value

Non-vested at December 31, 2013 1,94: $ 1.9C
Granted 57¢ $ 3.6¢
Vested (701) $ 3.0¢
Forfeited/Cancelled an $ 2.6¢

Non-vested at December 31, 2014 1,80 g 2.4z

The following table summarizes certain informatemmcerning outstanding options at December 31, 2014

Options Outstanding at

Range of Exercise Price December 31, 2014

$2.37 — $3.99 1,48¢
$5.37 — $7.19 1,167
$8.20 — $9.03 97¢€
$23.85 — $35.42 50
$2.37 — $35.42 3,681

Restricted Stocl

The Stock Plan provides for automatic grants ofrieted stock awards to namployee directors of the Company, as of each a
meeting of the Company’s stockholders having a thermarket value equal to $60 thousand .

In 2014, the Company granted 144 thoussinares of restricted stock to the Company's Chietttive Officer. The restricted stock ve
annually over four years after the date of gramtaddition, the Company granted 9 thousahares of restricted stock to each of the Comp
six nonemployee members of its board of directors at eeppier share equal to the closing price of the Gamyls common stock on the ¢
the restricted stock was granted. The restricteckstests on the one -year anniversary of the gtais.

In 2013, the Company granted 15 thousand sharesstifcted stock to each of the Company’s six aorployee members of its Boarc
Directors at a price per share equal to the clopiige of the Compang’common stock on the respective dates the restratbck was grante
The shares of restricted stock granted to the mopl@/ee board members vested on the one -yearersany of the grant date.

In 2012, the Company granted 9 thousand sharesstifiated stock to each of the Company’s six aomployee members of its Boarc
Directors at a price per share equal to the clopiige of the Compang’common stock on the respective date the restrgtteck was grante
The shares of restricted stock granted to the mopleyee board members will vest on the one -yenivansary of the grant date.

A summary of the Company’s non-vested restrictedkstas of December 31, 2014nd changes during the fiscal year then ended
follows:

Weighted

Average Grant Date

Non-vested Restricted Stock Shares Fair Market Value
Non-vested at December 31, 2013 34t $ 6.8¢
Granted 201 % 7.0¢
Vested (255 $ 6.1€
Forfeited/Cancelled 1 $ 8.5¢
Non-vested at December 31, 2014 29C g 7.57

The total fair value of restricted stock awardstegsduring the years ended December 31, 2014 , 26d32012 was $1.8 million$0.¢
million and $1.2 million , respectively.

11. RETIREMENT PLANS
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The Company sponsors a 401(k) Plan, which covedrstantially all employees of the Company who hatteireed age 21. Under
Company’s 401(k) Plan, eligible employees may d¢bate up to 75%of their annual eligible compensation (or in thesecaf highl
compensated employees, up to 6%4heir annual eligible compensation), subjectéatribution limitations imposed by the Internalvieaue
Service. During a portion of 2009, the Company mademployer matching contribution equal to 20%mfemployees contributions, up to
total of 4% of that employeg’compensation. In July 2009, the Company amentded(G1(k) Plan to eliminate the mandatory com|
contribution and to provide for discretionary compaontributions. In 2013, the Company reinstatesimandatory company contribution.
independent third party administers the Compan@5(K) Plan. The Company's total expense under thiess amounted to $80 thousaantt
$50 thousand during the years ended December 34,&@l 2013, respectively. The Company did not makedistretionary contributions
its 401(k) plan in 2012.

12. DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING TRANSACTIONS
As of December 31, 2014 the Company was not parany derivative or hedging transactions.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company was party doap transaction, in which the Company exchantggetloatingrate payments fi
fixed-rate payments. The swap transaction qualified assh flow hedge up to November 30, 2010. As of bdxsr 1, 2010, the sw
transaction was de-designated upon issuance dldtes and payoff of the Compasyprevious credit agreement. The swap transact
longer qualified as a cash flow hedge under ASC, &lérivatives and Hedging as all the floatingate debt was extinguished. As
December 31, 2010, the swap transaction had a inegftr value of $9.7 million, all of which was recorded in accrued expenses
January 3, 2011, the swap transaction was ternuramel settled. The loss was reclassed out of adeteduother comprehensive loss
income from 2011 to 2012.

As of December 31, 2014 , there is no amount dedeirr accumulated other comprehensive income cktatany swap transactions.

The following table summarizes the effect of the éxded Swap Transaction on the Consolidated StatsméiOperations for the ye
ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 :

Amount of Gain or (Loss) Amount of Gain or (Loss)
Reclassified from AOCL into Income Recognized in Income
(effective portion) (ineffective portion)
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Location of Loss Reclassified from AOCL into
Income
Interest expense $ — 3 — % 3,440 $ — 3 — 3 —

13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with ASC 82Fair Value Measurementthe Company has categorized its assets anditiebithat are measured at
value into a thredevel fair value hierarchy as set forth below Hé inputs used to measure fair value fall withiffiedént levels of the hierarct
the categorization is based on the lowest levaltitipat is significant to the fair value measurem&he three levels of the hierarchy are def
as follows:

Level 1-inputs to the valuation methodology aretgdgrices (unadjusted) for identical assets dilitges in active markets.

Level 2inputs to the valuation methodology include quagbeides for similar assets and liabilities in actimarkets, and inputs that
observable for the asset or liability, either dilyor indirectly, for substantially the full teraf the financial instrument.

Level 3-inputs to the valuation methodology arehs®@vable and significant to the fair value meavere.

The following table summarizes the bases used tsore certain assets and liabilities at fair valne recurring basis in the consolid:
financial statements as of and for the year endexkBber 31, 2014 and 2013 :
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Significant Other Unobservable Inputs
December 31,

2014 2013
Level 3 Total Losses Level 3 Total Losses
Recurring Fair Value Measure
Contingent purchase price consideration for
acquired businesses $ 1,76¢ $ — — 8 —

The Company recognizes liabilities for future eanabligations on business acquisitions at theirvfalue based on discounted proje:
payments on such obligations. The inputs to theatan, which are level 3 inputs within the fairlwe hierarchy, are projected sales t
provided by the acquired businesses based on ibatsales trends for which earnout amounts aré¢ractually based. Based on the Compse
assessment as of December 31, 2014, the estimatérdictually required earnout amounts would beeaad. The following table presents
change in the Level 3 contingent purchase pricsidenation liability for 2014.

Balance, December 31, 2013 $ =
Additions related to acquisitions 2,11C
Payments (342)
Adjustments included in earnings —

Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 1,76¢
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Schedule I

ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at Charges to Balance at
Beginning Cost and Deductions End of
of Period Expenses 2) Period
Year ended December 31, 2014
Allowance for accounts receivable $ 2517 % 54€ $ (650 $ 2,41:
Year ended December 31, 2013
Allowance for accounts receivable $ 263 % 63€¢ $ (759 $ 2,517
Year ended December 31, 2012
Allowance for accounts receivable $ 3,30¢ % 45¢ % (1,130 $ 2,63¢

(1) Deductions represent uncollectible accountdewroff net of recoverie
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Number Description

3.1 Certificate of Ownership and Merger as filed witc&tary of State of the State of Delaware (incafzal by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Fori Blled December 27, 2012).

3.2 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, filed Mad® 2013.

3.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws, (incorporatedfbrence to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’'s F@&
filed on October 6, 2009).

4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate (incorporated by refeegto Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-kdilon
March 9, 2011).

4.2 Indenture, dated December 1, 2010, among ARC DontiB@utions, certain subsidiaries of ARC Document
Solutions as guarantors thereto, and Wells Fargdk Bdational Association, as trustee (incorporated
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Fori Blled on December 2, 2010).

4.2 Form of 10.5% Senior Note due 2016 (incorporatedefgrence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’'s F&4 filed
on December 2, 2010).

4.4 Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 10 28mong ARC Document Solutions, certain subsihar
of ARC Document Solutions as guarantors theretd,Marrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporétas
representative of the several initial purchasersofiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Regnt's
Form 8-K filed on December 2, 2010).

4.t First Supplemental Indenture dated December 203 28iong ARC Document Solutions, Inc., the Guarantor
named therein, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Aission), as trustee (incorporated by reference toitki4.1
to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 231 3).

10.1 ARC Document Solutions 2005 Stock Plan (incorpatdie reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 A (Reg. No. BB3788), as amended on January 13, 2005).»

10.2 Amendment No. 1 to ARC Document Solutions 2005 IS®lan dated May 22, 2007 (incorporated by refezenc
to Exhibit 10.63 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-Qdilen August 9, 2007)."

10.c Amendment No. 2 to ARC Document Solutions 2005 IS®lan dated May 2, 2008 (incorporated by referea
Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filedgust 8, 2008). »

10.¢ Amendment No. 3 to ARC Document Solutions 2005 ISfdlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@.the
Registrant’'s Form 10-Q filed August 7, 2009). »

10.t Forms of Stock Option Agreements under the 2006kS&tan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 110.&he
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-Qj(R®. 333-119788), as filed on October 15, 2004).»

10.€ Forms of Restricted Stock Award Agreements und@628tock Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibiR27
to the Registrant’'s Registration Statement on F&¢inA (Reg. No. 333-119788), as amended on Decefber
2004).~
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10.7

10.¢

10.¢

10.1¢(

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement un2@d5 Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.28 to the Registrant’s Registration Staént on Form S-1 A (Reg. No. 333-119788), as arttnd
December 6, 2004)."

Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement unded2&tock Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi9
to the Registrant’'s Registration Statement on F&+inA (Reg. No. 333-119788), as amended on JariiBary
2005).~

Form of ARC Document Solutions Stock Option Graptibe — Non-employee Directors (Discretionary Non-
statutory Stock Options) (incorporated by refereiocExhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed
December 16, 2005)."

Form of ARC Document Solutions Non-employee Diresfdonstatutory Stock Option Agreement
(Discretionary Grants) (incorporated by refererc&xhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed o
December 16, 2005)."



10.11 Amended and Restated ARC Document Solutions 2008id&me Stock Purchase Plan amended and restated
of July 30, 2009 (incorporated by reference to BiHiO.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed on mber 9,
2009).~

10.1z2 Lease Agreement, for the premises commonly knowdB8dsand 940 Venice Boulevard, Los Angeles, CAedat
November 19, 1997, by and between American Reppbigra Company, L.L.C. (formerly Ford Graphics Grpup
L.L.C.) and Sumo Holdings LA, LLC (incorporated tBference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’'s Rigtion
Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-119788), ad &h October 15, 2004).

10.1: Amendment to Lease for the premises commonly knasv@34 and 940 Venice Boulevard, Los Angeles, CA,
effective as of August 2, 2005, by and between SHimidings LA, LLC, Landlord and American Reprogragh
Company, L.L.C. (formerly known as Ford Graphic®@r, L.L.C.) Tenant (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed davember 14, 2005).

10.1¢ Lease Agreement for the premises commonly know8B8&sWest Julian Street, San Jose, CA, dated Fgbtar
2009, by and between American Reprographics CompahyC. and Sumo Holdings San Jose, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Regyistrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-Jj(Re
No. 333-119788), as filed on October 15, 2004).

10.1¢ Amendment to Lease for the premises commonly knasv835 West Julian Street, San Jose, CA, datectigffe
February 1, 2009, by and between Sumo Holdingsl8ae, LLC, Landlord, and American Reprographics
Company, L.L.C. Tenant (incorporated by referemcExhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q fileal
May 8, 2009).

10.1¢ Lease Agreement for the premises commonly knowtv@21 Mitchell North, Irvine, CA, dated April 1, 29,
by and between American Reprographics Company..&and Sumo Holdings Irvine, LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrant’s Regtion Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-119%88
filed on October 15, 2004).

10.15 Amendment to Lease for the premises commonly knasvh7721 Mitchell North, Irvine, CA, effective as o
August 2, 2005, by and between Sumo Holdings Inih€, Lessor and American Reprographics Company,
L.L.C., Lessee (incorporated by reference to ExHibil to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed on Noweml4,
2005).

10.1¢ Assignment of Lease and Consent for the premisesnzmly known as 17721 Mitchell North, Irvine, CAgtdd
effective April 28, 2009, by and between OCB, LIAnerican Reprographics Company, L.L.C. and Sumo
Holdings Irvine LLC (incorporated by reference tehibit 10.2 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-Q filed iday 8,
2009).
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10.1¢

10.2C

10.21

10.2Z

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.27

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.3C

Second Amendment to Lease for the premises comnkmoiyn as 17721 Mitchell North, Irvine, CA, dated
effective April 28, 2009, by and between Sumo Huoddi Irvine LLC, Lessor, and OCB, LLC, Lessee,
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thegRtrant’'s Form 10-Q filed on May 8, 2009).

Lease Agreement for the premises commonly knowtB8a8 V Street, Sacramento, CA, dated December 1,
1997, by and between American Reprographics CompahyC. (formerly Ford Graphics Group, L.L.C.) and
Sumo Holdings Sacramento, LLC (Sacramento Propértgprporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-J(R®. 333-119788), as filed on October 15, 2004).

Amendment to Lease for the premises commonly knasvh322 V Street, Sacramento, CA, effective as of
August 2, 2005, by and between Sumo Holdings SaaméonLLC, Landlord and American Reprographics
Company, L.L.C. (formerly known as Ford Graphic®@r, L.L.C.) Tenant (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed davember 14, 2005).

Lease Agreement for the premises commonly knows#asClinton Street, Costa Mesa, CA, dated Septe@Ry
2003, by and between American Reprographics Com(itrey Consolidated Reprographics) and Sumo Holding
Costa Mesa, LLC (incorporated by reference to ExHib.16 to the Registrant’s Registration Statenoent

Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-119788), as filed on Octdlier2004).

Lease Agreement for the premises commonly knowsil&sMonterey Pass Road, Monterey Park, CA, by and
dated November 19, 1997, between Dieterich-Postgaomand American Reprographics Company, L.L.C. (as
successor lessee) (incorporated by reference tiERR.26 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-K filed oraMh 1,
2007).

Indemnification Agreement, dated April 10, 2000,aca0m American Reprographics Company, L.L.C., America
Reprographics Holdings, L.L.C., ARC Acquisition Cb.L.C., Mr. Chandramohan, Mr. Suriyakumar, Micro
Device, Inc., Dieterich-Post Company, ZS Ford Land ZS Ford L.L.C. (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrant’s Registration &taént on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-119788), as fited o
October 15, 2004).

Restricted Stock Award Grant Notice between AmeriReprographics Company and Mr. Sathiyamurthy
Chandramohan dated March 27, 2007 (incorporatagfieyence to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s F&id
filed on March 30, 2007).»

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datedhVed.,, 2012, between American Reprographics
Company and Mr. Suriyakumar (incorporated by rafeesto Exhibit 10. 1 to the Registrant’s Form 8fike¢l on
March 21, 2011).A

Letter Agreement, dated February 21, 2012, by @&telden American Reprographics Company and
Kumarakulasingam Suriyakumar (incorporated by exfee to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’'s Form 8fileq
on February 21, 2012)."

Restricted Stock Award Grant Notice between AmeriReprographics Company and Mr. Suriyakumar dated
March 27, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Ext8Bi2 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on MaRh
2007).”

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datedhVed, 2011, between American Reprographics
Company and Mr. Rahul K. Roy (incorporated by reffiee to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 8i&df on
March 21, 2011).A

Agreement to Grant Stock dated effective Decemb@0@4, between American Reprographics Company and
Mr. Rahul K. Roy (incorporated by reference to Eihi0.36 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-K filed onidla 31,
2005).~
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10.31

10.3Z

10.3¢

10.3¢

10.3¢

10.3¢

10.3i

10.3¢

10.3¢

10.4C

10.41

10.42

10.4:

10.4¢

Letter Agreement, dated February 21, 2012, by @&tebden American Reprographics Company and Rahul Roy
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thegRtrant’s Form 8-K filed on February 21, 2012).~

First Amendment to Agreement to Grant Stock datey W7, 2006 between American Reprographics Compan
and Mr. Rahul K. Roy (incorporated by referenc&xibit 10.48 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-K filed o
March 1, 2007).»

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreerdated March 21, 2011, between American
Reprographics Company and Dilantha Wijesuriya (ipocated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Regigts
Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2011). »

Letter Agreement, dated February 21, 2012, by ataiden American Reprographics Company and Dilantha
Wijesuriya (incorporated by reference to ExhibitZLfb the Registrant's Form 8-K filed on Februaty 2012)."

Restricted Stock Award Grant Notice between AmeriRaprographics Company and Dilantha Wijesuriyadiat
October 28, 2009 (incorporated by reference to likhD.79 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-K filed orbReary 26,
2010).

Executive Employment Agreement, dated April 14, Pddetween American Reprographics Company and Jorc
Avalos, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on April 15, 201

Separation Agreement, dated April 13, 2011, betwsmerican Reprographics Company and Jonathan Mathel
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlegRtrant’'s Form 8-K filed on April 21, 2011).»

Executive Employment Agreement, dated July 18, 20&iween American Reprographics Company and John
E.D. Toth, (incorporated by reference to Exhibitll® the Registrant’'s Form 8-K filed on July 18,12)."

Form of Indemnification Agreement between ARC DoeutSolutions, Inc. and each of its Directors and
Executive Officers.

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Employigrdement, dated March 13, 2013, between ARC
Document Solutions, Inc. and Mr. Rahul K. Roy.»

Letter Amendment, dated March 13, 2014, by and éetwARC Document Solutions, Inc. and Mr. Suriyakuma
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.47 toRegyistrant's Form 10-K filed on March 14, 2014).»

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datedhMa, 2014, between ARC Document Solutions, Inc
and Mr. Kumarakulasingam (incorporated by referegndexhibit 10.48 to the Registrant's Form 10-kdilon
March 14, 2014).»

Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 20%4and between ARC Document Solutions, Inc. anch Jot
Toth (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1He Registrant’'s Form 8-K filed on May 7, 2014).

Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 20%4and between ARC Document Solutions, Inc. and
Rahul K. Roy (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit2 to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed on May @12).”
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10.4¢

10.4¢

10.47

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.5C
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Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 20%4and between ARC Document Solutions, Inc. and
Dilantha Wijesuriya (incorporated by reference tdibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed oraj7,
2014).~

Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 20%4and between ARC Document Solutions, Inc. and
Jorge Avalos (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi# to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed on May @12)."

ARC Document Solutions, Inc. 2014 Stock IncentilenRincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1He t
Registrant's Form 8-K filed on May 6, 2014).

Amendment No. 1 to ARC Document Solutions, Inc.£281ock Incentive Plan (incorporated by referemnce t
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed iday 6, 2014).

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreedstat May 17, 2014 by and between ARC Documen
Solutions, Inc. and Mr. Suriyakumar (incorporatgdéference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's8¢K filed
on May 19, 2014).»

Credit Agreement dated November 20, 2014, among PREument Solutions, LLC, Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent, #fiedenders party thereto (incorporated by refezgndExhibit
10.1 to the Registrant’'s Form 8-K filed on NovemBér 2014).

List of Subsidiaries.*
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Number

Description

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Rieged Public Accounting Firm.*
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursutdo Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the SecuritieshBnge
Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 3@Be@Barbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuao Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the SecuritieshEnge
Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 3@Be@Barbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioB8e906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdioB8e906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
101.INS XBRL Instance Document *
101.SCt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema *
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase *
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase *
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase *
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase *
* Filed herewith
n Indicates management contract or compensatary i agreement
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Exhibit 21.1
LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Jurisdiction of Formation Doing Business As
American Reprographics Company, L.L.C. California ARC
ARC — Central
ARC — Mesa
ARC — Pacific

ARC — Pacific Northwest
ARC — Western

ARC Digital Imaging

ARC Imaging Resources
ARC Socal — North

Blair Graphics

Blue Print Service Company
Blueprints Plus

BPS Reprographics
Brownie’s Digital Imaging
Central Valley Reprographics
City Digital Imaging
Consolidated Reprographics
Dieterich — Post

FDC Digital Imaging Solutions
Ford Graphics

Ford Graphics Seattle
Hudson Reprographics

IDM Group

Independent Printing Company
InPrint

Kestrel Blueprint Company
KV Blueprint

Mercury — LDO

Micro Device

Mossner

Mossner IDM

OCB

Olympic Reprographics
Peninsula Digital

Peninsula Digital Imaging
Reliable Graphics

Repro Northwest
Reprographics Northwest
Riot Creative Imaging

San Jose Blue

SBD Reprographics
Scottblue Reprographics
Stockton Blue

SubHub

Superior Reprographics
Tacoma Reprographics

The Blue Print Company
The PEIR Group

ARC Document Solutions India Private Limited India
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Limited)

ARC — UK Technologies Limited

ARC Acquisition Corporation

ARC Digital Canada Corp.

ARC Document Solutions Australia Pty Limited
ARC Reprographics Canada Corp

ARC Reprographics Hong Kong, Limited

ARC Technology Bermuda, Ltd.

United Kingdom
California
British Columbia
Australia

British Columbia
Hong Kong
Bermuda

ARC




ERS Digital, Inc.

Henan UNIS Waytron Document Technology Co., Ltd.

Licensing Services International, LLC
Mirror Plus Technologies, Inc.
Planwell, LLC

Reprografia Digital de Mexico, S.A. de C.V.
Reprographics Fort Worth, Inc.

ARC Document Solutions, LLC
(fka: Ridgway's, LLC)

Jurisdiction of Formation

Doing Business As

Minnesota

People's Republic of China
California
California
California

Mexico
Delaware

Texas

ARC
ARC — Central
ARC — Mesa

ARC Document Solutions
ARC Imaging Resources
Atlas Blueprint

Dayton Blue Print Company
DBS Engineering Repro Systems
Dunn Blue Print Company
eBlueprint

Gwyer Reprographics
Letter Perfect Design
Queen City Reprographics
Resource Imaging Supply
Riot Creative Imaging

RK Digital

Veenestra

Wagner Repro & Supply

ARC
Planwell Licensing

Planwell Professional Services

A&E Supply Company

A-Plus Digital Reprographics
American Reprographics Southeast
ARC

ARC — Delaware

ARC — Eastern

ARC — FL

ARC — Florida

ARC — LA Gulf Coast

ARC — Pacific Northwest
ARC — Southern

ARC — MA

ARC — Maryland

ARC — Oklahoma Central
ARC — Texas

ARC BIM Services Group
ARC Document Solutions
Blueprints Plus

Crest Graphics

Ford Graphics

Ford Graphics Seattle
Georgia Blue

Imaging Technologies Services
IT Plus Technologies

Kansas Blue print



Kestrel Blueprint Company
Mathias Reprographics
MBC Precision Imaging
Micro Device

Mix Imaging

NGI




ARC Document Solutions, LLC
(fka: Ridgway's, LLC)

Shanghai UNIS Printing Technology Co., Ltd.
Shenzhen UNIS - Printing Document Solutions Cal, Lt

UNIS Document Solutions Co., Ltd.

Jurisdiction of Formation

Doing Business As

Texas

People's Republic of China
People's Republic of China
People's Republic of China

NPI Digital

Orlando Reprographics
Pennsylvania Ridgway's. LLC
RCMS

RCMS Group

Repro Northwest
Reprographics Arlington
Reprographics Dallas
Reprographics Fort Worth
Reprographics Roanoke
Rhode Island Blueprint
Ridgway's Best Digital
Ridgway's Digital Imaging of Destin
Ridgway's IL, LLC
Ridgway's MD, LLC
Ridgway’s NY, LLC

Riot Creative Imaging
StratoGrafix

Superior Reprographics
Tacoma Reprographics
T-Square Express
University Imaging

Western Blue Print Company



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement Nos. 333-141009, 333-13253Bam S-3 and Registration Statement
Nos. 33-195757, 333-122637 on Form S-8 of our reportsdiitarch 13, 2015 , relating to the consolidatedficial statements and financial
statement schedule of ARC Document Solutions,dnd. subsidiaries, and the effectiveness of ARC b Solutions, Inc. and subsidiaries’
internal control over financial reporting, appearin the Annual Report on Form 10-K of ARC Docum8ntutions, Inc. for the year ended
December 31, 2014 .

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
San Francisco, California

March 13, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) AND RULE 15D-14(A)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kumarakulasingam Suriyakumar, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16f®ARC Document Solutions, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiordny untrue statement of a material fact or emnéttate a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedortss designed under our

supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentédsineport our conclusions about

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyi$'s internal control over financial reportirtat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reporting.

/sl KUMARAKULASINGAM SURIYAKUMAR
Kumarakulasingam Suriyakumar

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 13, 2015



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) AND RULE 15D-14(A)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jorge Avalos, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16f®ARC Document Solutions, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiordny untrue statement of a material fact or emnéttate a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedortss designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentédsineport our conclusions about

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyi$'s internal control over financial reportirtat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reporting.

/sl JORGE AVALOS
Jorge Avalos

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: March 13, 2015



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ARC Documg&olutions, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K tbe year ended December 31,
2014 , as filed with the Securities and Exchangm@@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Kuakalasingam Suriyakumar, hereby

certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, agpsstbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbabesy Act of 2002, to the best of my knowled
that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirenmenf Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgjeaAct of 1934, as amended; and

(2) the information contained in the Report faplesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl KUMARAKULASINGAM SURIYAKUMAR
Kumarakulasingam Suriyakumar
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 13, 2015



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ARC Docum8nlutions, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31,
2014 , as filed with the Securities and Exchangm@ssion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, &okyalos, hereby certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fiérof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the bésty knowledge, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requiremenf Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgjeaAct of 1934, as amended; and

(2) the information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl JORGE AVALOS
Jorge Avalos

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: March 13, 2015



